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A resolution authorizing grants not exceeding $9,598,000.00 from the Barnes Fund
for Affordable Housing to certain nonprofits for the express purpose of constructin
and rehabilitating affordable or workforce housing.

«Q

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2025, the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission issued a request for

applications to qualified nonprofit organizations to participate in the nonprofit housing

development grant program; and,

WHEREAS, Section 7-3-314 of the Tennessee Code Annotated states that metropolitan forms of

government may provide financial assistance to a nonprofit organization in accordance with the
guidelines of the Metropolitan Government; and,

WHEREAS, Section 5.04.070 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws provides that the Metropolitan
Council may by Resolution appropriate funds for the financial aid of nonprofit organizations; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the regulations and procedures of the Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund
Commission, the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission voted to distribute funds to various non-
profit organizations; and,

WHEREAS, it is to the benefit of the citizens of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and
Davidson County that these grant contracts be approved.

GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated $9,598,000.00 from the Barnes Fund for Affordable
Housing to fund a grant to the following nonprofit organizations as follows:

Nonprofit Amount Project Type # of Council Exhibit
Barnes District
Fund
Homes
Be a Helping $420,000.00 Rental 8 21 A
Hand
Foundation
Roseanne $1,000,000.00 Rental 4 25 B
Coleman
Ministries, Inc.
Springboard $1,000,000.00 Rental g 22 C
Landings
Trinity $2,178,000.00 Rental 22 5 D
Community
Commons
Woodbine $3,000,000.00 Rental 79 17 E
Community
Organization
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Woodbine $2,000,000.00 Rental 60 2 F
Community
Organization

Section 2. The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County is hereby

authorized to enter into grant contracts with each of the nonprofit organlzatlons listed in Section
1 for the grant amounts designated therein, subject to the terms and conditions under which the
grant funds are to be spent, attached hereto as Exhibits A through F and incorporated herein.

Section 3.

This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption, the welfare of the

Government of Nashville and Davidson County requiring it.

RECOMMENDED BY:

Signed by:

lngela Uubbard

CEABITCEABCA4DE
Arngela nuppara, rmousing Director

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY

MC Cl ININC -

Signed by:
E Ku,A/m}w
B23TTAZABTA2469
Jenneen Reeaq, uirector
Department of Finance

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

DocuSigned by:
f Mew’ fAmss
122C5A0A0E9440A,

Assistant Metropolitan Attorney
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-BAHHF
BETWEEN
THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,
TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as “Metro”, and Be a Helping Hand Foundation, hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 8 Barnes Fund affordable housing units
located at 1627 16% Ave. N., hereinafter referred to as the “Project’. The Recipient's grant
budget is incorporated herein by reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic

organization.
A. SCOPE OF PROGRAM:
A.1. Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subjectto a

A2.

Al

A4,

A.5.

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants ("Declaration”) imposing certain
affordability requirements to encumber the Property and run with the iand over
a 50-year term (“Affordability Period"). Terms defined in the Declaraticn shall
have the same meanings when used in this Agreement.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amaount of $420,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for
such purposes.

During the term of the Contract and the Affordability Period, Recipient or another qualified
nonprofit must maintain 51% ownership in the Project.

{N02B)585.1} 1
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A.6.

AT.

Requirements for Rental Projects:

Tenants must be income-eligible at the time of initial occupancy, and Recipient must
certify all incomes annually and maintain a certified rent roll. In the event a tenant's
income increases above the income-requirement for the unit, the tenant is not
disqualified from remaining in the unit. However, the tenant's rent shall be adjusted
to the corresponding AMi level for the next lease term.

The Recipient will provide Metro with a management plan program oversight which
includes certification of the rents, utility allowances, and tenant incomes. The
Recipient shall also provide Metro an annual certification that Barnes rental
requirements are being met throughout the Affordability Period.

The Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and project for compliance with Barnes program
requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing tenant income calculations,
rent determinations, and utility allowances.

The Affordability Period applicable to both tenant income and maximum rents shall
commence on the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final
building within the project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the Affordability
Period will begin on the date of recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

Recipient shall not increase rents during the lease term. Such prohibition shall not
apply to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by
another federal, state, or local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting
from the grant funds.

During the Affordability Period, Recipient shall submit to Metro no later than July 15
of each year, an eviction report than includes the number of people evicted and the
reason for the eviction for the prior fiscal year (July 1-June 30).

Recipient shall post information on Fair Housing rights in the leasing office and make
information on Fair Housing rights available to tenants at least annually. Recipients
should endeavor to make information available to persons with Limited English
Proficiency.

h. At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing stability

efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant application.

Property Standards

a. All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

b. Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient’s
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

¢. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient’s grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

(N0281585 1} 2
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B.1.

s ¢
&

B.3.

o

C.2

C3.

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services
rendered by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to
Metropolitan Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to compiete
its obligations under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution,
Metro is authorized to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated
funds from the organization.

PR . FE ey R H & s 1md

o iy
L Oy
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

s Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days

Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has paid the
final invoice.

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed Four Hundred Twenty Thousand Doliars ($420,000) "Grant Award".
The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated herein as part of Attachment B, details
the project budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute the maximum amount to be
provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's obligations hereunder. The
Grant Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees,
overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the

Recipient.

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. GrantDraws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule

e  Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.

« Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of
the Project.

(0281585 1} 3
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C.4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

C.8.

C.9.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process

» Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directians provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported
" by appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

» Allinvoices shall be sent BFPaym ents@nashville.gov.

* Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.
Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council. Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. It
should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro's
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Reclpient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

Procurement, Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will prom ptly review,
and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to
payment.

(Na2R1585 || 4
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C.10.

c.1.

D.2.

D.3.

D4.

D.5,

Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend pubiic
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project. ’

Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Projectis partiaily
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Bames
Government of Nashville & Davidson County.
Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission
Freddie O'Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default" (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following written
notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which cannot
reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within such 30-
day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter does not within
a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity. the curing of
such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient
violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have the right to immediately
terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to Metro any and all grant
monies for services or projects under the grant not performed as of the termination date.
The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds expended for purposes
contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of
any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining
the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors,
the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be responsible for all
work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount shall
be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation,
or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or
consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work contemplated or performed
relative to this Grant Contract.

{N0281585,1} 5
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D.6.

D.7.

D.s.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below may
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant
assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom they
have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board member
of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through the Metro
Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. iImmediate family ties include (whether
by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including stepparent), child (including
a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a
Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person
shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment
practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of applicable laws. The
Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall post in
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of
nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any subcontractor
of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government for inspection and
copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government. Furthermore, said
documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan Government, to any
state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority may review, inspect and
copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to, all drawings, plans,
specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos
or other writings or things which document the grant project, its design and its construction.
Said records expressly include those documents reflecting the cost of construction,
including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant contract.
The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds
provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years
from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of Recipient,
insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be subject to
audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its duly appointed
representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the standards outlined
in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this
Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro's duly
appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the affordability
period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial records, notes, and
other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the Metropolitan Office of
Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro’s representatives, upon request, during
normal working hours.
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D.9.

D.10.

D.11.

D.12.

D.13.

D.14.

Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no tater than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred during
the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form provided by
Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report
as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the activities funded under this
Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant,
condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be held to be
waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the appropriate parties
as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other party
contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a.  Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract,
and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any
failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or
independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
labor laws and minimum wage laws.

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient from
any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that
the Recipient may provide.

c. Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient's failure to
fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d.  Recipient's duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.

{N0281585 1} 7
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D.15.

D.16.

D.17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

D.25.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties' control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event Metro
prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro’s attorney fees
and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding
between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the
terms and conditions of the parties' agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and
all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the
parties relating hereto, whether written or oral,

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be construed
as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain all
permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and
its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Reguired. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the benefit
of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties
hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this
contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall be assigned or
transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of Metro. Any such
assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice
of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent
to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or

(N0281585.1) 8
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former empioyee to soficit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, 8
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard,
rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other
particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or
to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any
payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor
under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person
associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach
of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of
ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or
suspension from participation in Metropolitan Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient:

Mark Wright

827 W. McKennie Ave,
Nashville, TN 37206
615-227-6000
mwright@bahelpinghand.org

D.27. Lobbying. The Recipient certifles, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federat loan,
and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee

{NDN281585 1) 9
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of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

¢. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

D.26 Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan
Government-and-has-been filed-in the office ofthe Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

{ND28)585.1} 10
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ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work
Contract Number: 2025-R15-BAHHF

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Be a Helping Hand Foundation
Project Location: 1627 16" Ave. N.

Project Type: Rental New Construction

Grant Award: $420,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units in Development: 8

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

< 30% AMI 31-60% AMI 61-80% AMI Total
7 1 N/A 8

Deeply Affordable Housing: Recipient's commitment to make 7 units available to households with
incomes < 30% AMI is not contingent upon the award of project-based vouchers.

Permanent Support Housing: Recipient will designate all 8 units for Permanent Support Housing (PSH)
and agrees to accept referrals from the Coordinated Entry System (CES) and to utilize the Housing First
approach as defined by the Office of Homeless Services. Recipient’s commitment to PSH is not contingent
upan the award of project-based vouchers or upon the award of funding for supportive services. Recipient
will provide supportive services substantially in the form and manner as described in its Round 15
application.

Project Summary: This project will establish a deeply affordable Single Room Occupancy (SRO)
residence focused on providing safe, permanent housing for women who are currently experiencing or
have previously experienced domestic violence. The development will include seven private bedrooms,
each with an individual bathroom, and shared communal space with secure storage lockers to promote
safety, dignity, and autonomy. An additional 700-square-foot one-bedroom unit located at the rear of the
property will house an on-site SRO management staff member to provide consistent support and oversight.
Seven units will be income-restricted to households earning 30% of the Area Median Income (AMI) or
below, ensuring access for those with the greatest financial need. The project will coordinate with the local
Coordinated Entry System to identify and place eligible residents. This housing model is designed to
provide permanent, stable housing for as long as residents require assistance, offering a critical lifeline to
women on the path to healing and self-sufficiency.
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.
Draw # % of Grant Milestone
1 12.5% Upon receipt of the building permit, proof of builder’s risk insurance
with Metro Nashville listed as a lien holder.
2 25% Footing, framing, and foundation complete.
3 25% Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in, inspected, and
passed by Metro Codes; roofing complete.
4 25% Doors, cabinets, counter tops, drywall, trim installed.
5* 12.5% Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro Codes.

Note: Draw requests 2-5 must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted with Metro
prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid on a reimbursable
basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents

The following are required Items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1.

A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended:

A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan government;

The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Attachment A);

The proposed budget of the arganization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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ARTICLE 1

Be A Helping Hand Foundation

The name of the Corporation is Be A Helping Hand Foundation. It is intended that the
Corporation shall have the status of Corporation which is exempt from federal income
taxation under Section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any
corresponding provisions of any future federal tax laws not for profit, as an organization
described in Section 501 (c) (3) of the Code.

ARTICLE II
OFFICES

Section 2.1 Corporate Office. The principal office of the Corporation shall be located at
827 West McKennie Avenue, Nashville, Tennessee, 37206. In addition to its registered
and principal offices the corporation may have other offices and/or facilities at such other
places as the Board of Trustees may from time to time determine and as the business of
the Corporation may require. The address of the principal office may be changed by the
Board of Trustees by amendment to the Corporation’s Charter.

Section 2.2 Registered Office: The registered office of the Corporation required to be
maintained in the State of Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended from time
to time may, but need not, be identical with the principal office in the State of Tennessee;
and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by Board of
Trustees.

)
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ARTICLE III

PURPOSE AND USE OF FUNDS

Section 3.1 Purposes. The purpose of the Corporation is to provide training and
education to young men and women in the construction industry as well as assist with
finding employment. The Corporation is to build homes including affordable homes for
low and medium income families. The Corporation is organized exclusively for

rcligious, charitable, scientific, literary, and educational purposes within the meaning of
Section 501 © (3) of the Code, including the receipt and acceptance of property, whether
real, personal, or mixed, by gift or bequest from any person or entity; the retention,
administration and investment of such property in accordance with the terms of the
Corporation’s Charter and these By-Laws; and the distribution of such property for the
Charitable Purposes as herein delineated and/or (a) one or more organizations described
in Section 501 (c) (3) of the Code and either Section 509 (a) (1) or Section 509 (a) (2) of
the Code, Contributions to which are deductible under Section 170 (c) (2), Section 2055
() and Section 2522 (a) of the Code, or (b) A State, a possession of the United States,
or any political subdivision of any of the forgoing, or the United States or the District of
Columbia, contribution to which are deductible under Section 170 (c) (1), Section 2055
(a) and Section 2522 (a) gift or bequest of property be received or accepted in such a
manner as to require the disposition of its income or principal to any person,
governmental unit or organization, other than a Qualified Beneficiary or for other than

Charitable Purposes.

Section 3.2 Use of Funds. In making distribution to effectuate the religious, charitable,
scientific, literacy and educational purposes of the Corporation, as delineated in Section
3.1 above, the Board of Trustees shall have the authority to make distributions if both
income and principal in such promotions and amounts as the Board of Trustees, in its
discretion, determines advisable, provided that all such distributions are consistent with
all applicable federal tax laws and regulations as herein provide. The Corporation is not
formed for financial or pecuniary again; and no part of the assets, income, nonprofits of
the Corporation shall be distributable to, or inure to; the benefit of its trustees or officers
or any other private person, except as provided in Section 5.11. Section 6.10 and Article
XI as reimbursement for expenses or reasonable compensation for services rendered to
the Corporation, as set forth in the Charter and Section 3.1 above. No substantial part of
the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or be the
participation in, or intervention in (including the publishing or distribution of statements),
any political campaign on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate for pubic office.

@)
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By Laws
0)
Be A Helping Hand Foundation

Section 3.3 Administration_of Funds. In the event the Corporation is a private
foundation within the meaning of Section 509 of the Code for -a taxable year, the
Corporation (a) tax on undistributed its income for each tax year in such manner so that it
will not become subject to the tax on undistributed income for each tax year in such a
manner so that it will not become subject to the of self-dealing, as defined in Section
4941 (d) of the Code (c) shall not retain any excess business holdings, as defined in
Section 4943 (c) of the Code; (d) shall not make any investments in a manner
expenditures, as defined in Section 4945 (d) of the Code. In order to fully effectuate the
provisions of these Sections the Corporation shall adopt such procedures, and shall
otherwise adhere to such administrative requirements as may from time to time be
necessary, in order to fully comply with all applicable federal tax laws and regulations.

Section 3.4 Termination of Corporation. The Board of Trustees shall have the

authority to terminate the Corporation at any time that, by a unanimous vote, it deems
such termination appropriate appropriate or advisable. In such event, after paying, or
making provision for the payment of all liabilities of the Corporation exclusively for
Charitable Purposes, any assets not so distributed shall be distributed to one or more
Qualified Beneficiaries, as the Board of Trustees shall determine. Any assets not so
disposed of by the Board of Trustees shall be disposed of by the court having equity
jurisdiction in the county in which the principal; office of the Corporation is then located,
with the distribution of assets to be made for such Charitable Purposes, or to such
Qualified Beneficiaries, as such court shall determine.

ARTICLE 1V

MEMBERS

Section 4.1 Non-Members. The Corporation shall have members with no voting rights,
no meeting requirements, and no compensations. Memberships are given to donors who
contribute between $500.00 or more to the organization. Recognition of membership will
be distributed in publication.

Be A Helping Hand Foundation shall maintain at least one-third of its governing board’s
membership for residents of low-income neighborhoods, other low-income community
residents, or elected representatives of low-income neighborhood organizations.

Section 4.2 Low-Income Program Beneficiaries. For any housing project undertaken

by this organization there shall be a formal process by which we gather input from
intended beneficiaries, low-income residents of the proposed area, and other community
member. This process will include temporarily expanding our governing board to include
neighbors during the planning and development of the housing project.
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ARTICLE V
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 5.1 Generai Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be
supervised by its Board of Trustees, which shall exercise in the name of and behalf of the
Corporation all of the rights and privileged legally exercisable by the Corporation as a
corporate entity, except as many otherwise be provided by law, the Charter, or these By-
laws. The Board of Trustees, as the governing body of the Corporation, shall have the
authority to receive, administer, invest and distribute property on behalf of the
Corporation in accordance with the provisions set forth in these By-laws. May serve as
committee members and give advice or make recommendations.

Section 5.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of the members of the
Board of Trustees shall be not less than three (3) not more than nine (9). However, the
number of trustees may be increased or decreased from time to time by the Board of
Trustees by amendment of these By-laws, but no decrease shall have the effect of
shortening the term of an incumbent trustee or reducing the number of trustees below
three (3). The initial members of the Board of Trustees shall be appointed by the.
Incorporate(s) for staggered terms of approximately one, two and three years, in order
properly to stagger the terms thereafter and permit expiration of terms immediatcly
following the annual meeting.

In the event additional members are added to the Board of Trustees, the initial terms of
office of such additional trustees shall be staggered in such a manner to assure that the
terms of office of not more than one-half (1/2) of all of the trustees will expire in any one
year. The initial members of the Boards of Trustees shall be appointed by the
Incorporate(s) to serve until after the first annual meeting of the Board of Trustees and
until his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified. At its annual meeting, the
Board of Trustees shall elect individuals to serve on the Board of Trustees for a term that
does not exceed a period of five (5) years. Each trustee shall hold office until his or her
term shall have expired and his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified, or
until his or her earlier resignation, removal from office, or death. A retiring trustee may
succeed himself or herself. Trustees shall be natural persons who have attained the age of
twenty-one (21) years, but need not be residents of the State of Tennessee.

Section 5.3 Advisor Members. The Board of Trustees may elect advisory members from
time to time, who may attend, without vote, all meetings of the Board of Trustees.

Advisory members shall serve at the pleasure of Board of Trustees and shall advise and
Counsel the Board of Trustees on appropriate matters.
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Section 5.4 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be held
within or without the State of Tennessee on the last business day of the fifth (5™) month
following the close of the Corporation’s fiscal year, or at such other time and date prior
thereto and following the close of the Corporation’s fiscal year as shall be determined by
the Board of Trustees. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be to elect trustees and
officers and transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.
If the election of trustees and officers shall not be held on the day herein designated for
any annual meeting of the Board of Trustees, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of
Trustees shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Board of Trustees
as soon thereafter as may be convenient.

Section 5.5 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called
by the President, or at the request of any trustee. The President shall fix the time and
place, either within or without the State of Tennessee, of any special meeting.

Section 5.6 Notices. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least five (5)
business day’s prior thereto. The attendance of a trustee at a meeting shall constitute a
waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a trustee attends a meeting for the express
purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not
lawfully called or convened. The business to be transacted at, or the purpose of, any
special meeting of the Board of Trustees must be specified in the notice of such meeting
and no other business shall be transacted at that meeting.

Section 5.7 Quorum. A majority of the total number of Trustees in office shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of
Trustees.

Section 5.8 Participation in Meetings. Each Trustee other than an advisory member
shall be entitled to one (1) vote upon any matter properly submitted for a vote to the
Board of Trustees. The affirmative vote of a majority of the Trustees present at a
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Trustees, except as
may otherwise be specifically provided by law, by the Charter, or by these By-laws.
Members of the Board of Trustees absent from any meetings shall be permitted to vote at
such meetings by written proxies. The members of the Board of Trustees or any
committee designated by the Board of Trustees, may participate in a meeting of the
Board of Trustees, or of such committee, buy means of conference telephone or similar
communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can hear one another; and participation in a meeting pursuant to this provision shall
constitute in person at such meeting. The Trustees shall be promptly furnished a copy of
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees.
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Section 5.9 Actions Without A Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken
at a meeting by the Board of trustees, or by any committee, as the case may be, consent in
writing to taking such action without a meeting. If all members entitled to vote on the
action shall consent in writing to taking such action without a meeting, the affirmative
vote of the number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a
meeting shall be the act of the Board of Trustees. The action must be evidenced by the
one (1) or more counterparts signed by each members entitled to vote on the action
indicating each signing member’s vote or abstention on the action taken. All such written

consents and actions shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of
Trustees or committee.

A consent signed under this Section shall have the same force and effect as a meeting
vote of the Board of Trustees, or any committee thereof, and may be described as such in
any document.

Section 5.10 Vacamcies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Trustees including
vacancies created by the removal of trustees without cause or for cause may be filled by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining trustees in office, so long as the
requirements of Section 5.2 are satisfied. A Trustee elected to fill a vacancy shall serve
for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office, or if there is no predecessor
until the next election of Trustees. If a vacancy is not filled within ninety (90) days of the
event which resulted in there being fewer Trustees than required by the Charter of By-
laws, any Trustee may apply to a court having equity jurisdiction in the county in which
the Corporation has it’s principal office to have such court appoint a sufficient number of
Trustees so that the Corporation will have the number of Trustees required by its Charter
or By-laws, whichever number is greater. Any trusteeship to be filled by reason of an
increase in the number of trustees may be filled by election by the Board of Trustees for a

term of office continuing only until the next election of trustees.

Section 5.11 Compensation and Reimbursement of Expenses. Each trustee shall be
entitled to receive reasonable compensation, as may from time to time be set by the

Board of Trustees for services rendered to the Corporation. In addition, each trustee may
be paid his or her reasonable expenses incurred by the trustee directly related to the
affairs of the Corporation upon prior approval by the Board of Trustees and proper
substantiation of such expenses. No such payments shall preclude any trustee from
serving the Corporation in any capacity and receiving compensation therefore.
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Section 5.12 Presumption of Assent. A trustee of the Corporation who is present at a
meeting of the Board of Trustees at which action on any Corporation matter is taken shall
be presumed to have assented to the action taken, unless his or her dissent shall be
presumed to have assented to the action taken, unless his or dissent shall be entered in the
minutes of the meeting, or unless he or she shall file his or her written dissent to such
action with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment
thereof, or forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation
immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to
a trustee who voted in favor of such action.

Section 5.14 Registration. A trustee may resign his or her membership at any time by
tendering his or her resignation in writing to the President or, in the case of the
resignation of the President, to the Secretary. A resignation shall become effective upon
the date specified in such notice or, if no date is specified, upon receipt of the resignation
by the Corporation at its principal place of business.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS
Section 6.1 Number. There shall be a resident and a Secretary of the Corporation, each
of whom shall be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article. The Board of
Trustees may also elect one (1) or more Vice-Presidents, a Treasurer, and such other
assistant officers, as the Board of Trustees may from time to time deem necessary or
appropriate. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except for the
offices of President and Secretary.

Section 6.2 Election and Term of Office. The initial officers of the Corporation shall be
elected by the incorporator(s) for a term of office expiring immediately following the first
annual meeting of the Corporation. The Board of Trustees at its annual meeting shall
elect the officers of the Corporation annually. If the election of the officers shall not be
held at such meeting, such election shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall
be held, as soon thereafter as may be convenient. Each officer shall hold office for a term
of one (1) year expiring immediately following the annual meeting at which he or she
was elected and until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and qualified, or
until his or her earlier death, resignation, or removal from office in the manner hereinafter
provided. A retiring officer may not succeed himself or herself in office, but may be
eligible for election to another office or to the Board of Trustees.
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Section 6.3 President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the
Corporation. He or she shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of
Trustees and the Executive Committee, and shall in general perform ali of the duties, and
have all of the authority, incident to the office of the chief executive officer of a
corporation, and such other duties as may from time be prescribed by the Board of
Trustees. The President may sign, with the Secretary or any officer thereunto authorized
by the Board of Trustees deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which
the Board of Trustees has authorized to be executed to be executed, except in cases where
the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board if Trustees or
these By-Laws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation or shall be required by
law to be otherwise signed or executed.

Section 6.4 Vice-President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his or her
death, inability, or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there be more than
one Vice President, the Vice President in the order designated at the time of the election)
shall perform the duties of the President (pending election, if necessary, of a successor
pursuant to Section 6.8 below) and when so acting, shall have all the powers of, and be
subject fo all the restrictions upon, the President. Any Vice-President shall perform such -
duties as may from time to time be assigned to him or her by the Board of Trustees.

Section 6.5 Secretary. The Secretary will keep the minutes of the proceedings of the
Board of Trustees in one or more books provided for that purpose: see that all notices are
duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-laws or as required by the law:
be custodians of the corporate records and of the seal, if any, of the Corporation and see
that the seal is affixed to all documents, the execution of which address shall be furnished
to the Secretary by each trustee: and in general perform all duties incident to the office of
Secretary and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him or her by the
President of the Board of Trustees.
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Section 6.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of, and be
responsible for, all funds and securities of all the Corporations; received and give receipts
for monies due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit
all such monies in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other
depositories as shall be select in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII of these
By-laws; disburse the funds of the Corporation in accordance with the directives of the
Board of Trustees, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and render to the
Board of Trustees, and accounting and all the transactions of the Treasurer and of the
financial conditions of the Corporation; and in general perform all duties incident to the
office of Treasurer and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him or
her by the President or other Board of Trustees.

Section 6.7 Removal. Any member of the Board of Trustees removed from office
pursuant to Section 513 shall be automatically removed as an officer, The Board of
Trustees may by a two-thirds (2/3) vote remove any officer when in its judgment, the best
interests of the Corporation will be served thereby. Chairperson serves 5 years a 2/3 vote
must carry for two consecutive meeting for the removal.

Section 6.8 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal,
disqualification, or otherwise, may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the
Board of Trustees for the un-expired portion of the term.

Section 6.9 Resignations. An officer may resign his or her office at any time by
tendering his or her resignation in writing to the President, or in the case of the
resignation of the President, to the Secretary. A resignation shall become effective upon
the date specified in such n, or if no date is specified, upon receipt of the resignation by
the Corporation at its principal place of business.

Section 6.10 Salaries Expenses. The officers of the Corporation shall be entitled to
reasonable compensation, as may be set by the Board of Trustees from time to time for
services rendered to the Corporation. Reasonable expenses incurred by all of the officers
of the Board of Trustees in the course of coordination shall be reimbursed by the
Corporation upon proper substantiation. No officer shall be prevented from receiving
receiving reasonable compensation by reason of the fact that he also is a member of the
Board of Trustees.
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ARTICLE VII

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND OTHER COMMITTEES

Section 7.1 Appointment of Executive Committee. The Board of Trustees by
resolution adopted by a majority of its voting members, may designate three (3) or more
of its members to constitute an Executive Committee and shall hold office until the next
annual meeting f the Board of Trustees following his or her designation and until his or
successor has been appointed and qualified. The designation of the Executive Committee
and the delegation of authority thereto shall not operate to relieve the Board of Trustees,
or any member thereto, of any responsibility by law.

Section 7.2 Authority of Executive Committee. The Executive Committee. The
Executive Committee, when the Board of Trustees is not in session, shall have and may
exercise all the authority of the Board of Trustees except to the extent, if any that such
authority shall be limited by the resolution appointing to the Executive Committee or by
these By-Laws. All action taken by the Executive Committee shall be subject to
ratification by the Board of Trustees. However, the Executive Committee shall not have
the authority of the Board of Trustees with respect to filling any vacancy on the Board of
Trustees; amending or repealing any resolution of the Board of Tru7stees which by its
express terms is not so amendable or repealable; amending or repealing the Charter or the
By-laws of the Corporation; adopting a plan of merger or consolidation, selling, leasing,
or otherwise disposing of all or substantially all the property and assets of the
Corporation other than in the usual and regular course of its business; or voluntarily

dissolving the Corporation or revoking a voluntary dissolution.

Section 7.3 Meeting of Executive Committee. Regular meetings of the Executive
Committee may be held at such times and places as the Executive Committee may from
time to time fix by resolution. Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be
called by any member upon concurrence of a majority of the members of the Executive
Committee upon not less than three (3) business days’ notice prior thereto. The notices
provided for in this Section shall state the place, date, and hour of the meeting, and the
business proposed to be transacted at the meeting.

Section 7.4 Quorum of Executive Committee. A majority of the voting members of the

Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any
meeting thereof. Action of the Executive Committee must be authorized by the
affirmative vote of a majority of all voting members present at a meeting at which a
quorum is present.
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Section 7.5 Action of Executive Committee. Without a Meeting. Any action required
or permitted to be taken by the Executive Committee without a meeting may be taken
without a meeting in accordance with the revisions of Section 5.9 of these By-Laws.

Section 7.6 Executive Committee Procedures. The Executive Committee shall fix its
own rules of procedure, provided such rules are not inconsistent with these By-Laws.
The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and report it
proceedings to the Board of Trustees for its information at the next meeting of the Board
of Trustees held after such proceedings.

Section 7.7 Vacancies, Resignations and Removal. Any vacancy in the Executive
Committee may be filled by a resolution adopted by a majority of the voting members of
the Board of Trustees. Any member of the Executive Committee may be removed at any
time with or without cause by resolution adopted by a majority of the voting members of
the Board of Trustees. Any member of the Executive Committee may resign from the
Executive Committee at any time by giving written notice to the President or Secretary of
the Corporation, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 7.8 Standing Committees. The Board of Trustees may maintain such standing
committees as it may determine from time to time to be necessary of desirable for its
proper functioning. Such committees shall consist of three (3) or more members, shall be
under the control and the control and serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees of
these By-Laws shall maintain a permanent record of actions and proceeding and shall
regularly submit a report of their action actions to the Boards of Trustees which shall
ratify the actions of each committee. The President, or his or her designee shall serve on
each Committee as and ex-officio member. Such standing committees shall have such
authority as the Board of Trustees may stipulate, except that no committee shall have the
authority of the Board of Trustees with respect to those matters delineated in Section 5.2
above.

Section 7.9 Ad Hoc Committee. The President, with the approval of the Board of
Trustees as evidenced by resolution, may from time to time create such ad hoc
committees, as the President believes necessary or desirable to investigate matters or
advise the Board of Trustees. Ad Hoc Committees shall limit their activities to the
accomplishment of the tasks for which created and shall have no power to act except as
specifically conferred by resolution of the Board of Trustees. Such committees shall
operate until their tasks have been accomplished or until discharged by the Board of
Trustees.
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ARTICLE VIII
CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS

A

Sections 8.1 Contracts and Empioyment of Agenis. The Board of Trusiees may
authorize any trustee, officer or agent to enter into any contract, or execute and deliver

any instrument, in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation. The Board of Trustees
shall be specifically authorized, in its sole discretion, to employ and to pay the
compensation of such agents, accountants, custodians, experts, consuitants, and other
counsel, legal, investment, or otherwise, as the Board of Trustees shail deem advisabile,
and to delegate discretionary powers to, and rely upon information furnished by such
individuals or entities. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 8.2 Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation, and no
evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its names, unless authorized by a resolution
of the Board of Trustees. Such authority may be general or confined to specific
instances.

Section 8.3 Checks, Drafts, and Etc. All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment
of money, notes, or other evidences or indebtedness issued in the name of the
Corporation shail be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agenis of the Corporation
and in such manner, as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board
of Trustees.

Section 8.4 Deposits. All funds of the Corporation nor otherwise employed shall be
dep051ted from time to time to the credits of the Corporation with such banks, trust
companies, brokerage accounts, investment managers, or other depositaries as the Board
of Trustees may from time to time select.

Section 8.5 Investment Authority. The Board of Trustees shall be authorized to retain
assets distributed to the Corporation, even though such assets may constitute an over
concentration in one of more similar investments. Further, the Board of Trustees shall
have the authority to make investments in unproductive property, or to hold unproductive
property to the extent necessary until it can be converted into productive property at an
appropriate time, provided the retention of such property is in the best interest of the
Corporation and does not in any way jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the Corporation.
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ARTICLE IX

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

Section 9.1 Standards of Conduct. A trustee or an officer of the Corporation shall
discharge his or her duties as a trustee or as an officer, including duties as a member of a
committee:
(a) In good faith;
(b) With the care of an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise
under similar circumstances; and
(c) In a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the best interest of the
Corporation.

Section 9.2 Reliance on Third Parties. In discharging his or her duties a trustee or
officer is entitled to relay on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including
financial statements and other financial data if prepared or presented by:

(a) One or more officers or employees of the Corporation whom the Trustee or
officer reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented;

(b) Legal counsel, public accountants other persons as matters the trustees or officer
reasonably believes are within the persons professional or expert competence; or

(c) With respect to a trustee, a committee of the Board of Boards of which the trustee
is not a member, as top matters within its Jurisdiction, if the trustee or officer
reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.

Section 9.3 Bad Faith. A trustee or officer is not acting in good faith if he or she has
knowledge concerning the matter in question that makes reliance otherwise permitted by
Section 9.2 unwarranted.

Section 9.4 No Liability. A trustee or officer is not liable for any action taken, or any
failure to take action, as a trustee or officer, if he or she performs the duties of his or her
office in compliance with the provisions of this Article, or if he or she is immune from
suit under the provisions of Section 48-58-601 of the Act. No repeal or modification of
the provisions of this section 9.4, either directly or by the adoption of a provision
inconsistent with the provisions of this Section shall adversely affect any right or
protection, as set forth herein, existing in favor of a particular individual at the time such
repeal or medication.
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Section 9.5 No Fiduciary. No trustee or officer shall be deemed to be a fiduciary with
respect to the Corporation or with respect to any property held or administrated by the
Corporation, including, without limitation, property that may be subject to restrictions
imposed by the donor or iransferor of such property.

Section 9.6 Prohibition on Loans. No loans or guarantees shall be made by the
Corporation to its trustees or officers. Any trustees who assents to or participates in the
making of such loan shali be liable to the Corporation for the amount of such loan untii
the repayment thereof.

ARTICLE X

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Section 10.1 General. A conflict of interest transaction is a transaction with the
Corporation which a trustee or officer of the Corporation has a direct or indirect interest.

A trustee or officer of the Corporation has an indirect interest in a transaction if, but not
only if, a party to the transaction is another entity in which the trustee or officer has a
material interest, or of which the trustee or officer is a general partner, director, officer, or
trustee. A conflict of interest transaction is not voidable, or the basis for imposing
liability on the trustee or officer, if the transaction was fair at the time it was entered into,

or if the transaction is approved as provided in Section 10.2.

Section 10.2 Manner of Approval. A transaction in which a trustee or officer of the
Corporation has a conflict of interest may be approved if:

(a) The material facts of the transaction and the interest of the Trustee or Officer
were disclosed or known to the Board of Trustees or to committee consisting
entirely of members of the Board of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees or such
committee authorized, approved, or ratified the transaction; or

(b) Approval is obtained from the Attorney General of the State of Tennessee, or
from a court of record having equity jurisdiction in an action in which the
Attorney General is joined as a party.
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Section 10.3 Quorum Requirements. For purposes of Section 10.2, a conflict of

interest transaction is authorized, approved or ratified if it receives the affirmative vote of
majority of the member of the Board of Trustees, or of a committee consisting entirely of
members of the Board of Trustees, who have no direct or indirect interest in the
transaction; but a transaction may not be authorized, approved, or ratified under this
Article by a single trustee. A quorum is present for the purpose of taking action under
this article if a majority of the members of the Board of Trustees who have no direct or
indirect interest in the transaction vote authorized, approve, or ratify the transaction. The
presence of, or vote cast by, a trustee with a direct or indirect interest in the transaction
does not affect the validity of any action taken under subsection 10.2 (a) if the transaction
is otherwise approved as provided in Section 10.2.

ARTICLE XI

INDEMNIFICATION AND ADVANCEMENT OF EXPENSES

Section 11.1 Mandatory Indemnification of Trustees and Officers. To the maximum

extent permitted by the provision of Section 48-58-501, et.seq., of the act, as amended
from time to time (provided, however, that if an amendment to the Act in any way limits
or restricts the indemnification rights permitted by law as of the date hereof, such
amendment shall apply only to the extent mandated by law and only to activities of
persons subject to the indemnification under this section which occur subsequent to the
effective date of such amendment), the Corporation shall indemnify and advance
expenses to any person who is or was a trustee or officer of the Corporation, or to such
person’s, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives for the defense of any
threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal,
administrative, or investigative, and whether formal or informal (any such action, suit or
proceeding being hereinafter referred to as the “Proceeding™), to which such person was,
is or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent which indemnification
and advancement of expenses shall include counsel fees actually incurred as a result of
the proceeding or any appeal thereof reasonable expenses actually incurred with respect
to the Proceeding, all fines, judgments, penalties and amounts paid in settlement thereof,
subject to the following conditions:
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(a) The Proceeding was instituted by reason of the fact that such person is or was a
trustee of the Corporation; and

(b} The trustee or officer conducted himself or herself in good faith, and he or she
reasonably believed (i) in the case of conduct in his or her official capacity with
the Corporation, that his or her conduct was in its best interest; (ii) in all other
cases, that his or her conduct was at least not opposed to the best interests of the
Corporation; and (iii) in the case of any criminal proceeding, that he or she had no
reasonable cause to believe his or conduct was unlawful. The termination of a
proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo
contendere or its equivalent is not, of itself, determinative that the trustee or
officer did not meet the standard of conduct herein described.

Section 11.2 Permissive Indemnification Of Employee and Agents. The Corporation
may, to the maximum extent permitted by the provisions of Section 48-58-501.et seq. of

the Act as amended from time to time (proved however, that if an amendment to the act
in any way limits or restrict the indemnification rights permitted by law as of the date
hereof, such amendment shall apply only to the extent mandated by law and only to
activities of persons subject to indemnification under this Section which occur
subsequent to the effective date of such amendment), indemnify and advance expenses in
a Proceeding to any person who is or was an employee or agent of the Corporation, or to
such person, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives, to the same extent
as set forth in Section 11.1 above, provided that the Proceeding was instituted by reason
of the fact that such person is or was an employee or agent of the Corporation to the
extent, consistent with public policy, as may be provided by the Charter, by these
By-laws, by contract, or by contract, or by general or specific action of the Board of
Trustees.
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Section 11.3 Non-Exclusive Application.The rights to indemnification and advancement
Of expenses set forth in Sections 11.1 and 11.2 above are contractual between the
Corporation and the person being indemnified, and his or her heirs, executors,
administrators and legal representatives, and are not exclusive of other similar rights of
indemnification or advancement of expenses to which such person may be entitled,
whether by contract, by law, by the Charter, by a resolution of the Board of Trustees, by
these By-laws, by the purchase and maintenance by the Corporation of insurance on
behalf of a trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation, or by an agreement
with the Corporation providing such indemnification all of which means of
indemnification and advancement of expenses are hereby specifically authorized.

Section 11.4 Non-Limiting Application. The provision of this Article XI shall not limit
the power of the Corporation to pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a trustee, officer,
employee, or agent of the Corporation in connection with such person’s appearing as a
witness in a Proceeding at a time when he or she has not been made a named defendant or
respondent to the Proceeding.

Section 11.5 Prohibited Indemnification. Not withstanding any other provision of this
Article XI. The Corporation shall not indemnify or advance expenses to or on behalf of
any trustee, officer, employee, or agent OF THE Corporation, or such person’s heir,
executors, administrators or legal representatives:

(a) If a judgment or other final adjudication adverse to such person establishes his or
her liability for any breach of the duty of loyalty to the Corporation for act or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law, or under Section 48-58-304 of the Act; or

(b) In connection with a Proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation in which
such person was adjudged liable to the Corporation; or

(c) In connection with any other Proceeding charging improper personal benefit to
such person, whether or not involving action in his or her official capacity, in
which he or she was adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit, was
improperly received by him or her.

a7
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By-Laws
Of
Be A Helping Hand Foundation

Section 11.6 Repeal or Modification Not Retroactive.  No repeal or modification of
the provisions of this Article XI, either directly or by the adoption of a provision
inconsistent with the provisions of this Article, shall adversely affect any right or

protection, as set forth herein, existing in favor of a particular individual at the time of
sucl'\ rpv\nal nr mnﬂiﬁr‘aﬁnﬁ.
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ARTICLE XII

NOTICES AND WAVIER OF NOTICE

The notices provided for in these By-laws shall be communicated in person, telegraph,
telegraph, teletype, or by mail (including e-mail) or private carrier. Written notice is
effective at the earliest of (a) receipt; (b) five (5) days after its deposit in the United
States mail, if mailed correctly addressed and with first class postage affixed hereon; (c)
on the date shown on the return receipt. If sent by registered mail, return receipt
requested, and the receipt signed by or on behalf of the addressee; or (d) twenty (20) days
after its deposit in the United States mail, if mail correctly, addressed, and with other than
- first class, registered, or-committee-member-of-the Corporation-under the Provisions of
the Charter, these By-laws, or the Act, a wavier thereof in writing signed by the person or
persons entitled to such notice whether before or after the time stated therein, shail be
deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE XIII

FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on the last day of December, or on such other
date as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE XIV

AMENDMENTS

These By-laws and the Charter may be altered, amended, or repealed, and a new Charter
or By-laws adopted, upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Board of
Trustees at any annual or special meeting, except to the extent that such alteration,
amendment, or repeal is inconsistent with Article XV hereof.

(18)
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ARTICLE XV
CODE OF ETHICS

Section 1. Board Ethics. It is imperative to the success of the Organization that there
be a fully informed, responsive, and reasonable Executive Committee and Board. To this
end, each Board Member shall conduct themselves at all times in the best interest of the
Organization. In this regard, each Board Member shall abide by the following “Code of
Ethics”. No code or set of rules can be framed which will particularize all of the duties of
a Board Member. The following code of ethics is to be considered a general guide, yet
the enumeration of particular duties should not be construed as a denial of the existence
of other equally imperative duties, though not specifically mentioned.

Section 2.  Attendance. Board Members shall put forth their best effort to attend all
meetings and constructively participate in those meetings.

Section 3.  Business Judgment. Board Members shall exercise good judgment in the
control and use of confidential information that may from time to time come into-their
possession.

Section 4. Public Relations. Each Board Member shall serve as a public relations
agent for the Organization and therefore shall work diligently and properly to promote its
goals and objectives while keeping abreast with its overall progress.

Section S.  Board Interference with Operations. Except for voting at properly called
meetings of the Board of Directors, Board Members shall refrain from entering into the
direct day-to day administration of the program unless they are doing so upon express
authority given to them by a properly adopted Resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Conflicts of Interest and Nepotism. Board Members shall fully disclose at
a meeting of the Board any and all family and/or financial relationships in regard to any
matter which is recommended to the Board or upon which the Board must vote. Board
Members with a potential conflict of interest shall not participate in formal Board
discussions or vote on any matter involving a conflict of interest. “Any matter” includes,
but is not limited to, (a) the purchase or rental of goods; (b) providing direct or indirect
financial assistance through investments, grants, loans or loan guarantees; and (c)
providing employment to a family member. “Financial relatlonshlp” includes, but is not
limited to, (a) any direct or indirect financial interest in a specific sale or transaction,
including a commission or fee, or share of the proceeds; (b) the prospect of promotion, a
profit, repayment of funds owed the individual by an assisted business; and (c) any other
form of financial remuneration. Board members must sign a conflict interest statement
upon election to the board.

Section 7. Alleged Violations. The Executive Committee shall be charged with the
responsibility of reviewing any allegations of Board Members violating this code or
acting in any way which is detrimental to the success of the Organization and make
recommendations to the full Board for final action.

a9
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By-Laws
of
Be A Helping Hand Foundation

Section 8. Document Desiruction and Whistleblowing. The Organization shall
adhere to the policies and positions set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

ARTICLE XVI1

EXEMPT STATUS

The Corporation has been organized and will be operated exclusively for exempt from
federal income tax under Section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501 (c) (3).

These By-Laws are adopted and shall be effective this (Eﬂ )\{:é:— day of

T Toae A L2011

"Natne and Title
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Nncorporator’s Printe

IncorporatoXs Signat
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EXHIBIT A

Document Destruction and Whistle-Blower/Code of Conduct Policy

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“SOX Act”)which was signed into law on July 30, 2002, was
designed to add new governance standards for the corporate sector to rebuild public trust
in publicly held companies. While the majority of the SOX Act deals directly with for
profit corporations, two standards in the act, document destruction and whistle-blower
protection, apply to non-profit corporations. This Document Destruction and Whistle-
Blower/Code of Conduct Policy (“WBCC Policy”) shall set forth the internal policies and
standards of Be a Helping Hand Foundation, a Tennessee nonprofit corporation
(hereinafter referred to as “Organization™), with respect to document destruction and
whistle-blower protection. Any capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this WBCC
Policy shall have the meaning set forth in the Organization’s Bylaws.

Document Destruction Policy

Organization acknowledges its responsibility to preserve information relating to
litigation, audits and investigations. The SOX Act makes it a crime to alter, cover up,
falsify, or destroy any document to prevent its use in an official proceeding. Failure on
the part of employees to follow this policy can result in possible civil and criminal
sanctions against Organization and its employees and possible disciplinary action against
responsible individuals (up to and including termination of employment). Each employee
has an obligation to contact the Chairman of the Organization or any member of the
Organization’s Executive Committee of a potential or actual litigation, external audit,
investigation or similar proceeding involving Organization that may have an impact as
well on the approved records retention schedule.

Whistle-Blower/Code of Conduct Policy

In keeping with the policy of maintaining the highest standards of conduct and ethics,
Organization will investigate any suspected fraudulent or dishonest use or misuse of
Organization’s resources or property by officers, board members, employees, consultants
and volunteers. Organization is committed to maintaining the highest standards of
conduct and ethical behavior and promotes a working environment that values respect,
fairness and integrity. All staff, board members and volunteers shall act with honesty,
integrity and openness in all their dealings as representatives for the organization. Failure
to follow these standards will result in disciplinary action including possible termination
of employment, dismissal from one’s board or volunteer duties and possible civil or
criminal prosecution if warranted.

Officers, board members, employees, consultants and volunteers are encouraged to report
suspected fraudulent or dishonest conduct (i.e., to act as “whistle-blower”), pursuant to
the procedures set forth below.

@1

Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

Reporting
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property should be reported to his or her supervisor or, if suspected by a volunteer, to the
staff member supporting the volunteer’s work. If for any reason a person finds it difficult

A person’s concerns about possible fraudulent or dishonest use or misuse of resources or

to report his or her concerns to a supervisor or staff member supporting the volunteer’s
work, the person may report the concerns directly to the Chairman of the Organization or
any member of the Organization’s Executive Committee. Alternately, to facilitate
reporting of suspected violations where the reporter wishes to remain anonymous, a
wrrittan ctatement mav bp anthmitted to one of the individua]s “Sted abOVC.
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Definitions

Baseless Allegations: Allegations made with reckless disregard for their truth or falsity.
People making such allegations may be subject to disciplinary action by Organization,
and/or legal claims by individuals accused of such conduct.

Fraudulent or Dishonest Conduct: A deliberate act or failure to act with the intention of
obtaining an unauthorized benefit. Examples of such conduct include, but are not limited
to:

» forgery or alteration of documents;

 unauthorized alteration or manipulation of computer files;

+ fraudulent financial reporting;

-- -~ « - pursuit of a benefit or-advantagein-violation-of Organization’s-Code of Ethics

set forth in Article XV of the Organization’s Bylaws.

- misappropriation or misuse of Organization resources, such as funds, supplies,
or other assets;

« authorizing or receiving compensation for goods not received or services not
performed; and

« authorizing or receiving compensation for hours not worked

Supervisors: Organization employees, officers, consultants or volunteers who have
supervisory authority over any other such persons.

Whistle-Blower: An employee, consultant or volunteer who informs a supervisor, the
Chairman of the Organization, or any member of the Organization’s Executive
Committee, about an activity relating to Organization which that person believes to be
fraudulent or dishonest.

Rights and Responsibilities

Supervisors

Supervisors are required to report suspected fraudulent or dishonest conduct to the
Chairman of the Organization or any member of the Organization’s Executive
Committee.

22)
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Reasonable care should be taken in dealing with suspected misconduct to avoid:

* Dbaseless allegations;

* premature notice to persons suspected of misconduct and/or disclosure of
suspected misconduct to others not involved with the investigation; and

» violations of a person’s rights under law.

Due to the important yet sensitive nature of the suspected violations, effective
professional follow-up is critical. Supervisors, while appropriately concerned about
“getting to the bottom” of such issues, should not in any circumstances perform any
investigative or other follow up steps on their own. Accordingly, a supervisor who
becomes aware of suspected misconduct:

* should not contact the person suspected to further investigate the matter or
demand restitution.

* should not discuss the case with attorneys, the media or anyone other than the
Chairman of the Organization or any member of the Organization’s Executive
Commiittee.

* should not report the case to an authorized law enforcement officer without
first discussing the case with the Chairman of the Organization or any member
of the Organization’s Executive Committee.

Investigation

All relevant matters, including suspected but unproved matters, will be reviewed and
analyzed, with documentation of the receipt, retention, investigation and treatment of the
complaint. Appropriate corrective action will be taken, if necessary, and findings will be
communicated back to the reporting person and his or her supervisor. Investigations may
warrant investigation by an independent person such as auditors and/or attorneys.

Whistle-Blower Protection

Organization will protect whistle-blowers as defined below.

¢ Organization will use its best efforts to protect whistle-blowers against
retaliation. Whistle-blowing complaints will be handled with sensitivity,
discretion and confidentiality to the extent allowed by the circumstances and
the law. Generally this means that whistle-blower complaints will only be
shared with those who have a need to know so that Organization can conduct
an effective investigation, determine what action to take based on the results
of any such investigation, and in appropriate cases, with law enforcement
personnel. (Should disciplinary or legal action be taken against a person or
persons as a result of a whistle-blower complaint, such persons may also have
right to know the identity of the whistle-blower).

23)
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« Officers, directors, employees, consultants and volunteers of Organization
may not retaliate against a whistle-blower for informing management about an
activity which that person believes to be fraudulent or dishonest with the
intent or effect of adversely affecting the terms or conditions of the whistle-
blower’s employment, including but not limited to, threats of physical harm,
loss of job, punitive work assignments, or impact on salary or fees. Whistle-
blowers who believe that they have been retaliated against may file a written
complaint with the Chairman of the Organization or any member of the
Organization’s Executive Committee. Any complaint of retaliation will be

promptly.

investigated and appropriate corrective measures taken if allegations of
retaliation are substantiated. This protection from retaliation is not intended to

prohibit supervisors from taking action, including disciplinary action, in the
usual scope of their duties and based on valid performance-related factors.

«  Whistle-blowers must be cautious to avoid baseless allegations (as described
earlier in the definitions section of this policy).
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Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE ; DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

> JUN 29 2006 o,

17053133711026
BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION Contact Person:
827 W MCKENNIE AVE WINNIE W LEE ID# 31208
NASHVILLE, TN 37206 Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500
Public Charity Status:
170(b) (1) (A) (vi)

Dear Applicant:

Our letter dated October 2001, stated you would be exempt from Federal

income tax under section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and you would
be treated as a public charity, rather than as a private foundation, during
an advance ruling period.

Based on the information you submitted, you are classified as a public charity
under the Code section listed in the heading of this letter. Since your
exempt status was not under consideration, you continue to be classified as

an organization exempt from Federal income tax under section 501 (c) (3) of the
Code.

Publication 557, Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, provides detailed
information about your rights and responsibilities as an exempt organization.

You may request a copy by calling the toll-free number for forms,
(800) 829-3676. Information is also available on our Internet Web Site at

www.irs.gov.

If you have general questions about exempt organizations, please call our
toll-free number shown in the heading.

Please keep this letter in your permanent records.

Sincerely YW’
!
% ?

Lois G. Lerner
Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 1050 (DO/CG)
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Bea
Helping  Building Homes. Changing Lives.

Hand

Statement of Organizational Services

Be a Helping Hand Foundation (BAHHF) empowers families and builds strong
communities by instiiling pride in the peopie we serve. Our focus in on providing safe,
affordable housing where families work and thrive. Our mission is to empower families
and build strong communities by providing safe, sustainable, eco-friendly affordable

housing, and green initiatives.

Statement of Services:

Our organization focuses on land acquisition, developing, preserving, and managing
affordable housing to build strong and inclusive communities; providing affordable
housing and resources to support individuals and families in achieving economic
stability. These services address the need for safe, decent, and affordable housing,
especially for those underserved by the traditional housing market. The organization is

committed to achieving socially just public policies that ensure everyone has access to
affordabie housing.

Affordable Housing Development Key Services:

» Property Development and Preservation:

« New Construction: The organization undertakes the development of new
affordable housing properties, including rental apartments (multi-family),
Single Room Occupancy (SRO) and single-family homes (town homes and
single-family dwellings), prioritizing sustainability, quaiity, and
affordability.

« Acquisition and Rehabilitation: Existing properties are acquired and
renovated to ensure they meet modern standards of safety, energy
efficiency, and accessibility while remaining affordable to low-to-
moderate-income residents.
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« Housing Options:

Rental Housing: Providing affordable rental housing (muti-family, SRO or
single family) options for low-income families and individuals. Focusing
on households at or below 60% AMI.

Homeownership Programs: Assisting individuals and families in achieving
homeownership through pre-purchase counseling and related training.

« Housing Management and Support:

Property Management: Professional property management services are
provided to ensure well-maintained and supportive living environments for
residents.

Supportive Services: The organization partners with community
organizations to offer residents access to resources like job training,
educational programs, and healthcare services, promoting self-sufficiency
and well-being.

« Community Engagement and Partnerships:

Community Planning and Engagement: Residents and stakeholders are
actively involved in the planning and development process to ensure that
projects meet the needs of the communities served.

Collaboration with Government and Non-profit Partners: The organization
works closely with local governments, public housing agencies, and other
non-profit organizations to leverage resources and create a
comprehensive approach to affordable housing development.

Advocacy and Policy Influence: The organization advocates for policies
that promote affordable housing and works with policymakers to secure
funding and resources for projects.

Building Partnerships with Financial Institutions and Developers: Securing
funding and support for affordable housing development.
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Target Populations Served:

Services primarily benefit low-to-middle-income individuals and families, seniors, people
with disabilities, victims of domestic violence and other popuiations who face
challenges accessing affordable housing in the current market.

Commitment to Quality and Social Impact:

The organization is dedicated to building vibrant and healthy communities. Focus is
placed on the long-term sustainability of projects and their positive impact on residents
and surrounding neighborhoods. The commitment extends beyond housing to address
the broader factors that contribute to residents’ well-being and success.

Operating with a Non-Profit Mission:

As a non-profit, operations are guided by the mission to serve the community and meet
the housing needs of those most in need. The organization is driven by social impact

and prioritizes resident and community well-being over profitgeneration. -~ -~~~
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BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
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SEBD

Fdmondson, Betzler & Dame
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Be a Helping Hand Foundation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Be a Helping Hand Foundation (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Be a Helping Hand Foundation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Be a Helping Hand Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Be a Helping Hand
Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

-1-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financiai statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards wilt always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may invoive
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Be a Helping Hand Foundation's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant~ -
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Be a Helping Hand Foundation's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

W ﬁ?&u ',"'l,'g-t* Pore.

Edmondson, Betzler, & Dame, PLLC
Brentwood, Tennessee

July 3, 2025
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BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Tenant security deposits
Other assets

Right-of-use assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued property taxes payable
Lines of credit
Current portion of notes payable
Tenant security deposits
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term lease obligation

Total current liabilities

Long-term portion of notes payable
Long-term lease obligation

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2024 2023
$ 43,419 $ 103,683
5,975 32,785
49,394 136,468
11,964,785 8,460,452
24,023 23,018
- 2,500
48,800 44,800
$ 12,087,002 $ 8,667,238
$ 121,286 $ 132,048
44,787 33,027
20,058 28,946
1,136,034 1,629,471
38,800 33,750
14,836 50,071
39,000 35,200
1,414,801 1,842,513
3,531,478 2,863,182
9,800 9,600
3,541,278 2,862,782
4,956,079 4,805,295
7,130,923 3,861,943
7,130,923 3,861,943
$ 12,087,002 $ 8,667,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

-3-

Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Grant revenue $ 4,096,509 $ 1,642,732
Rental income and fees 606,967 543,980
Gain on sale of assets 310,437 131,801
Other income 189,169 234,068
Contributions 2,052 230,509
Total support and revenue 5,205,134 2,753,090
EXPENSES:
Program services 1,322,564 1,356,203
Management and general 613,580 574 977
Total expenses 1,936,154 1,831,180
Change in net assets 3,268,980 821,910
Net assets, beginning of year 3,861,943 3,040,033
Net assets, end of year $ 7,130,923 $ 3,861,943

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Program Services  Support Services

Low Income Management and
Housing General Total

Salaries $ 303578 $ 130,105 $ 433,683
Employee benefits 29,271 12,545 41,816
Payroll taxes 17.897 7,670 25,567
Total payroll and related expense 350,746 150,320 501,066
Interest 238,538 37,987 276,525
Depreciation and amortization 267,271 - 267.271
Construction costs for development 216,298 - 216,298
Contract services 8,025 173,459 181,484
Repairs and maintenance 124,906 30,897 155,803
Rent - 64,600 64,600
Property tax 42,431 - 42,431
Utilities 13,554 19,105 32,659
Professional fees 5,239 26,728 31,967
Travel and meals - 30,135 30,135
Insurance 26,404 2,662 29,066
Contributions 27,778 - 27,778
Bad debt expense - 24,051 24,051
Miscellaneous - 20,361 20,361
Office expenses - 20,131 20,131
Memberships and subscriptions - 12,639 12,639
Security 1,374 516 1,889
$ 1,322,564 $ 613,590 $ 1,936,154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Program Services _ Support Services

Low Income Management and
Housing General Total
Salaries $ 365595 $ 156,684 $ 522,279
Employee benefits 30,974 13,274 44,248
Payroll taxes 29,623 12,696 42,319
Total payroll and related expense 426,192 182,654 608,846
Repairs and maintenance 234,242 50,484 284,726
Interest 227,955 11,000 238,955
Depreciation and amortization 218,693 - 218,693
Contract services 37,258 73,365 110,623
Professional fees 13,214 89,064 102,278
Construction costs for development 73,800 - 73,800
Rent - 63,000 63,000
Property tax 55,891 - 55,891
Travel and meals - 738,228 38,228
Utilities 16,307 19,026 35,333
Office expenses . 30,122 30,122
Insurance 28,170 1,059 29,229
Memberships and subscriptions 7,817 11,365 19,182
Contributions 13,082 - 13,082
Miscellaneous - 5,276 5,276
Security 3,582 334 3,916
$ 1,356,203 § 574,977 $ 1,931,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 3,268,980 $ 821910
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 264,559 210,656
Amortization of deferred loan cosis 2,712 8,038
Gain on sale of assets (310,437) (131,801)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 26,810 (3,508)
Tenant security deposits (1,005) (5)
Other assets 2,500 50,000
Accounts payable {10,762) {69,072)
Accrued property taxes payable 11,760 (22,313)
Other current liabilities (35,235) 35,200
Refundable security deposits 5,050 7,900
Net cash from operating activities 3,224,932 907,005
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (3,884,119) (4,134,044)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 425,664 305,383
Change in construction in progress - 1,196,694
Net cash from investing activities (3,458,455) (2,631,967)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on lines of credit - net (8.888) (8,072)
Proceeds from notes payable 1,393,553 1,200,706
Paymentis on notes payable (1,210,021) (731,020)
Deferred loan costs incurred (1,385) (4,097)
Net cash from financing activities 173,259 457,517
Net change in cash, cash equivalents (60,264) (1,267,445) ;
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year 103,683 1,371,128 .
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year $ 43,419 $ 103,683
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 274,113 $ 236616

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Be A Helping Hand Foundation (the Foundation), a non-profit organization, was
established in April 2001. The Foundation’s mission is to provide affordabie housing, free
education, job training, and job placement assistance in the construction industry.
Properties have been purchased and rehabilitated in low-income neighborhoods to be
made available for renters and home buyers in need of safe, clean, family homes.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The Faundation
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes
of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions.
The Foundation reported no net assets with donor restrictions at December 31, 2024
and 2023,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), donor
restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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NOTE 1 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost
reimbursement grants or contract or when services are provided for performance grants.
Grant revenue is subject to review by grantor agencies. The review could resuit in the
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of future grant
funds. Based on prior experience, management believes if any costs are disallowed,
they would not materially affect the financial position of the Foundation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all
unrestricted highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents during the year may exceed Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (*FDIC") limits.

Accounts Receivable

The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible receivables.
Management’s estimate of doubtful accounts is based on historical collection experience
and a review of the current compasition of the receivables. At December 31, 2024 and
2023, there was an aliowance for doubtful accounts of $6,672 and $479, respectively. It
is reasonably possible that management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful
accounts may change. Receivables are charged against the allowance when collection
is considered unlikely due to historic or current experience. At December 31, 2024, there
was bad debt expense of $15,214 recorded. Receivables are considered past due after
30 days, however, it is not the policy of the Foundation to assess a late fee, or apply
interest to past due accounts.

Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment is recorded at cost, and donated property and
equipment is recorded at fair market value. Contributions of cash that must be used to
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor
stipulation regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Foundation
reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful
lives of 5 — 27.5 years on a straight-line basis. The Foundation capitalizes other items
that are greater than or equal to $1,000 and expenses items below $1,000.

Exhibit A



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

NOTE 1 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Property and Equipment (continued)

The Foundation reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment if
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected from its use and eventual
disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than
carrying value, the Foundation recognizes an impairment loss equal to the amount by
which the carrying value exceeds the fair markei vaiue of the asset. The factors
considered by management in performing this assessment include current operating
results, trends, and prospects, and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition,
and other economic factors. Based on management’s assessment, there is no
impairment required at December 31, 2024 and 2023,

Property Held for Sale

Real estate held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell. No
property was held for sale at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Deferred Loan Cosis

[ DI R W T Y JUN IOy By itali

Loan cosis related to obtaining notes payable arc capitalized and amertized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the related debt. When the debt is paid in full, any
unamortized financing costs are removed from the related accounts and charged to
operations. Unamortized loan costs are offset against the related debt in the Statement
of Financial Position, with the amortization being reported as interest expense.

Income Tax Status

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code section
501(c)(3). Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Foundation has adopted ASC Topic 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return, including the position that the Foundation continues to qualify to be treated
as a tax-exempt entity for both federal and state income tax purposes.
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NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

[ncome Tax Status (continued)

For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-than-not to be
sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. For the year ended December 31,
2024, the Foundation has no material uncertain tax positions to be accounted for in the
financial statements under these rules. The Foundation has exempt organization tax
filings open to Internal Revenue Service audit, generally, for three years after they are
filed.

Functional Classification of Expenses

The Foundation's program service expense includes low-income housing. The costs of
providing the program and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, salaries, employee benefits,
and payroll tax expenses have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited, based on time and effort of staff as determined by management. All
other expenses were directly assigned.

Events Occurring After Reporting Date

The Foundation has evaluated events and transactions that occurred after December
31, 2024, through July 3, 2025, the date of the issued financial statements, for possible
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. The Foundation had no subsequent
events to disclose at the date of auditor's report.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Foundation has $58,232 of financial assets available within one year of the
statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general expenditures. Cash
and cash equivalents of $43,419 and accounts receivable of $14,813. None of the
financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them
unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position
date.

The Foundation has a goal to maintain financial assets, which consist of cash and short-
term investments, on hand to meet 90 days of normal operating expense, which are, on
average, approximately, $370,000.
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NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

TENANT SECURITY DEPOSITS

The tenant security deposit liability was $38,800 and $33,750 at December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. The Foundation is required to maintain a restricted cash account for
these deposits. The tenant security deposit account was underfunded by $14,777, as
the related cash account had a balance of $24,023 at December 31, 2024. The tenant
security deposit account was underfunded by $10,732, with a balance of $23,018 at
December 31, 2023,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2024 2023

Property held for lease $ 8910247 $ 6,258,467
Land held for lease 4,329,083 3,258,883
Construction in progress 13,500 13,500
Computers and equipment 129,267 129,267
Leasehold improvements 4,403 4,403

13,386,500 9,664,520
Less; accumuiaied depreciation {1,421,715) {(1,204,068)

$ 11,964,785 § 8,460,452

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled
$264,559 and $210,656, respectively.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Foundation executed operating leases for their
properties that were held for lease. None of the aforementioned leases were for more

than one year. Rental income and fees from property held for lease totaled $606,967
and $513,980 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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NOTE § -

NOTE 6 -

NOTE 7 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

GRANTS

The Foundation has entered into a significant number of grant agreements to purchase
and rehabilitate homes for affordable rental housing. Additionally, the Foundation has
entered into numerous agreements for land and funding for new construction of
affordable rental homes. Under the terms of these agreements, the Foundation has
agreed to repay certain funds if they violate certain terms or sale the home during the
“affordability period,” which is from five to twenty years from the date of the project
completion. The Foundation has classified these properties as available for lease and
does not anticipate that the homes will be available for sale in the “affordability period.”
Therefore, no liability is recorded in these financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

LINES OF CREDIT

The Foundation established a $90,000 revolving line of credit at Truist Bank, which is
due on demand. Interest, which was at a rate of 6.75%, at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
is due monthly. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the line of credit had an outstanding

balance of $20,058 and $28,946, respectively, and is secured by a lien on the
Foundation’s assets.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, other current liabilities consist of the following:

2024 2023
Accrued payroll and related liabilities $ 3,676 $ 38,911
Other deposits payable 4,000 4,000
Accrued interest payable 7,160 7,160

$ 14,836 $ 60,071

13-
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BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 8 - NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable secured by low income rental properties at December 31, 2024 and 2023
consist of the following:

2024 202

e—

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
National Bank in 120 monthly instaliments of
$871 beginning in February 2019, secured by
a house and real property, with interest at a
variable rate (7.00% at December 31, 2024),
maturing in January 2028. $ 29,952 $ 38,335

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
National Bank in 120 monthly installments of
$855 beginning October 2016, secured by a
house and real property, including interest at
a variable rate (5.50% at December 31,

2024), maturing in September 2026. 17,065 26,090

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
National Bank in 120 monthly installments of
$406 beginning December 2016, secured by a
house and real property, including interest at
a variable rate (3.50% at December 31,
2024), maturing in December 2026. 12,380 16,604

Secured promissory note payable to Truxton
Trust in 35 monthly installments of $2,776
refinanced January 2021, secured by 13
houses and real properties, including interest
at Prime less 4% (4.50% at December 31,
2024), maturing in December 2025, with final
balloon payment. 409,098 424,032
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NOTE 8 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Secured promissory note payable to Truxton
Trust in 59 monthly installments of $2,500
beginning December 2020, secured by 13
houses and real properties, including interest
at a variable rate (4.50% at December 31,
2024), maturing in November 2025, with final
balloon payment.

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in 180 monthly installments of $611
beginning March 2021, secured by a house
and real property, including interest at Prime
less 4% (4.50% at December 31, 2024),
maturing in February 2036. ’

Secured promissory - note payable to the
Housing Fund in monthly instaliments
beginning October 2024, secured by a house
and real property, including interest at a
variable rate (8% at December 31, 2024). The
note matures September 2027, with one final
balloon payment of the remaining balance.

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in interest-only payments beginning
September 2022, secured by a house and
real property, including interest at Prime less
4% (4.50% at December 31, 2024), maturing
in November 2038 with one final balioon
payment of the remaining balance.

-15-

2024 2023

$ 362,036 $ 376,744

91,042.00 94,276
297,829 300,000
597,039 617,373
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NOTE 8 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in interest-only payments beginning
January 2023, secured by a house and real
property, including interest at a rate of Prime
less 4% (4.50% at December 31, 2024),
maturing in March 2039 with one final balloon
payment of the remaining balance.

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in interest-only payments beginning
January 2023, secured by a house and real
property, including interest at Prime less 4%
(4.50% at December 31, 2024), maturing in
March 2039 with one final balloon payment of
the remaining balance.

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in 60 monthly installments of $555
beginning March 2022, secured by a house
and real property, including interest at a
variable rate (4.50% at December 31, 2024),
maturing in February 2027.

Secured promissory note payable to the
Housing Fund in interest only payments,
secured by real property, including interest at
Prime less 4% (4.50% at December 31,
2024), maturing in January 2026.

Secured promissory note payable to Toyota
Financial Services in monthly payments of
$1,022, with interest at a fixed rate of 4.99%
at December 31, 2024, maturing September
2028.

-16-
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2024

$ 118,908 $ 364,263

118,908 364,263
90,162 92,793
1,149,079 1,146,667
41,719 51,720
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NOTE 8 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED}
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in 180 monthly installments of $3,321
beginning August 2024, secured by a house
and real property, including interest at a
variable rate (3.50% at December 31, 2024),
maturing in July 2039,

Secured promissory note payable to Pinnacle
Bank in 180 monthly installments of $1,153
beginning April 2024, secured by a house and
real property, including interest at Prime less
4% (3.50% at December 31, 2024), maturing
in March 2039.

Secured promissory note payable to Simmons
Bank in 12 interest-only installments of $962
beginning August 2024, secured by a house
and real property, including interest at a fixed
rate (8.10% at December 31, 2024), maturing
in July 2025,

Secured promissory note payable to Simmons
Bank in 24 interest-only installments of $1,377
beginning March 2024, secured by a house
and real property, including interest at a fixed
rate (8.10% at December 31, 2024), maturing
in February 2026.

Unsecured promissory notes payable to Mark
Wright, including interest at a Prime rate
(7.5% at December 31, 2024),

Notes paid off

Total notes payable
Less: current portion
Less:; unamortized issuance costs, net

Long-term debt portion

-17-

2024 2023

$ 514,532 $ -

144,513 -

142,500 -

204,000 -

328,135 -

577,590

$ 4,668,897 $ 4,486,750
(1,136,034) (1,629,471)

(1,385) (4,097)

$ 3,531,478 $ 2,853,182
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NOTE 8 -

NOTE 9 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Maturities of notes payable as of December 31, 2024 are summarized as follows:

Year,

2025 $ 1,136,034
2026 329,026
2027 181,621
2028 91,379
2029 83,507
Thereafter 2,847,330

$ 4,668,897

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation leases office space from the Executive Director under a lease
agreement ending in April 2026. Total rent expense under this iease in 2024 and 2023
was $29,400 and $29,400, respectively. Future minimum lease commitments for the
lease agreement are $29,400 for 2025 and $9,800 for 2026.

The Foundation leases office space from New Wave Development, LLC under a lease
agreement ending in March 2025. Total rent expense under this lease in 2024 was
$35,200. Future minimum lease commitments for the lease agreement are $9,600 for
2025.

The Foundation advanced employees approximately $1,600 and $18,208 in 2024 and

2023, respectively. The total unpaid balance of employee loans as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 was $8,838 and $27,785, respectively, and is recorded in accounts receivable.

The Foundation entered into ioan agreements payable to the Executive Director in 2024,

-18-
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NOTE 10 -

BE A HELPING HAND FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

LEASE

The Organization leases two administrative offices under operating leases expiring
March 31, 2025 and April 30, 2026, with automatic one year renewal unless otherwise
notified. The Organization adopted right-of-use (ROU) assets representing the right to
use the underlying asset and lease liabilities representing the obligation to make future
lease payments are recognized on the balance sheet. These assets and liabilities are
estimated based on the present value of future lease payments discounted using the
Organization’s incremental secured borrowing rates as of the commencement date of
the lease.

The following table shows ROU assets and lease liabilities as of December 31, 2024:

Operating lease right-of-use asset $ 48,800
Current portion of long-term lease obligation $ 39,000
Long-term lease obligation 9,800

Total operating lease obligation $ 48,800

The total lease cost related to operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The components of the Organization’s cost were as follows as of
December 31, 2024:

Operating lease cost $ 64,600
Weighted average lease term (in years) 1.25
Weighted average discount rate 5.00%

Lease liability maturities as of December 31, 2024 are as follows:

2025 $ 39,000
2026 9,800
$ 48,800
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-RCM
BETWEEN
THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,
TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH

THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTIRES, INC.

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as "Metro”, and Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” Is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 4 Barnes Fund affordable housing units
located at Map 031-08, Parcel 156, hereinafter referred to as the “Project’. The Recipient’s
grant budget is incorporated herein by reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic
organization.

A.

A

A2.

A3.

A4,

A.5.

SCOPE OF PROGRAM:

Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subjectto a
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain affordability
requirements to encumber the Property and run with the land over a 33-year term
(“Affordability Period™). Terms defined in the Declaration shali have the same meanings
when used in this Agreement.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $1,000,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for
such purposes.

During the term of the Contract and the Affordability Period, Recipient or another qualified
nonprofit must maintain 51% ownership in the Project or in the general partner of the
Project.

{N0281585.1) 1
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A6.

A.T.

Requirements for Rental Projects:

a.

Tenants must be income-eligible at the time of initial occupancy, and Recipient must
certify all incomes annually and maintain a certified rent roll. In the event a tenant's
income increases above the income-requirement for the unit, the tenant is not
disqualified from remaining in the unit. However, the tenant's rent shall be adjusted
to the corresponding AMI level for the next lease term.

The Recipient will provide Metro with a management plan program oversight which
includes certification of the rents, utility allowances, and tenant incomes. The
Recipient shall also provide Metro an annual certification that Barnes rental
requirements are being met throughout the Affordability Period.

The Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and project for compliance with Bames program
requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing tenant income calculations,
rent determinations, and utility allowances.

The Affordability Period applicable to both tenant income and maximum rents shall
commence on the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final
building within the project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the Affordability
Period will begin on the date of recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

Recipient shall not increase rents during the lease term. Such prohibition shall not
apply to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by
another federal, state, or local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting
from the grant funds.

During the Affordability Period, Recipient shall submit to Metro no later than July 15
of each year, an eviction report than includes the number of people evicted and the
reason for the eviction for the prior fiscal year (July 1-June 30).

Recipient shall post information on Fair Housing rights in the leasing office and make
information on Fair Housing rights available to tenants at least annually. Recipients
should endeavor to make information available to persons with Limited English
Proficiency.

At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient’s grant
application.

Property Standards

All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient's
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient's grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

{N0281585,1} 2
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B.1.

cCA.

C.2

C.3.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
axecution of the grant agreement. Metra shall have no obligation for services rendered
by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan
Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete its obligations
under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution, Metro is authorized
to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated funds from the

organization.

Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (80) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has
paid the final invoice.

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) “Grant Award”. The Grant Budget,
attached and incornorated herein as part of Attachment B, details the project budget.
and the Grant Award shali constitute the maximum amount to be provided to the
Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's obligations hereunder. The Grant Budget
line items inciude, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all
other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient.

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule
» Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.
« Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in

the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of
the Project.

(NO281585.1) 3
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C.4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

c.s.

C.9.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process
* Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported
by appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

» Allinvoices shall be sent BFPayments@nashville.qov.

« Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.

» Finalinvoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council. Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. It
should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro's
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will promptly review,
and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to

{NO281585.1} 4
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C.10.

C.11.

D.4.

D.5.

payment.

Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project. '

Recognition. Any signage, printed materiais, or oniine publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Bames Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the Metropolitan
Govermment of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie Q’Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written

amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by

appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default" (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following written
notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which cannot
reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within such 30-
day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter does not within
a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of
such failure. Should the Recipient Defauit under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient
violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have the right to immediately
terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to Metro any and all grant
monies for services or projects under the grant not performed as of the termination date.
The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and aii funds expended for purposes
contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of
any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining
the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors,
the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be responsible for all
work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount shall
be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation,
or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or
consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work contemplated or performed

{N0281585 1) 5
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D.6.

D.7.

D.8.

relative to this Grant Contract.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below may
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant
assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom they
have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board member
of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through the Metro
Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties include (whether
by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including stepparent), child (including
a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a
Covered Person,

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person
shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment
practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of applicable laws. The
Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall post in
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of
nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any subcontractor
of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government for inspection and
copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government. Furthermore, said
documents shall be made available, upon reguest by the Metropolitan Government, to any
state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority may review, inspect and
copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to, all drawings, plans,
specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos
or other writings or things which document the grant project, its design and its construction.
Said records expressly include those documents reflecting the cost of construction,
including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant contract.
The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds
provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years
from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of Recipient,
insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be subject to
audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its duly appointed
representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the standards outlined
in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this
Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro's duly
appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the affordability
period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial records, notes, and
other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the Metropolitan Office of
Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro’s representatives, upon request, during
(N0281585.1) 6
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normal working hours.

D.9. Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year, The progress report should summarize activity that occurred during
the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form provided by
Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report
as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the activities funded under this
Grant Contract.

D.10. Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant,
condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be held to be
waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the appropriate parties
as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

D.11. Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

D.12. Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

Independent Cantractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other party

contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

D.14. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a.  Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract,
and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any
failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or
independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
labor laws and minimum wage laws.

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient from
any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that
the Recipient may provide.

¢.  Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient's failure to
fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d.  Recipient’s duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.
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D.15.

D.16.

D.A7.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event Metro
prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro’s attorney fees
and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding
between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the
terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and
all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the
parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be construed
as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain all
permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other defauit.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and
its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the benefit
of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties
hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this
contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall be assigned or
transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of Metro. Any such
assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice
of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent
to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.
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D.25. Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to

o
[}

offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program tequirement or a
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard,
rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other
particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or
to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any
payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor
under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person
associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach
of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of
ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or
suspension from participation in Metropolitan Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimiie transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BamesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient:

McKenzie Trent

1229 17" Avenue South

Nashville, TN 37212
mitrent@trentdevelopmentgroup.com
615-473-2725

D.27. Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or madification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.
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b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

¢. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan
Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

(N0281585.1) 10
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPROVED AS PRO%RAM SCOPE:

etropolitan Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF

(ot

GRITTAZABT42469

Jenneen Reed, Director
Department of Finance

fAmos

122C5A9A0E944 DA

[Goﬁ'ﬁgﬁeﬁ‘ b 1 AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Assistant Metropalitan Attorney

APPROVED AS TO RISK AND
INSI IRANCE:

[Kd«w Coll

Tieuiol ot ~iss Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Me!ropolﬁan Clerk

RECIPIENT:
ml‘er’nan :ﬂllnlstrles. Inc.
Tltle

Sworn to and subscribad to before me a
Notary Public, this $1 day of
2025,

[Notary Public seal)

Notary Public

My Commission expires 1O [ 2 | /] M
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Contract Number: 2025-R15-RCM

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc.

Project Location: Map 031-08, Parcel 156

Project Type: Rental New Construction

Grant Award: $1,000,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units in Development: 4

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

ATTACHMENT A

S 30% AMI

31-60% AMI

61-80% AN

T“

1

3

N/A

3

Project Summary: This project will provide supportive, community-based living for adults with intellectual
and developmental disabilities (IDD) who are members of Friends Life Community. Phase One of the
project will involve the construction of a 3,000-square-foot home containing four one-bedroom residential
units and ample communal space to foster connection, independence, and mutual support among
residents. The project is sited on land owned by the Protestant Orphanage Foundation, which has granted
a 33-year ground lease for the Project at a nominal rate of $1 per year. This long-term, affordable land
arrangement makes the project financially sustainable while preserving the site's charitable mission. Phase
One represents the initial step in what is envisioned as a multi-phase development to create mulitiple four-
unit homes, each designed to provide dignified, permanent housing for adults with IDD within an integrated,
person-centered community setting.
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Barnes Housing Trust Fund Grant Budget

Sources of Funds Amount :eg:lemage of Status (Securad/Pending)
0
Barnea Housing Trust Fund S 1,000,000 % 77 Pending
Peveloper Equity $ %
Private Lender § 300,000 % 22 Sacured
Low-Income Houslng Tex
Credits $ %
| (LIHTC)/etc.
Federal Home Loan Bank/etc. |§ %
Other Local/State Grants § %
Total Sources $ 1,300,000 %100
Uses of Funds Amount Percentage of
Total
Acquigition Costs $1 % 0
Construction Costs $ 663,964 % 657
~ Site Work $ 32,600 % 25
- Vertical Construction $ 419,850.07 % 323
- Contingency $44,515 % 34
Soft Costs $401,500 % 308
- Architeclure & Engineering | $ 70,000 % 64
~Legal and Permitting $ 20,600 % 1.8
- Developer Fes $ 260,000 % (Max 20% of 25%, allowable with < 30% AMI election
mes
Title arid Recording $7.500 % 06
Construction Perlod Interest §17.500 % 1.3
Taxes and nsurance $ 13,500 % 1.0
Third Party / Org Costs § 22,500 % 1.7
Reserves s %
(Operating/Replacement)
Total Uses $ 1,300,000 % 100

ATTACHMENT B
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.
Draw # % of Grant  Milestone
1 20% Upon receipt of the building permit, proof of builder's risk

insurance with Metro Nashville listed as a lien holder with
doclmented expenses.

2* 25% Footing, framing, and foundation complete.

3* 25% Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in,
inspected, and passed by Metro Codes; roofing complete.

4" 25% Doors, cabinets, counter tops, drywall, trim Installed,

5* 5% Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro Codes.

*Note: Draw requests 2-5 must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted with
Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paldon a
reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents

The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1.

A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan government;

The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Attachment A);

The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item Identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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ertificate

The undersigned, as Becretary of Btute of the State of Tennessee,
hereby certifies that the attxched document fuas received for filing on behalf of

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC. .
foas dulyg executed in accordance fitl the Tennessee General Yorporation Act,
foas found ta ronform to laf und foas filed by the undersigued, as Secretury of
State, on the dute noted on the dogument.

Therefore, the undersigned, as Secretary of State, and by pirtue of the
autharity vested in him by lufy, hereby issues this cectificate and attaches hereto
the document Grhyich foas duly filed on February 10th ,19_87

Beccejhry of Hinte
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CHARTER OF

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

pook 7 14 drnce 227

The undersigned natural person, having capacity to contract
and acting as the incorporator of a corporation under the
Tennessee General Corporation Act, adopts the following charter
for such corporation:

1. The name of the corporation is Roséanne Coleman
Ministries, 1Inc.

2. The duration of the corporation is perpetual.

3. The address of the principal .office of the corporation
in the State of Tennessee shall be 1925 21st Avenue, South, A-4,
Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee 37212,

4. The corporation is for non-profit,

5. The purpose or purposes for which the corporation is
organized are:

To operate exclusively for religious, educational, or

charitable purposes by engaging In the activities of

teaching, singing, preaching and studying the gospel of

Jesus Christ; to conduct Bible studies: to disciple,

counsel, and train others with respect to their rela-

tionship with Jesus Christ; to engage in such programs
and activities as are incidental to such purposes; and
to engage in any and all other activities not precluded

by law. .

6. The corporation shall have no members,

Dated this Sl day of EBUU{IDL[ ., 1987,

/{‘Z%:l[lut é’(Z%MZz«\__

. RoseAnne Coleman, Incorporator
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Docusign Envelope {D:

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, IRC.

s 7141 228

TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE STATE OF TENNESSEE:

Pursuant to the brovisions of Section 48-1-1201 of the
Tennessee General Corporation Act, the undersigneq incorporator
of a domestic corporation being organized under the Act submits
the following statehent for the purpose of designating the
registered agent for the Corporation in the State of Tennessee;

1. The name of the Corporation ig RoseAnne Coleman
Ministries, Inc,

2. The name anqg street address of its registered agent in
the State of Tennessee shall be:

John T, Blankenship

815 sauth Church Street
Murfreesboro, TN 37130

Dated this é;ﬂ day of r 1987,

.) - 7
[dﬁém € nga‘ma.«__

RoselAnne Coleman, Incorporator
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L BOOK 723 7rase §73
CFNED.
SECRETARY OF STATE 2e1s o
1987 MAY 1S Pit 22 ©3

Prepared by:

Blankenship and Blankenship IDENTFTREFERENGE
815 South Church Street )

Murfreesboro, TN 37130 SR

; ' Mav 15 1 23 pyvgy

FELIX Z, WILSON 1
DAVIDSDR COU{IFVE.G';:".

! AMENDMENT TG CHARTER OF

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

The undersigned, the Chairman of the ﬁoard of Directors, adopts

the foilowing amendments ﬁo tﬁe Charter of the corpotation:‘

1, The name of the corporation is RoseAnne Coleman Ministries,

Inc,

2. The amendments so adopted are:
I. Deleté the paragraph numbered 5 in its entirety and
substitute in lieu thereo§ the following:

- . 5. The purpose or purposes for which this cor-

poration is organized are: .

A. To operate exclusively for religious,
educational, or charitable ‘purposes by

engaging in the activities of teaching,

singing, preaching and studying the gospel of

Jesus Christ; to conduct Bible studies; to

disciple, counsel, and train others with . .
respect to their relationship with Jesus C
Christ; to engage in such programs and activi-

ties as are ‘incidental to such purposes; and

to engage in any and all other activities not

precluded by law.

B. The purposes are exclusively charitable
within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1954, any future
amendments to such section, and any
<corresponding provision of any future United
States Internal Revenue Code,

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of
these articles, ,this organization shall not
carry on any other activities not permitted to
, be carried on by an organization .exempt from
W Federal income tax section 501L(c)(3) of the
s Internal Revenue Code of 1954, any future
= amendments to such section, and any
corresponding provision of any future United
States Internal Revenue Law,

hibit B

II. Add a'new paragraph 7 to read as follows:

/8 In the event ok dissolution, the residual
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’ Boo "237/:,155

___FILEOD
SECRETARY GF STAYE
’ sets of the corporation shall be turned over to one or
07 VTS i1 22 53

more organizations which themselves are exempt as orga-

nizatlons described in sections 501(c)(3) and 170(c)(2)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, any future amend-
ments‘to such section, and any corresponding provision
of any future United States Internal Revenue Code,.
3. ' These amendments were adopted by the Board of Directors of

the corporation at a special meeting held by notice on the 14th

Fh

day o May ¢+ 1987,

4. These amendments shall be effective upon filing by the

Secretary of State,

\ /)
* (:mwuw Pl

' 7ET V-

RoseAnne Coleman, Chalrman
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[
*i
i

O v p—

Secretary of State

Corporaﬂons on DA.TE 06/03/88
S h, W N T S R
T ACT : =
Nashville, Tennessee 37219 FILE DATE/TIME: 0 /85/80 1437
EFFECTIVE DATE/TIME: 06/01/88 1337
CONTROL NUMBER: 0164515

Y10
§
Y s

T0
RO SE ANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.
P. 764

. BOX 120 BUUK7586PAGE 580

NASHVILLE, TN 37212

RE:
ROS NNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES INC.
ER AMENOMEN

THIS WILL ACKNOWLEDGE THE FILING OF THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENT ON THE DATE
SHOWN ABOVE TO BE EFFECTIVE AS INDICATE

PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT TH1S DOCUMENT MUST ALSO BE FILED IN THE OFFlCE OF
THE REGISTER OF DEEDS IN THE COUNTY WHEREIN A CORPORATION HAS
PRINCIPAL OFFICE 1F SUCH PRINCIPAL OFFICE 1S IN TENNESSEE.

WHEN CORRESPONDING W(TH THIS OFFICE OR SUBMITTING DOCUMENTS FOR FILING,
PLEASE REFER TO THE CORPORATION CONTROL NUMBER GIVEN ABOVE

R

1127 06/29 0101 O1CASH 5.00

WILSON 1T REGIST
0SON CW{O‘h.G"i

DAV

44837
Jn23 2 wsPN'gs

InENTIFTREFERENCE
FEiIX 2

FOR: CHARTER AMENDMENT RECEIVED:
ON DATE:

RECELIPT NUMBER:
ACCOUNT NUMBER:

FROM:;

Crsusst{

GENTRY CROWELL
SECRETARY OF STATE
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e Book 7O 8 6race 581
L] {ISprian
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER

OF EIL‘ED_

RoseAnne Coleman Ministries, Inc.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-60-105 of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, the undersigned
corporation adopts the following articles of amendment to its charter:

1. The name of the corporation is __RoseAnne Coleman Ministries, Inc.

2. The text of each amendment adopted is:
The principal officeof corporation was voted to change from 1925 21st Ave. 5=,
Nashville, TN, to 5776 Brentwood Trace, Brentwood, TN 37027.

3, The corporation is a nonprofit corporation.

4. The manner (if not set forth in the amendment) for implementation of any exchange, reclassification, or cancella-
tion of memberships is as follows:

5. The amendment was duly adopted on May 30, 1988
directors without members® approval, as such is not required) {the-Rembers).

by @the incorp 3 (the board of

[NOTE: Piease strike the choices which do Tot apply 1o this amendment.}

6. Additional approval for the amendment (as permitted by Section 48-60-30] of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corpora-
tion Act) was not required.

Additionat approvat for the amendmenr wes Tequired by the charter and was-obtained.
[NOTE: Please strike the statement which does not apply to this amendment.]

7. If the amendment is not to be effective when these articles are filed by the Secretary of State, the date/time it will
be cffective is

19___ (date) (time)

{NOTE: The delayed effective date shall not be later than the 90th day after the date this document is filed by the
Secretary of State.]

May 31, 1988
— —RoseAnne Coleman_ Mini stries, Inc.

Signature Date on
President /‘%Z_Kb( gie“ N

Signer’s Capacity Snsnalu:c

RoseAnne Coleman
Name (typed or printed)
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BYLAWS OF
RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.

ARTICLE I: SHAREHOLDERS

Section 1. Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The annual meeting of shareholders

for the election of directors and such other purposes as may be set forth in the notice of meeting

shall be held at such time and place, within or outside the State of Tennessee, as shall be fixed by

the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Special Meeting of Shareholders. Special meetings of the shareholders

may be held at any place within or outside the State of Tennessee upon call of the Board of
Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, the Executive Director, or the holders of

ten percent of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote.

Section 3. Quorum of Shareholders. The holders of a majority of the shares issued

and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall be
requisite and shall constitute a quorum at each meeting of shareholders for the transaction of
business except as otherwise provided by statute or the Charter. When a quorum is present at any
meeting, the vote of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote and present in person or
represented by proxy shall be the act of the shareholders’ meeting, unless the vote of a greater
number ié required by statute, the Charter, or these Bylaws, in which case the vote of the greater
number shall be requisite to constitute the act of the meeting. The shareholders present or
represented at a duly organized meeting and entitled to vote thereat may continue to transact
business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less

than a quorum.

Section 4. Voting of Shares. Each outstanding share, regardless of class, shall be

{D1302604.D0C / 1 TN533-143} .
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entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of shareholders, except as and to
the extent otherwise provided by statute or the Charter. At any meeting of the shareholders, every
shareholder having the right to vote shall be entitled to vote either in person or by proxy executed in

writing by the shareholder or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact.

Section 5. Action Without Meeting. Any action required by statute to be taken at a

meeting of the shareholders, or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the shareholders, may
be taken without a meeting if a consent, in writing and setting forth the action taken, shall be signed
by all the shareholders entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, and this consent
shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the shareholders. Any signed consent,

or a signed copy thereof, shall be placed in the minute book of the Corporation.

ARTICLE II: DIRECTORS

Section 1. Board of Dircctors. The business of the Corporation shall be managed by

a Board of Directors consisting of such number of directors as are currently serving on the Board as
the Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc., a Tennessee nonprofit corporation. In the event of the
resignation or removal of a Director of Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc., such person shall no
longer qualify as a Director of the Board of the Corporation. Upon the appointment or election to
serve on the Board of Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc., such person shail automatically be
approved to serve as a Director of the Corporation. Vacancies in the Board of Directors, whether
resulting from an increase in the number of directors, the removal of directors for or without cause,
or otherwise, may be filled by a vote of a majority of the directors then in office, although less than
a quorum. Directors may be removed for or without cause by the shareholders upon the vote of the

holders of a majority of the shares of common stock.

Section 2. Meetings of Board of Directors. Regular meetings of the Board of

{D1302604.D0C / 1 TN533-143)
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Directors, if any, may be held without notice of the date, time, place, or purpose of the meeting.
Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any place within or outside the State of
Tennessee upon call of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director, or forty
percent (40%) of the directors, which call shall set forth the date, time, place and purpose of
meeting. Written, oral, or any other mode of notice of the date, time and place of meeting shall be
given for special meetings in sufficient time, which need not exceed two days in advance, for the

convenient assembly of the directors.

Section 3. Quorum and Manner of Acting. At all meetings of the Board of

Directors the presence of a majority of the number of directors fixed by these Bylaws shall be
necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business except as otherwise
provided by statute, the Charter, or these Bylaws. The act of a majority of the directors present at a
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless the act of a
greater number is required by statute, the Charter, or these Bylaws, in which case the act of the
greater number shall be requisite to constitute the act of the Board of Directors

Section 4. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken

at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent, in writing and
setting forth the action taken, is signed by all members of the Board of Directors, and the consent
shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote at a meeting. Any signed consent, or a
signed copy thereof, shall be placed in the minute book of the Corporation.

Section 5. Committees. By resolution adopted by the greater of (i) a majority of the
directors of the corporation then in office when the action is taken, or (i) the number of directors
required by the Charter or Bylaws to take action, the directors may designate from among their

number one or more directors to constitute an Executive Committee and other committees, each of

{D1302604.D0C /1 TN533-143}
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which, to the extent permitted by law, shall have the authority granted it by the Board of Directors.
ARTICLE III: OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The Board of Directors shall elect a Executive Director and
Secretary, and such other officers as it may deem appropriate. The Executive Director, Secretary,
and any other officer so appointed by the Board of Directors are authorized to execute certificates
representing shares of the Corporation's capital stock. Persons may hold more than one office
except that no person may serve as both Executive Direcior and Secretary. Officers shall have the
authority and responsibilities given them by the Board of Directors, and each officer shall hold
office until his successor is elected and qualified, unless a different term is specified by the Board of
Directors.

ARTICLE IV: STOCK

Section 1. Transfer of Stock. The capital stock of the Corporation shaii be transferred

on the books of the Corporation by surrender of properly endorsed certificates therefor by the

holders thereof or their duly authorized attorneys-in-fact.

Section 2. Legend. The transferability of the stock of the Corporation shall be subject

to the following legend:

THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED
(THE "ACT"), OR ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAW. THE
SHARES HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH
A VIEW TO OR FOR RESALE IN CONNECTION WITH THE
DISTRIBUTION THEREOF. NO DISPOSITION OF THE SHARES MAY BE
MADE IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE ACT AND COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
SATISFACTORY TO THE CORPORATION TO THE EFFECT THAT SUCH
DISPOSITION IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND APPLICABLE

STATE SECURITIES LAWS.

ARTICLE V: PURPOSE

{D1302604.DCC/ 1 TN533-143}
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Section 1. Purpose. The primary purpose of the Corporation is to facilitate the

development of affordable housing in McMinn County, Tennessee.
ARTICLE VI: AMENDMENT

Section 1. Amendment of Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Corporation may be

amended or repealed, and additional Bylaws may be adopted, by action of the Board of Directors
or of the shareholders, but any Bylaws adopted by the Board of Directors may be amended or

repealed by the shareholders and any Bylaws adopted by the shareholders may be amended or

repealed only by the shareholders.

Vo
Dway&e’w . Barrett, Incorporator

Dct-®€ \\ 2022

{D1302604.D0C / 1 TN533-143)
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RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.
Minutes of Organizational Meeting
and
Consent Action of Incorporator

Celoloc ¢ 1) 2022

Pursuant to sections 48-12-105 and 48-12-106 of the Tennessec Business
Corporation Act, Dwayne W. Barrett, the Incorporator of RCM McMian Village, Inc., a Tennessee
corporation ("Corporation"), hereby takes the following actions by consentas of (2 /)] ,2022.

1. The Charter of the Corporation was filed with the Secretary of State of
Tennessee on  D¢Tq bl 1 ; 2001

2. The bylaws inserted in the minute book following these minutes, dated the
date hereof and executed by the incorporator, are adopted as the bylaws of the Corporation.

3. The specimen form of stock certificate inserted in the minute book following
these minutes and initialed by the Incorporator 1s adopted as the certificate representing the shares of
Common Stock of the Corporation.

4. The Incorporator of the Corporation, pursuant to Section 48-12-105 of the
Tennessee Business Corporation Act, wishes to offer shares of the Corporation's Common Stock for

sale. To carry out such wishes, 1,000 shares are hereby offered for sale.

5. A Subscription by Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc. to purchase 1,000
shares of the Corporation's Common Stock, for a total per share consideration of $.10 in cash, which
consideration is deemed adequate, a copy of which is inserted in the minute book following these
minutes, has been received by the Corporation and is hereby accepted.

6. The Board of Directors shall consist of the Board of Directors of Roseanne
Coleman Ministries, Inc., a Tennessee nonprofit corporation.

7. The application for an employer identification number on United States
Treasury Department/Internal Revenue Service Form S5-4, in the form inserted in the minute book

following these minutes, is approved. M\

Dwa_\,(né/ W. Barrett, Incorporator

{D1302604.D0C/ 1 TN533-143} .
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STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.
COMMON STOCK

RCM McMinn Village, Inc.
6640 Bethesda Amo Road
Thompsons Station, TN 37179-9213

Sir or Madam:

In accordance with an offer made to me, the undersigned hereby subscribes to 1,000 shares of the
Common Stock of RCM McMinn Village, Inc. ("Corporation") for the subscription price of $.10
per share, or a total of $100.00, to be paid in cash. I understand that any shares issued pursuant to
this subscription ("Stock") will be issued without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended ("Act"), in reliance upon the offering exemption contained in Section 4(2) of the Act and
that such reliance is based in part on my representations set forth below.

For the foregoing reasons, and to induce you to issue and deliver the stock to me, I represent

and warrant to you as follows:

{D1302604.DOC/ 1

(a) I have not offered or sold the Stock within the meaning of the Act;

(b) I am acquiring the stock for my own account for investment, with no
present intention of dividing my interest with others or of reselling or otherwise

disposing of all or any portion thereof;

(© I do not have in mind any sale of the Stock either currently or after
the passage of a fixed or determinable period of time or upon the occutrence or non-
occurrence of any predetermined event or circumstance;

d) I have no present or contemplated agreement, undertaking,
arrangement, obligation, indebtedness or commitment providing for, or which is
likely to compel, a disposition of the Stock;

G)] I am not aware of any circumstances presently in existence that are
likely to prompt a disposition of the Stock in the future;

63 The Stock was offered to me by the Corporation through direct
communication between myself and the Corporation and not through any

advertisement of any kind;

(g) The Corporation has given me access to (i) all information relating to
its capital structure and its business operations, and (ii) all additional information
that I have felt necessary to evaluate my contemplated purchase of the Stock. In this
regard I possess the financial and business experience in the area in which the

TN533-143} Ehin
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Corporation will be involved to make an informed decision to purchase the Stock;

(h) [ have the financial means to bear the economic risk of the
investment, which I hereby agree to make; and

) T represent that (i) 1 can bear the economic risk of losing my entire
investment, (ii) my overall commitment to investments which are not readily
marketable is not disproportionate to my net worth, and my investment in the Stock
will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive, (iii) I have adequate
means of providing for my current needs and personal contingencies and have no

need for liquidity in my investment in the Stock, (iv) 1 have such knowledge and

LI ~ 222

experience in financial and business matters that I am capable of evaluating the

merits and risks of the prospective investment or am relying on my own tax advisor
or purchaser representative in making this investment decision, and (v) the

objectives of the Corporation are compatible with my investment goals.

This letter also will confirm my understanding as follows:

{D1302604.D0C/ |

(@) The certificates for the Stock issued to me will bear the following legend:

THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE "ACT", OR ANY APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAW. THE SHARES HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR
INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO OR FOR RESALE IN
CONNECTION WITH THE DISTRIBUTION THEREOF.  NO
DISPOSITION OF THE SHARES MAY BE MADE IN THE ABSENCE
OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
ACT AND COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE
CORPORATION TO THE EFFECT THAT SUCH DISPOSITION IS IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE

SECURITIES LAWS.

and appropriate stop transfer instructions will be noted in the stock records of the
Corporation.

(b) I understand that (i) the Stock will be unregistered under the Act and
the applicable state securities laws, (ii) the Stock must be held indefinitely unless the
disposition thereof is registered under the Act and applicable state securities laws or
an exemption from registration is available, (iii) the Corporation is under no
obligation and has made no commitment to provide any such registration or to take
such steps as are necessary to permit the sale without registration, pursuant to Rule
144 under the Act or otherwise, (iv) if the Stock may be disposed of without such
registration in reliance on Rule 144 under the Act, such disposition can be made
only in limited amounts in accordance with the terms and conditions of such Rule,
and (v) if the Rule 144 exemption is not available, compliance with another
registration exemption will be required.

TN533-143}
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{¢)  The undersigned undersiands thal no commissioner of securities or
similar official of any state has made any finding or determination relaling to the
frimess for investment of the Stock. and thet no commissioncr of sccurities or
similar official of any stare has or will recommend or endurse the Stock.

The undersigned agrees not to transfor or assign this Stock Purchase Agreement of any
inteeest hercin

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersignald has exocutod this Steck Purchase Agreement as
of Ockakwer \] 2022,

ROSEAN]\E COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.
AV LIy
By:_ . i '-’3_\,.%4_4 1's W
-~ N, P i
J.,.‘ '\'Z"LY““"“J» Lot ipdw
1 \
Tide: VY M-“Tf )

Name:

The suliscription is red and
accepred asof __[Q I 20

RCM McMinn Village,

e W, Barrels, lncorporator

{DIIASEDOC L TNEAN34)
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RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.
Action of the Board of Directors

Dot (9 ,2022

Pursuant to section 48-18-202 of the Tennessee Business Corporation Act, the following action
is taken by consent on behalf of RCM McMinn Village, Inc. ("Corporation™) at a duly called
meeting of the Board of Directors, as certified by the Secretary, Diane B. Dawson:

1. The persons named below are elected to the offices set opposite their names until
their successors shall have been elected and shall qualify:

Name Office
RoseAnne Coleman Executive Director
Diane B. Dawson Secretary

2. The acceptance by Dwayne W. Barrett, as Incorporator on behalf of the
Corporation, of the subscription of Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc. to purchase 1,000 shares
of the Corporation's Common Stock, as described in the Minutes of Organizational Meeting and
Consent Action of Incorporator on Udkobec \\. 2022, is confirmed and approved in all respects,
and the Executive Director and Secretary are authorized and directed to execute and deliver to
such entity one or more certificates representing an aggregate of 1,000 shares of the
Corporation's Common Stock in exchange for, and upon receipt of the consideration stated in,
the subscription of the above-named subscribers.

3. The authority to sign and execute for the Corporation all checks, drafts, notes,
bonds, bills of exchange, and orders for the payment of money of the Corporation shall be vested
in the Executive Director, or any other officers of the Corporation.

4. The resolutions following these minutes of consent action on the printed form of
. relating to a depository bank account and to the officers of the Corporation
authorized to sign checks are incorporated by reference in their entirety into this consent action
and are ratified, confirmed, and approved in all respects.

5. The Corporation's fiscal year shall be the calendar year.
6. The attached resignation of the incorporator is accepted.

7. The Corporation is hereby authorized to act as the general partner of McMinn
Village, L.P.

{D1302604.D0C/ | TN533-143} .
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The undersigned, Diane B. Dawson, is the duly elected Secretary of the Corporation.
The Secretary hereby certifies and affinns that at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation held on /¢4 . 2022, in accordance with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated
§48-58-201 et seq., the above actions were taken by unanimous consent of the Directors.

WITNESS, by her execution hereof, the undersigned Secretary hereby certifies, attests and affirms
that the foregoing actions were taken by unanimous consent of the members of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation at the meeting held on &&/; /9 | 2022, and that such actions have not

been subsequently modified or rescinded.

Diane B, Dawson, as Secretary of
RCM McMinn Village, Inc.,
a Tennessee corporation .

{D1302604.D0C / | TN533-143) g
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RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.
Resignation of Incorporator
B E’Lo ,2022

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.
2

I hereby resign as the Incorporator of RCM McMinn Village, Inc., effective

.

Dw W. Barrett
Incorporator

immediately.

{D1302604.DOCI 1 TNS33-143} .
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RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.

Consent Action of the Sharchotders
OChgles §12022

Pursuant to section 48-17-104 of the Tennessee Business Corporation Act, Southeast
Cuornmunity Capital Corporation, as the sole sharcholder of RCM McMinn Vallage, Inc,, a
Tennessce comaralion, hereby rutifics and approves the bylaws as sdopted by the Incorporator snd
ratifics and approves all ather awsivns tuken by the Incorporator and the Board of Diroctors as
wimessed by the Minutes of Organizational Meeting and Consent Action of [ncarpozator dated sy of
exeber |\, 2022 and the Action of the Board of Directors dated as of Ddovec 19 . 2022

ROSI:ANNE C E’\val\ MINISTRIES, INC.

Bwv: {'F)“ p’h‘.é__{_, “,w\,..,_

’—W
Namg; 4"\ “\L&LN\*—- i i“-\\‘-&“ s

Tide: __':__5‘_{%; ‘l‘-“'\'

{B4302004.D0C ¢ 1 TIS33-143}
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RCM MCMINN VILLAGE, INC.

CORPORATE RECORD
S e
Common Shares Issued

Certificate No. of
No. Issued to Date of Issuance Shares Consideration
1 Roseanne Coleman 1S g! 1 , 2022 1,000 $100.00

Ministries, Inc.

{D1302604.DOC/ 1 TN533-143}
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Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury
- District Director

C - 1130
ATLANTAs GA 30301

Date: DEC 29 ‘\987 Emplayer Identification Number:
AE-13Z3178
Cantact Fersan:
LORETTA HAMILTON
RCSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIEE INC Contact Telephone Number:
PO ROX 120764 - {404). 3X1-0170
NASHVILLEs TN J721Z

Accounting Period Ending:
1Z2-21 ‘

Foaundation Status Classification:
507 (a) (1)

Advance Ruling Periocd Ends:
12-31-71

Caveat Applies:
Na

Dear Applicant:

Based on information supplieds and assuming your operations will be 4as
stated in your application for récognition of exemptions we have determined you
are exempt from Federal income tax under saection 501 (c) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Because ywou are a newly created organizationsy we are ot now making a
final determination of your foundation status under section 50%(a) of the Code,
Howevers we have determined that yeou can reasonably be expected to be a public-
ty supported arganization described in sections 509 (a) (1) and 170(b) (1) (A) (vi) .

Accordinglys you will be treated as a publicly supported organization:
and not as a private foundationy during an advance ruling perind. This
advance ruling perind begins on the date of your inceptinn and ends on the
date shown above.

Within 90 days after the end of yaur advance ruling petriody you must
submit to us information needed to determine whether you have met ¢he require-
ments of the applicable support test during the advance ruling perind. If you
establish that you have been a publicly supported organizationy you will be
classified as a saction 509 (a) (1) or B50P(a) (2) organization as long as you con-
tinue to meet the reguirements of the applicable support test. If you do not
meet the public support requirements during the advance ruling perindy you wil
be classified as a private foundation for future periods. Alsioy if you are
classified as a private foundationy you will be freated as a ptivate foundatin:
from the date »f your inception for putrposes of sections 507 (d) and 4940.

Grantors and contributors may rely on the determination that you are not
private foundation until 90 days after the end of your advance ruling period.

Letter 1{%%‘%)
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- g - . .
g " RS Department of the Tressiy
Intergal Revepue Service

P.0O. Box 2508 In reply refer to: 0248446486418
Cincinnati OH 45201 July 25, 2008 LTR 4168C EO
62-132315%8 000000 00 000
000186496
BODC: TE

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES INC
PO BOX 1191

- BRENTWOOD TN 37024-11921212
rel
28422

Emplover Identification Number: 62-1325198
Person to Contact: Mr. Rash
Tall Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour request of July 16, 2008, regarding vour
tax-exempt status.

OQur records indicate that a determination letter was issued in
December 1987, that recognized vou as exempt from Federal income tax,
and discloses that vou are currently exempt under section 501(ec)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code,

Our records also indicate vou are not a private foundation within the
meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because vou are described in
section(s) 509(a)(1l) and 170C(b) (1) CAY(v1).

Donors may deduct contributions to vou as praovided in section 170 of
the Code. Boequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts te vou or
for yvour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code.

If vou have any questions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.
Sincerely vours,
Prichule N Muthivaes

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations I

Exhibit B



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

Roseanne Coleman Ministries

Statement of Organizational Service to the Community

Through a strategic partnership with Friends Life Community, residents will have the
opportunity to participate in weekday programs that teach valuable life skills, provide social

connection, and support healthy habits that they can apply and carry over to their successful
routines at home.
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS

DECEMBER 31. 2024
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.
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@ bakertilly

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors

RoseAnne Coleman Ministries, Inc.
Thompson Station, Tennessee

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of RoseAnne Coleman Ministries, Inc. (the “Organization”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2024, and the related statements of activities,
cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc. as of December 31, 2024, and the changes in its net

assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Roseanne
Coleman Ministries, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc.’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available
to be issued.

-1-

Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, are members of the global network of Baker Tilly
International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities. Baker Tilly US, LLP is a licensed CPA firm that
provides assurance services to its clients. Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and its subsidiary entities provide tax and consulting services
to their clients and are not licensed CPA firms. g 2
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whethet, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

5,,4% //1,% (/.5/' LLF

Nashville, Tennessee
August 25, 2025
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2024

ASSETS
Cash $ 223,775
Furniture, fixtures and equipment, net 2,632
TOTAL ASSETS $ 226,407

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 4,805
Accrued expenses 2,342
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,147
NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 219,260
TOTAL NET ASSETS 219,260
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 226,407

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

=3 Exhibit B



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

SUPPORT - WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions $ 110,248
TOTAL SUPPORT - WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 110,248
EXPENSES

Program services 98,916
Supporting services:

Management and general 14,725
TOTAL EXPENSES 113,641
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (3,393)
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 222,653
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 219,260

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Salaries

Payroll taxes and benefits
Housing allowance
Accounting

Meals and entertainment
Printing and postage
Supplies

Education

General benevolence
Teiephone

Travel

Miscellaneous

Bank fees

TOTAL EXPENSES

Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

Supporting Services

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Management
Program and

Services General Total
$ 56,373 $ 6,264 62,637
4,533 504 5,037
21,000 - 21,000
- 6,910 6,910
1,306 - 1,306
- 43 43
7,713 - 7,713
249 - 249
2,429 - 2,429
3,615 - 3,615
1,697 - 1,697
- 200 200
- 805 805
$ 98,916 $ 14,725 113,641
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
used in operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of computer equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
DECREASE IN CASH
CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH - END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,

$

(3,393)

1,567

(945)

622

(2,771

(2,632)

(2,632)

(5,403)

229,178

$

223,775

Exhibit B



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATIONAL AND GENERAL

Ja PO |
uciierdi

Roseanne Coleman Ministries, Inc. (the “Organization™) is a nonprofit advocacy agency for
women, men and families in the Nashville, Brentwood and Franklin, Tennessee areas. Its mission
aims to serve the community by providing financial help for basic needs such as food,
clothing or other immediaic needs.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position and changes in net assets
of the Organization on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

Resources are classified as- net assets—without -donor restrictions--and- net - assets with- donor
restrictions, based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, as follows:

Nei asseis without donor restrictions: Net assets that arc not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be cxpended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization’s management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions may be perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. There are no
donor restrictions.

Donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.

When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to
net assets without donor restrictions in the Statements of Activities.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when control of services is transferred to customers, in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Organization expects to be entitled to in exchange for those products
and services. The Organization does not have any significant financing components as payment is
expected shortly after products or services are transferred to customers. Additionally, there is no
variable consideration. Costs incurred to obtain a contract are expensed as incurred when the
amortization period is less than a year.

-7- Exhibit B
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2024

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contributions and Support

A contribution is conditional if an agreement includes a barrier that must be overcome and either a
right to return of assets transferred or a right of release of a promisor’s obligation to transfer assets
exist. The presence of both a barrier and a right of return or right of release indicates that a recipient
is not entitled to the contribution until it has overcome the barrier(s) in the agreement. Conditional
promises to give are not recognized until the barrier(s) in the agreement are overcome.

Unconditional contributions of cash and other assets, including contributions receivable (unconditional
promises to give), are recorded as revenue based upon any donor-imposed restrictions on the date of
the donor's commitment or gift. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in
future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows.

The Organization records support and expenses for contributed services that require specialized skills
and would be purchased if not provided by the donor, at the estimated fair value of the services
received.

Cash

Cash consists principally of checking and savings account balances.

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are reported at cost at the date of purchase or at estimated fair value
at the date of gift to the Organization. The Organization’s policy is to capitalize expenditures with a
cost of $500 or more and an estimated useful life greater than one year. Depreciation is calculated by
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: five to seven years for
furniture and equipment.

Program and Supporting Services

The following program and supporting services are included in the accompanying financial
statcments:

Program Services - consists of servicing the community by providing financial help for basic
needs such as food, clothing or other immediate needs.

Supporting Services: Management and General - relates to the overall direction of the organization.
These expenses are not identifiable with a particular program or with fundraising but are indispensable
to the conduct of those activities and are essential to the organization. Specific activities include
organization oversight, business management, recordkeeping, budgeting, financing and other
administrative activities.
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2024

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Allocation of Functional Expenses

Expenses that can be directly attributed to a particular function are charged to that function. Certain
costs have been allocated among more than one program or activity based on objectively evaluated
financial and nonfinancial data or reasonable subjective methods determined by management.

The expenses that arc allocated include salaries and related expenses which are allocated on the
basis of estimates of time and effort.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Organization qualifies as a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, income taxes are not provided.

The Organization files a U.S. Federal Form 990 for organizations exempt from income tax.

Management performs an evaluation of all income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the
course of preparing the Organization’s income tax returns to determine whether the income tax
positions meet a “more likely than not” standard of being sustained under examination by the
applicable taxing authoritics. Management has performed its evaluation of all income tax positions
taken on all open income tax returns and has determined that there were no positions taken that do not
meet the “more likely than not” standard. Accordingly, there are no provisions for income taxes,
penalties or interest receivable or payable relating to uncertain income tax positions in the
accompanying financial statements.

Events Occurring After Reporting Date

The Organization has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between December 31, 2024,
and August 25, 2025, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, for possible
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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ROSEANNE COLEMAN MINISTRIES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2024

NOTE 3 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting
their use, within one year of the Statement of Financial Position, comprise the cash balance in the
amount of $223,775 as of December 31, 2024.

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization received 45% of its revenue from one donor for the year ended December 31,
2024.

The Organization maintains cash balances at financial institutions whose accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to statutory limits. At times, the Organization’s
deposits at financial institutions may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and management considers this to be a normal business
risk.

NOTE 5 - FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture, fixtures and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 2024:

Computer equipment  ° $ 2,632
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 26,900
29,532
Less: accumulated depreciation (26,900)
$ 2,632
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-SL
BETWEEN
THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,
TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH

THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as “Metro”, and Springboard Landings, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 9 Barnes Fund affordable housing units
located at 7986 Coley Davis Rd., hereinafter referred to as the “Project’. The Recipient’s grant
budget is incorporated herein by reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic
organization. -

A

Al

A2

A3

Ad.

A.b.

SCOPE OF PROGRAM:

Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subjectto a
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain affordability
requirements to encumber the Property and run with the land over a 40-year term
(“Affordability Period”). Terms defined in the Declaration shall have the same meanings
when used in this Agreement.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $1,000,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for
such purposes.

During the term of the Contract and the Affordability Period, Recipient or another qualified
nonprofit must maintain 51% ownership in the Project or in the general partner of the
Project.

(N0z81585,1) 1
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A.6. Requirements for Rental Projects:

a.

Tenants must be income-eligible at the time of initial occupancy, and Recipient must
certify all incomes annually and maintain a certified rent roll. In the event a tenant’s
income increases above the income-requirement for the unit, the tenant is not
disqualified from remaining in the unit. However, the tenant’s rent shall be adjusted
to the corresponding AMI level for the next lease term.

The Recipient will provide Metro with a management plan program oversight which
includes certification of the rents, utility allowances, and tenant incomes. The
Recipient shall also provide Metro an annual certification that Barnes rental
requirements are being met throughout the Affordability Period.

The Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and project for compliance with Barnes program
requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing tenant income calculations,
rent determinations, and utility allowances.

The Affordability Period applicable to both tenant income and maximum rents shall
commence on the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final
building within the project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the Affordability
Period will begin on the date of recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

Recipient shall not increase rents during the lease term. Such prohibition shall not
apply to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by
another federal, state, or local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting
from the grant funds.

During the Affordability Period, Recipient shali submit to Metro no later than July 15
of each year, an eviction report than includes the number of people evicted and the
reason for the eviction for the prior fiscal year (July 1-June 30).

Recipient shall post information on Fair Housing rights in the leasing office and make
information on Fair Housing rights available to tenants at least annually. Recipients
should endeavor to make information available to persons with Limited English
Proficiency.

At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant
application.

A.7.  Property Standards

All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient's
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient's grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

{Noz81585,1) 2
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2!

B.2.

B.3.

c.1.

C.2

C.3.

CRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered
by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan
Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete its obligations
under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution, Metro is authorized
to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated funds from the
organization.

Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has
paid the final invoice.

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event shaii the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) “Grant Award’. The Grant Budget,
attached and incorporated herein as part of Attachment B, details the project budget,
and the Grant Award shall constitute the maximum amount to be provided to the
Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient’s obligations hereunder. The Grant Budget
line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all
other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient.

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule

» Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.

« Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of
the Project.

{Noz81585 1} 3
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C.4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

c.8.

C.9.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process

* Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported
by appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

= Allinvoices shall be sent BFPayments@nashville.gov.

» Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.

* Finalinvoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council. Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. It
should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro's
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will promptly review,
and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to

{NO281585.1) 4
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payment.
C.10. Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project.

C.11. Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or eisewhere regarding the Project shall include the followin
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project s partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan

Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Bames Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the Metropolitan
Govemment of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O'Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

D.1. Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

D.2. Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

D.3. Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default" (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following written
notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which cannot
reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within such 30-
day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter does not within
a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of
such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient
violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have the right to immediately
terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to Metro any and all grant
monies for services or projects under the grant not performed as of the termination date.
The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds expended for purposes
contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of
any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

D.4. Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining
the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors,
the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be responsible for all
work performed.

D.5. Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount shall
be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation,
or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or
consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work contemplated or performed

{NO281585.1) 5
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D.6.

D.7.

D.8.

relative to this Grant Contract.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below may
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant
assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom they
have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board member
of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through the Metro
Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties include (whether
by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouss, parent (including stepparent), child (including
a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a
Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person
shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment
practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of applicable laws. The
Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shali post in
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of
nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any subcontractor
of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government for inspection and
copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government. Furthermore, said
documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan Government, to any
state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority may review, inspect and
copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to, all drawings, plans,
specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos
or other writings or things which document the grant project, its design and its construction.
Said records expressly include those documents reflecting the cost of construction,
including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant contract.
The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds
provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a periad of three (3) full years
from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of Recipient,
insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be subject to
audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its duly appointed
representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the standards outlined
in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient's activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this
Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro's duly
appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the affordability
period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial records, notes, and
other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the Metropolitan Office of
Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro’s representatives, upon request, during
{N0281585 1) 6

Exhibit C



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

normal working hours.

D.9. Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred during
the previous fiscal year (July 1 = June 30). Said report shall be in a form provided by
Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report
as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the activities funded under this
Grant Contract,

D.10. Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant,
condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be held to be
waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the appropriate parties
as indicated on the signature page of this Grant. .

D.11. Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

D.12. Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

-
(93]

independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other party

contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

@

D.14. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a.  Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract,
and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any
failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or
independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
labor laws and minimum wage laws.

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient from
any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that
the Recipient may provide.

c. Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure to
fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d. Recipient's duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.

NZB1385:1} 7
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D.15.

D.16.

D.17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22,

D.23.

D.24.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event Metro
prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro's attorney fees
and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding
between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the
terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and
all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the
parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be construed
as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain all
permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereatter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and
its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the benefit
of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties
hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this
contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall be assigned or
transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of Metro. Any such
assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice
of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent
to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

{No281585.1) 8
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D.25.

D.26.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard,
rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other
particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or
to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any
payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor
under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person
associated therewith, as an Inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach
of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of
ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or
suspension from participation in Metropolitan Government contracts.

Commupications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shali be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BamesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient:

Elizabeth Grapentine, Executive Director
179 Bell Forest Circle, Suite 301
662-590-3304
elizabeth@springboardlandings.org

D.27. Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Reciplent, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

b. if any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
{N0281585.1} 9
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agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

c. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan
Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
s0 signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

(ND281585,1} 10
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPROVED AS TO PRO

Metropolitséin Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF

CLINMC.

Signed by:
‘ Kbbg!./“\‘}w
62377A2ABTA2469..

JUIN DY) RYYY, IGO0

Depariment of Finance

A ainedny " ~S TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

E‘Mq Amos
d 122CHADA0EDA4DA,,

Assistant metropolitan Attomey

APPROVED AS TO RISK AND

A1 IS AR,

[Edagm&“

GEB04BF12FDTEIC..

Director of Risk Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Meftropolitan Clerk

RECIPIENT:

Springboard Landings, In
By: WM azjm
Title: bxfmlh\/& D\(é:a]l?j/

Swom to and subscribed to before me a
Notary Public, this?? 'day of _55%%4
2025,

[Notary Pq lic seal]

Wiy,
\-\.E'- -‘AN(J&";
’\Co__- 5rmE }29’

Notary Public

_ﬁmw

My Commission expires 5/ 20 / Zﬂ ZS

Exhibit C



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work
Contract Number: 2025-R15-SL

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Springboard Landings, inc.
Project Locatlon: 7986 Coley Davis Rd.
Project Type: Rental New Construction
Grant Award: $1 ,600,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Totai Number of Units in Development: 24

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

S 30% Al 31-60% Aivi §1-80% AN Total

80°
3 6 N/A 9

Deeply Affordable Housing: Recipient's commitment to make 3 units available to households with
incomas < 30% AMI is not contingent upon the award of project-based vouchers.

Project Summary: This new affordable housing development will provide a much-needed permanent
housing option for adults with developmental disabilities in Davidson County. The community will include 19
one-bedroom apartments dedicated to residents with developmental disabilities and five units reserved for
individuals without disabilities, promoting an inclusive and integrated living environment. Each unit will
feature a full kitchen, living area, and washer/dryer connections to support independent living. The
building’s design emphasizes community and support, with shared common areas on both floors for group
dining, social gatherings, recreation, and peer engagement. Am ple space is also designated for on-site
supportive programs and services. This innovative housing modei bridges the gap between congregate
care and independent market-rate housing, addressing a critical unmet need and fostering a vibrant,
inclusive community for adults with developmental disabilities.
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ATTACHMENT B
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Grant Budget
Sources of Funds Amount Percentage of Total Status (Secured/Pending)
Barnes HousIng Trust Fund S 1,000,000 12% Pending (This Application
Developer Equity S 2,300,000 28% Secured
Private Lender S 1,325,000 16% Secured
Federal Home Loan Bank AHP S 1,364,635 17% Pending (July Application)
State Grants (THTF) S 600,000 7% Pending (Submitted)
Other Local Grants {Barnes R13) S 1,491,605 18%) Secured
Total Sources S 8,081,240 100%|
Percentage of Total Percentage of Barnes
Uses of Funds Amount Project Costs Request
Acquisition Costs S 630,000 8% 0%
Construction Costs Total $ 6,547,816 B1% 100%
Site Work [3 519,500
Vertical Construction S 4,525,955
Contingency S 485,023
Contractor Fees S 437,629
Taxes, Insurance, and Permits S 579,709
Soft Costs Tatal S - 664,038 8% 0%
Architecture & Engineering S 346,100
Legal and Permitting S 100,000
Third Party Reports S 21,500
Financing Costs S 59,436
Builder's Risk Insurance S 75,000
Property Taxes ] 10,000
Soft Cost Contingency S 52,003
Developer Fee 3 201,385 2% 0%
Reserves (Operating/Replacement) 3 38,000 0.5% 0%|
Total Uses $ 8,081,240 100%] 100%|
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages are based on the Bames Fund grant award.
Draw # % of Grant Milestone
1 15% Upon receipt of the building permit, proof of builder’s risk

insurance with Metro Nashville listed as a lien holder.
Documented predevelopment costs.

a* 25% Rough grading, footing, and foundation complete.
3* 25% Framing and roofing compiete.
4 25% Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in,

inspected, and passed by Metro Codes.

5* 10% Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro-Codes.

*Note: Draw requests 2-5 must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted with
Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid on a
reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents
The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1. Acopy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

2. Acopy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended:;

3. Astatement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan government;

4. The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Attachment A);

5. The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

6. A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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Springboard Landings
Charter

Exhibit C



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291 DA4D-41EB SBZC B10°D_7'D_I.3'9_52AC 650695

FILED-

ﬂf@ﬂm For Office {/se Qnly
o |

T ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT ZH
' ¢ TO THE CHARTER flopzc 29 ap g
lmm of Stute = AH S: 2
Corporate Filings (Nonprofit)
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue N JERC
6" Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower I._ KIARY o o To|
Nashville, TN 37243

Corporate Control Number (1f Known)

Pursuant to the provisions of section 48-60-105 of The Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, the undersigned
corporation adopts the following articles of amendment to its charter:

285R " LER9

1,

2. Please check the block that applies:
Eﬂtmendmenl is to be effective when filed by the secretary of state.
[J Amendment is to be effective, (month, day, year)
(Not to be later than the 90th day after the date this document is filed.) If neither block is checked, the amendment will be
effective at the time of filing.

3. Please insert any changes that apply:
a. Principal address: S 5 ST 25 o

b. Registered agent:
¢. Registered address:

“(Siree) [(#77) (State/County) {Zip Code)
d. Other M&:—&‘M

4. The corporation is a nonprofit corporation.

5. The manner (if not set forth in the amendment) for implementation of any exchange, reclassification. or
cancellation of memberships is as follows;

6. The amendment was duly adopted on IA-)g-)0 (month, day, year)
by (please check the block that applies):

EThei Incorporators without member approval, as such was not required.
[ The board of directors without member approval, as such was not required.
[J The members

Bymte which of the following statements applies by checking the applicable block:

Additional approval for the amendment (as permitted by §48-60-301 of the tennessee nonprofit corporation
act) was not required.

[ Additional approval for the amendment was required by the charter and was obtained, —

BILL GRRRETT Davidson County
é EE @ Trans: 'rzoneoeuoo CHARTER
- < - Recvd: 01/20/11 13:50 7 pgs
igner’s Capacity Signature Fees:8.00 Taxes:0.00

. : AR A
AR ngmfmiﬁﬁﬁ;‘ 20110120-0005680

§5-4416 Filing Fes: $20 RDA 1678 l
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Springboard Landings, Inc 80-0650695
RECEIWED  rorOffics Use Only
$¢n “f% STATE CF THRNESSEE
ek CHARTER 20100CT -8 |PH 1242
of Btat (Nonprofit Corporation)
Corporate Filings TRE PARGETT
312 Rosa L. Avenuc SECRETARY |UF STATE

6% Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower
Nashville, TN 37243

" The undersigned acting as incorporator(s) of a nonprofit corporation under the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation
Act adopts the following Articles of Incorporation.

1. The name of the corporation is:%ulzw

=

2. following sentences by checking one of the two boxes in cach sentenee:

This corporation is & lic benefit corporation /[[] mutual benefit corporation.

Pleass complete all oti%;_

This corporation is & @'i‘l‘?gious corpnra[gm/d not a religious corporation.

This corporation will [Jhave members / (Mot have members.

. Thegam andeleaddmol‘lhe nt

ALT]

List gy nangye mplaeaddress of

C u.nrvl @
¥ B ’

>

- K

The corporation is not for profi.

If the document is not to be effective upon filing by the Secretary of State, the delayed effective date and time are:
Date . Time (Not 10 exceed 90 days.)

8. [nsert here the provisions regarding the distribution of assels upon dissolution:

— Upon the dissolution of the corporation, assets shall be distribuled Tor one or more exempt purposes within the
meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or
shall be distributed to the federal govemment, or to a state or local govemnment, for a public purpose. Any such assets not so
disposed of shall be disposed of by a Court of Competent Jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the
corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

|

- 9. Other provisions:

_d‘fZ;é-wf: A0)0

Signature Date

P

Incorporator’s Name (typed or printed}
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AMENDMENT TO
. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION e 29 i g
OF s il . 2‘
Springboard Landings, Inc.

We, voluntarily amend the Articles of Incorporation pursuant to and
under the provisions of the Tennessee Non-Profit Corporation Act:

ARTICLE I
| Purpose of the Corporation

The purpose of Springboard Landings, Inc. is to provide a Christian
based supportive living environment for high functioning adults with mild
intellectual disabilities and/or developmental disabilities who cannot live
independently.

The corporation is formed exclusively for charitable purposes,
including the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt
organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
or the corresponding provisions of any future tax code or laws.

ARTICLE 11

Operations Prohibitions

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit
of, or be distributable to, its members, trustees, officers, or other private
persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to
pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments
and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in these Articles of
Incorporation. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be
the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence
legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in
(including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political
campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.
Notwithstanding any other provision in these Articles of Incorporation, the
corporation shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on (a)
by a corporation recognized as exempt from Federal income tax under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section
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of any future Federal tax code, or (b) by a corporation, contributions to
= which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Cote;, 29 AH % o)
or the corresponding section of any future Federal tax code. '

ARTICLE I

Dissolution Clause

Upon the dissolution of the corporation, its assets shall be distributed for :?;
one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the =
Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future Federal
tax code. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by a court
of competent jurisdiction of the county in which the principle office of the
corporation is located, exclusively for such exempt or public purposes or to
such organization or organizations, as such court shall determine, which are
organized exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE IV

Conflict of Interes
Paragraph 1 Purpose

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect Springboard
Landings, Inc.’s interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction
or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director
of the organization or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction.
This policy is intended to supplement, but not replace any applicable state or
federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit or
charitable organizations.

Paragraph 2 Definitions
1. Interested Person — Any director, principal officer, or member of a
committee with governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or

indirect financial interest, as defined below.

2. Financial Interest — A person has a financial interest it the person
has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family (a) an

Exhibit C



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC
Springboard Landings, Inc  80-0650695
Page 2 Partili  Section 1 and Section 2b

The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if
- appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to mvestfgdté £29 A1 9: o |
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

ehe (it K ¥ 74
After exercising the necessary due diligence, the governing board or

committee shall determine whether the organization can obtain, with ol
reasonable efforts, a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a <
person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest. £
R

(M}

[f a more advantageous transaction or arrangement which does not i

involve a conflict of interest is not reasonably attainable under the
circumstances, the governing board or committee shall determine by a
majority vote of the disinterested directors or committee members whether
the transaction or arrangement is in the organization’s best interest, and
whether it is fair and reasonable. Inconformity with the above
determination, the governing board or committee shall make its decision as
to whether to enter in the transaction or arrangement.

If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe
a member has failed to disclose actual or potential conflict of interest, it shall
inform the member of the basis of such belief and afford the member an
opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, after hearing the
member’s response and after making further investigation, as warranted by
the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the
member failed to disclose an actual or potential conflict of interest, it shall
take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Paragraph 4 Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the governing board and all commiitees with the board
delegated powers shall contain (a) the names of the persons who disclosed or
otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an
actual or potential conflict of interest; (b) the nature of the financial interest,
(c) the governmg board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of
interest in fact existed; (d) the names of persons who were present for
discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement; (e) the
content of the discussions, including any alternatives to the proposed
transaction or arrangement, and (f) a record of any votes taken in connection
with the proceedings.
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Paragraph 5 Compensation

A voting member of the governing board, who receives comf:“éfrq;fa't-i'i}%? Al 9 21

directly or indirectly, from the organization for services, is precluded from
voting on matters pertaining to that member’s compensation. Azt o

A voting member of any committee, with jurisdiction over
compensation matters, who receives compensation, directly or indirectly,
from the organization for services is precluded from voting on matters
pertaining to that member’s compensation.

No voting member of the governing board or any committee which has
jurisdiction over compensation matters, and who receives compensation,
directly or indirectly, from the organization, either individually or
collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee
regarding compensation.

Paragraph 6 Annual Statements

Each director, principal officer, and member of a committee with
governing board delegated powers, shall annually sign a statement which
affirms such person has received a copy of the conflict policy, has read and
understands such policy, has agreed to comply with the policy, and
understands that organization is charitable and that, in order to maintain its
federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which
accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Paragraph 7 Periodic Reviews

To ensure the organization operates in a manner consistent with
charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its
tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic
reviews shall, at a minimum, include (1) whether compensation
arrangements are reasonable, are based on competent survey information,
and are the result of arm’s length bargaining; (2) whether partnerships, joint
ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the
organization’s written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable
investment or payments for goods and services, advance charitable purposes
and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit, or an excess
benefit transaction.
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Paragraph 8 Use of Qutside Experts BT 29 py g 21

When conducting the periodic reviews, as provided for in Section 7, the.
organization may, but need not, use outside advisors. If the outside experts = -
are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its responsibility

for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

ARTICLE V
Board of Directors

The affairs of Springboard Landings, Inc. shall be managed by a Board
of Directors and by such officers as shall be described in the By-Laws of the
Corporation.

ARTICLE VI
Limited Personal Liability of the Directors

No person who is a director or officer of the Corporation shall be liable
to the Corporation for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a
director. However, this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of
a director for any breach of a director’s duties of loyalty, due care or
confidentiality to the Corporation, for acts or omissions not in good faith or
which involve intentional misconduct or a known violation of the law.

gg#ﬁ»&h/ﬁx )0 @

Incurporator's Signature
]

COoprA

Incorporator’s Name (Printed)
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ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the orgaqization

= has a transaction or arrangement, (b) a compensation arrangement with'fierg 4.
organization or with any entity or individual with which the organization has
a transaction of arrangement, or (c) a potential ownership or investment
interest in, or compensation arrangement with any entity or individual with

which the organization is negotiating a transaction or arrangement. 3

3:2]

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under )
Section 3 Part 2, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of o
interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides that a =
conflict of interest exists.

3. Compensation - Compensation includes direct or indirect
remuneration as well as bonuses, retirement plan payments, unreimbursed
allowances, certain portion of life insurance premiums, gifts, and favors that
are not insubstantial.

Paragraph 3 Procedures

1 TMstrr +a NMianlnoa _ T Annnantian with nnvu antiinl Ae sntantial
1. L7uly LU L/idvivow Ll VULILIVWLIUIL YYilll dily duiudl U pRjuviiual

conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the
financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts
to the members of the board of directors and members of committees which
have governing board delegated powers and which are considering the
proposed transaction or arrangement.

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists - After the
disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any
discussion with the interested person the board or committee shall leave the
governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict
of interest is discussed and voted upon.

3. Procedure for Addressing the Conflict of Interest — An interested
person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee
meeting, but after the presentation, she/he shall leave the meeting during the
discussion of, and vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the
potential conflict of interest.
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC. BYLAWS

ARTICLEI
NAME AND LOCATION

A. The name of the corporation shall be Springboard Landings, Inc.

B. The place of office location is 179 Belle Forest Circle, Suite 301 Nashville, TN 37221, or any other
location as designated by the Board.

ARTICLEII
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

THE MISSION To provide adults who need a limited amount of support an option for independent living in a
residential community-centered environment.

OUR VISION To create unique apartments for adults with mild developmental disabilities that provide a mix
of independent and communal living. The apartments will open into a common area to encourage social
interaction and community, thus preventing isolation. A small number of units will be filled by support
volunteers who will offer guidance and help build a community environment.

This arrangement will empower our residents to live independently, enhance the quality of life for our
residents, and allow the development of a permanent extended famity.

ARTICLE III
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. POWERS. The Corporation’s Board of Directors shall have all powers necessary to manage the business and
affairs of the Corporation. The acts of the Board of Directors shall not conflict with the purposes and restrictions
on the Corporation as set forth in the Artictes of Incorporation.

B. ELIGIBILITY. Board members (Directors) shall have a strong personal connection with and
understanding of the mission of Springboard Landings, Inc. and demonstrate a commitment to its purpose.

C. MEMBERSHIP. The Board of Directors shall consist of no less than five (5) and no more than fifteen (15)
voting members. The Executive Director will be an Ex Facto Director and any such other officers, agents,
or employees as may be deemed necessary by resolution of the Board of Directors. Ex officio Directors
will have no voting privileges.

D. PROHIBITED RELATIONSHIPS. No person may serve as a voting member on the Corporation’s Board
of Directors who seeks to derive profit or financial gain as a result of activities undertaken by the
Corporation or any of its affiliated entities. Voting members of a resident’s family may never hold the
majority number on the Board.

E. ELECTION.
a. Directors shall be elected by a vote of the majority of all voting members of the Board. At an

election for directors, each voting member shall have the right to cast one vote for each director
position up for election.
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b. Until the Board has a full complement of fifteen (15) voting members, or in the case of a mid-
term vacancy, appointment of new Board members may take place at the next established board
meeting. Appointed Board members will then have a prorated board term.

c. The process for nominations for director positions shall be open to all Active Directors.
Nominations for director positions shall be made by the Governance Committee and shall be
approved by the Board.

d. The Governance Committee shall vet all candidates and make a recommendation to the board. A
list of the recommended candidates and their qualifications for office, shall be delivered to all
members of the Board no less than seven (7) and no more than thirty (30) days in advance of the
election.

e. Elections may be either by open voting or by secret ballot, as the Board may choose.

F. TERMS OF OFFICE. The regular term of office for voting members of the Board of Directors shall be
three (3) years. The terms of the directors shall be staggered so that, at any annual corporation meeting, no
more than one third of the director positions shall be up for election except when there are less than six (6)
directors, no more than two (2) shall be up for election in any year. Once the Board of Directors reaches
capacity, fifteen (15) members, Directors shall not serve more than two consecutive terms in office except
those directors serving two years or less during their first term. This period of service will not apply for
purposes of the consecutive terms. A Director who has served the maximum number of consecutive terms
shall not be eligible for re-election for one year.

G. VACANCIES. Vacancies for unexpired terms on the Board of Directors may be filled by a majority vote

of the Board at any regular or special Board meeting following the same nomination process outlined
above.

H. REMOVAL. A director may be removed from office by the corporation’s Board upon a showing of good
cause. Unexcused absence from half or more of the Board meetings in any twelve month period, or
unexcused absence from any three consecutive Board meetings shall be considered good cause. Natice of
intent to remove must be delivered to the director at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which such
action is to be taken. The notice shall state reasons for removal. A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the directors
present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be required for removal.

I. MEETINGS.

a. The corporation’s annual meeting shall be held in February of each year, at a specific date, time,

and place as shall be fixed by the Board, for the purpose of electing new Board members and for

the transaction of other business as may come before the meeting. If the election of the Board of

Directors shall not be held on the day designated for the annual meeting, or at any adjournment

thereof, the Board shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting as soon thereafter as

conveniently may be convened.

b. There shall be no less than four (4) regular board of directors’ meetings in any given year.

c. Written notice, confirming notification by email, of the place, day, and hour of the annual meeting
shall be delivered to all members of the Board no less than ten (10) days in advance of the
meeting.

d. A regular meeting of the Board shall be held within thirty (30) days following the annual
corporation meeting. The Board may provide by resolution the time and place for the holding of
additional regular meetings without other notice than the resolution.

e. Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the Chairperson or by not less

than one third of the members of the Board. The persons calling or requesting the special meeting

may fix the date, place, and time of the special meeting.
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£ Notice of a special meeting stating the purpose of the meeting shall be given not less than two (2)
days nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting by email and/or written notice delivered
personally or mailed to each member at his or her residence.

g. A quorum shall consist of one half of the voting members of the Board of Directors. If less than

one half are present at a meeting, a majority of the voting members present may adjourn the

meeting from time to time without further notice. Except where stated otherwise in the Articles of

Incorporation or these Bylaws, the act of a simple majority of voting members present at a

meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board.

h. Each voting Director shall have one (1) vote. No Director may assign another Director his or her
vote by proxy.

J. COMPENSATION. The Board of Directors shall serve without compensation.

K. RESIGNATION. A Director may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to the Chairperson
or Secretary of the Corporation. The resignation shall become effective upon acceptance by the
Chairperson or Secretary.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

Officers. The corporation shall have a President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and any other officers as
shall be elected by the Board. The officers shall be chosen from among the voting members of the Board, and
shall serve without compensation. The President may appoint, with Board approval, persons to assist the
Secretary and/or Treasurer in the performance of their duties, and such persons are not required to be members
nf the Roard.

A. President — The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; plan, in consultation
with the Executive Director and other officers, the agenda for all Board meetings; and appoint, with
the confirmation of the Board, the members of all committees. The President, in conjunction with the
Executive Director, shall bear responsibility of distributing the agenda and relevant financial
statements to all Board members at least seven (7) days prior to the next Board meeting.

B. Vice-President — The Vice-President shall assist the President in the carrying out of his or her duties;

carry on the duties of the President in the President’s absence; and become the President in the event
of the President’s resignation ar inability to serve.

C. Secretary — The Secretary shall ensure that, at every meeting of the Board of Directors, minutes are
taken and votes are recorded, and that the minutes are kept in a book maintained for that purpose;
ensure that the notices for all Board meetings are sent, where required by these bylaws; ensure that the
official records of the Corporation are properly maintained, except such as shall be in charge of the
Treasurer, including all minutes, policy decisions, original copies of the Articles of Incorporation and
Bylaws, and all amendments thereto, and a current list of Board members in good standing;
authenticate records of the Corporation as necessary; assist the President with correspondence and
ensure that a file of such correspondence is properly maintained; and in the absence of the President
and Vice-President call meetings of the Board to order, and proceed with the election of a President
Pro Temp.

D. Treasurer — The Treasurer shall oversee all policies and procedures related to all financial matters of
the corporation; ensure that full and accurate accounts are maintained of all monies of the Corporation
received or disbursed; ensure that all monies and valuables of the corporation are in the name of or to
the credit of the Corporation, are deposited in such depositories as the Board shall designate; and
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ensure the preparation and distribution of regular financial reports and a yearly budget to the Board of
Directors for their examination and approval.

E. Other Duties — Each officer shall have other duties and powers as may be assigned by the Board or the
Chairperson.

F. Terms of Office — The officers of the Corporation shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the
regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any other time should an office be vacated. The
regular term of office for officers shall be one year. Officers shall assume office immediately upon
election, and shall serve until a successor has been selected.

G. Elections - Officers shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the annual meeting. Elections may
either be by open voting or by secret ballot, as the Board may choose.

H. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of
Directors upon a showing of good cause, by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the Directors present at
any regular or special meeting whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be
served thereby. Notice of intent to remove must be delivered to the officer at least ten (10) days prior
to the meeting at which such action is to be taken. The notice shall state reasons for removal.

I. Vacancies — A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, or inability to serve, shall

be filled for the unexpired portion of the term of office by a vote of the Board at a duly constituted
meeting, a quorum being present.

J. OTHER OFFICERS; AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES. This corporation may have such other officers,
agents, and employees as may be deemed necessary by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLEV
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board of Directors shall appoint a full-time salaried Executive Director of the Corporation. The Executive
Director shall have broadly acknowledged authority for the day-to-day operation of the Corporation under the
supervision of the Board of Directors which employs him/her. The Executive Director shall have the authority
to fulfill the mission and vision of the organization through the directives of the Board of Directors. He/she is
responsible for the overall administration and management of the Corporation. The Executive Director shall be
a non-voting ex-officio member of the Board of Directors and all Corporation committees, including the
Executive Committee. Except for voting, the Executive Director shall have the same rights as other members
of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES

A. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
a. Composition — The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the Corporation, the
Executive Director, and such other members as the President may appoint and the Board may
approve.

b. Powers — During intervals between meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee shall

have and exercise all the powers, privileges and prerogatives of the Board except those
expressly reserved to the Board by the Articles of Incorporation, by these bylaws, or by
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resolution of the Board. The Executive Committee shall report any such exercise of its power
at the next meeting of the Board.

c. Limitations. - The Executive Committee shall not have the authority of the Board relating to

the following matters: amending, altering, repealing, or restating these bylaws or the Articles

of Incorporation; electing, appointing, or removing any member of the Executive Committee

or any director or officer of the Corporation; authorizing the sale, lease, exchange or

mortgage of all of the property or assets of the Corporation; authorizing the voluntary

dissolution of the Corporation or revoking proceedings therefore; adopting a plan for the

distribution of assets of the Corporation; or amending, altering, or repealing any resolution of

the Board of Directors that by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered, or

repealed by the Executive Committee.

B. OTHER COMMITTEES

a. Standing Committees - The President, subject to Board approval, shall appoint the members
of the Corporation’s standing committees on an annual basis and at other times as may be
appropriate. The Board may from time to time create additional standing committees;
combine, dissolve or divide existing standing committees; or revise the purposes of the
responsibilities of the standing committees.

b. Fundraising Committee. The purpose of the Fundraising Committee shall be to ensure that
revenue-raising strategies are commensurate with the mission and plans of the organization.
Its responsibilities shall include the development, review and implementation of fund-raising
plans and maximizing Board assistance and participation in the implementation of those
plans. Responsibilities shall include production of a regular newsletter, informational
brochures and media releases.

c. Finance Committee. The purpose of the Finance Committee shali be to ensure that the
organization operates in a fiscally responsible manner. Its responsibilities shall include
proposing an annual budget to the Board for approval; keeping the Board aware of the
organization’s financial condition and progress in comparison with the approved budget;
overseeing cash management and reviewing estimates for capital expenditures; and ensuring
that necessary audits and tax reports are produced for Springboard Landings.

d. Governance Committee. The purpose of the Governance Committee is to establish
operational policies and procedures for the administration and Board of Directors of
Springboard Landings. Its responsibilities shall include periodically reviewing and, when
appropriate, revising the organization’s policies, subject to ratification by the Board and
revising policies to comply with applicable changes in tocal, state, and federal regulations.

deemed necessary may from time to time be authorized by the President, with approval of the
Board.

C. Membership — The President, with Board approval, shall appoint the Chairpersons and members of all

standing and Ad hoc committees. Each committee shall include at least one voting member of the
Board and may include as many non-members as the President and Board deem appropriate. The
President of the Corporation and the Executive Director shall be ex-officio members of all
committees.

D. Procedures — Committees shall meet upon request of the respective Chairperson or the President of the
Corporation. The committee Chairperson shall be responsible for presiding over committee meetings,
conducting the committee’s business, ensuring that a written record of all of the committee’s activities
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is maintained, and presenting the committee’s recommendations to the Board at the next regularly
scheduled Board meeting,

Quorum - A majority of the committee members must be present to make up a quorum. Action may
be taken without a meeting by any committee by a written consent signed by all committee members.

ARTICLE VII
FINANCIAL MATTERS

A. BOOKS AND RECORDS The Board of Directors of Springboard Landings, Inc. shall cause to be
kept: (1) records of all proceedings of the Board of Directors; and (2) such other records and books of
account as shall be necessary and appropriate to the conduct of the corporate business. All corporate
records shall be open to inspection upon written request at reasonable times to directors of the
Corporation or their representatives for any purpose reasonably related to their capacity as a director.
Requests must be in writing, signed, and if authorizing a representative, shall state the specific terms
of the authorization. The right to inspect shall include the right to make extracts or copies, the cost to
be borne by the requester. A request to inspect shall be delivered to the President, Secretary or other
officer or agent designated by the Board not less than five business days before the date specified in
the request for inspection. The term “corporate records” shall not be construed to include the
personnel records of employees, volunteers or other agents, or records relating to individual residents.

B. FISCAL YEAR The fiscal year of the corporation shall be determined by the Board of Directors

C. CHECKS, DRAFTS, AND OTHER MATTERS All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of
money and all notes, bonds, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of Springboard
Landings, Inc. shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents, employee or employees of
this Corporation and in such manner as may from time to time be determined by resolution of the
Board of Directors. Resolved, that the Treasurer, Board President, Executive Director, and Founder
are authorized to sign checks and submit payment requests online via electronic banking.
Expenditures greater than $2,500 shall require prior approval by vote of the full Board. Individual
transactions related to initiatives approved by the Board shall be deemed to have prior approval.
Resolved that two (2) signatures from either the Board President and/or the Treasurer and/or the
Chairman of the Finance Committee are authorized to sign for financial transactions involving
contracts, loans, mortgages and lines of credit greater than $2,500 authorized by the Board of
Directors.

D. GIFTS By resolution, the Board of Directors may accept on behalf of Springboard Landings, Inc. any
contributions bequest, or device for any purpose of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VIII
WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any Director of Springboard Landings, Inc. under the
provisions of these Bylaws or any of the corporation laws of the State of Tennessee, such notice may be
waived in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before, at, or after the time
stated therein or before, at, or after the meeting.

ARTICLE IX
AUTHORIZATION WITHOUT A MEETING
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Any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors (or at a meeting of any committee, as the
case may be) may be taken without a meeting when authorized in writing, signed by all Directors (or by all of
the committee members, as the case may be).

ARTICLE X
INDEMNIFICATION

To the extent permitted by law, any former or present director or officer of Springboard Landings, Inc. who
was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any proceeding, wherever and by whomever brought by
reason of his or her former or present official capacity as a director or officer of this Corporation, or his or her
official capacity as a director, officer, employee, partner, trustee or agent of another corporation partnership,
joint venture, trust or other organization, while serving at the request of this corporation, shall be indemnified
by this corporation against expenses, including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, and amounts paid in
settlement or actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with such proceeding. Such
reimbursement shall be made in advance of the final disposition of the proceeding to the extent provided by
law. Except as expressly provided herein, no other person shall be indemnified by the corporation for expenses
incurred in connection with a proceeding to which such person was or is a party or is threatened to be made a
party by reason of the former or present official capacity of such person.

ARTICLE XI
CORPORATE BYLAWS AND AMENDMENTS

The Board of Directors may amend Springboard Landings, Inc. Articles of Incorporation, as from time to time
amended or restated, and these Byiaws, as from time to time amended and restated, to inclide or omit any
provision, which could lawfully be included or omitted at the time such amendment or restatement is adopted.
Any number of amendments, or an entire revision or restatement of the articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, either
(1) may be submitted and voted upon at a single meeting of the Board of Directors and be adopted as such a
meeting, a quorum being present, upon receiving the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the total
number of directors of this Corporation, or (2) may be adopted, in accordance with Article IX hereof, by a writing
signed by all of the directors of Springboard Landings, Inc. Adopted
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INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

- Date: MAY 14 2011 80-0650695

DLN:
17053102312031
SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS INC Contact Person:
412 GENERAL GEORGE PATTON RD GARY MUTHERT ID# 31518
NASHVILLE, TN 37221 Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500
Accounting Period Ending:
December 31
Public Charity Status:
170(b) (1) (A) (vi)
Form 990 Required:
Yes
EBffective Date of Exemption:
October 8, 2010
Contribution Deductibility:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
No

'

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax

- under section 501(c) (3) of the Intermal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Organizations exempt under section 501(c) (3) of the Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundations. We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code secticn(s) listed in the heading of this
letter.

Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an
exempt organization.

Sincerely,
gt n {'-’N .-3—‘,'-.—-/:! )

s I- =F -\ > ..\:’.' -“T e 3 -
—rld ‘;} i P Qg

Lois G. Lermer
Director, Exempt Organizations

Enclosure: Publication 4221-PC

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
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$SPRINGBOARD
RPRINGBQAR

IARdle Forest Crde, Suite 301
Nestwille TN37Z21

Statement of the Nature and Extent of the Organization's Program

Springboard Landings is creating a new affordable housing development that will provide a much-
needed permanent housing option for adults with developmental disabilities, integrated into a
supportive community. Located at 7986 Coley Davis Road in the Bellevue neighborhood of
Nashville, the 24-unit building will include nineteen units dedicated to adults with developmental
disabilities ("Landers") and five units for residents without disabilities, including a salaried Resident
Services Coordinator. The design includes ample common spaces for supportive programs and
activities to foster a vibrant community for all residents.

The project aims to offer both independence and community for residents who often face limited
earning potential and social isolation. Using a "bring your own services” model, Springboard
Landings will connect residents with outside services, and staff will collaborate with providers to
offer onsite programming. Social activities will also be planned to combat isolation and build
community. This innovative project will fill a gap between shared living settings and independent
market-rate housing, addressing a criticai need for members of the Nashville-Davidson County
community living with developmental disabilities.
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JSPRINGBOARD
ANDINGS, INc.

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024

TRENT J. MITCHELL

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
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TRENT J. MITCHELL

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
4007 DELAWARE AVENUE, SUITE 203
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37209
STATE OF TENNESSEE PERMIT: 4914
P: 615-234-0432 www.trentmitchell.cpa
Member:

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Tennessee Society of Certifled Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Springboard Landings, Inc.
Nashville, Tennessee

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Springboard Landings, Inc. (a monprofi¢

organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2024, and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Springboard Landings, Inc. as of December 31, 2024, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am required to be independent of
Springboard Landings, Inc. and to meet my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficien¢
and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

€error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Springboard Landings, Inc.’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

uditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal comtrol.
Misstatements are considered material if there is substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, [:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professionai skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or ervor, and design and perform audit procedures respomsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Springboard Landings, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Springboard Landings, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other things, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant findings, and certain internai control related matters |
identified during the audit.

e
7 /
W
TrenfJ. Mitchell

Certified Public Accountant

Nashville, Tennessee
March 18, 2025
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,024,518
Investments: marketable securities 2,332
Prepaid expenses 7,808
Total current assets 2,034,658
Property
Land 760,003
Total assets $ 2,794,661
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,951
Total liabilities 3,951
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 2,790,710
With donor restrictions E
Total net assets 2,790,710
Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,794,661

See independent auditor's report and the
accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Without Doner With Dener
Restrictions  Restrictions Total
Public support and other revenue:
Contributions $ 151,023 $ - $ 151,023
Investment income 95,344 - 95,344
Special event revenue, net direct costs 6,841 - 6,841
Net assets released from restriction 5,534 (5,534) -
Total support and revenue 258,742 (5,534) 253,208
Expenses: supporting services
Management and general:
Payroll expense 80,965 - 80,965
Professional and consulting fees 17,500 - 17,500
Office rent 5,400 - 5,400
Employee benefits 4,133 - 4,133
Property tax 3,951 - 3,951
Software 3,286 - 3,286
Marketing and promotion 2,482 - 2,482
Maintenance 2,480 - 2,480
Insurance 2,008 - 2,098
Meeting expense 1,273 - 1,273
Bank and credit card fees 659 - 659
Office supplies and expense 656 - 656
Dues and subscriptions 614 - 614
Total expenses: supporting services 125,497 - 125,497
Increase in net assets 133,245 (5,534) 127,711
Net assets, January 1, 2024 2,657,465 5,534 2,662,999
Net assets, December 31, 2024 $ 2,790,710 $ - $ 2,790,710

See independent auditor's report and the
accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from donors $ 149,986

Interest and dividends received 97,696

Cash disbursed for general supporting expenses (132,389)
Net cash provided by operating activities 115,293

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from the sale of marketable securities 14,255
Investment in land (52,260)
Net cash used for investing activities (38,005)

Cash flows from financing activities: none

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 77,288
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1, 2024 1,947,230
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2024 $ 2,024,518

Reconciliation of increase in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Increase in net assets $ 127,711
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Contributed marketable securities (15,410)
Loss on sale of marketable securities 1,155
Unrealized loss on marketable securities 1,197
Effect on cash from changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses 3,095)
Accounts payable 3,735
Total adjustments (12,418)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 115,293

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities: none

See independent auditor's report and the
accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Naiure of Activities

Springboard Landings, Inc. (“the Organization”) is a 501(c)(3) public not-for-profit entity. The
Organization was formed to provide adults with developmental disabilities above the
intellectual disability range an option for independent living in a residential community-
centered atmosphere with a limited amount of support. The Organization operates in
Nashville, Tennessee and the majority of its activities are conducted in Nashville and the
surrounding area. The Organization is supported through donor contributions.

As of December 31, 2024, the Organization had not commenced program operations. The
Organization purchased land in Nashville in 2023 where it intends to develop a community
residence that would serve the Organization’s mission. The Organization contracted with an
architectural firm to draft plans that would meet the needs of its target beneficiaries. The
Organization would need to secure additional financial resources through funding or financing
to develop the property. There is a risk that the Organization will not be able to obtain the
financial resources necessary to develop the property.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
promulgated in the United States of America for not-for-profit entities. Accordingly, the
financial statements reflect aii significant receivabies, payabies, and viher liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according
to two classes of net assets that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use
that are placed by its donors: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor
restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to or are no
longer subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed
time and/or purpose restrictions.

When a donor’s restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner specified by
the donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial
statements by reclassifying the net assets from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 1 — Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable market values are recorded at
fair value. Unrealized and realized gains and losses on these investments are reported in the
statement of activities. Securities are held in a custodial investment account administered by a
financial institution.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Organization’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. The
recorded values of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair values based on their short-term
nature.

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles provide a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Assets and liabilities that are required to be recorded at fair value in the
statement of financial position are categorized based on the inputs to valuation techniques as
follows:

Level 1. These are assets and liabilities where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets in an active market that the Organization has the ability to access. As of
December 31, 2024, these assets include common stocks and amounted to $2,332.

Level 2. These are assets and liabilities where values are based on the following inputs:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets.

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.

Inputs which are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.

e & & o

Level 3. These are assets and liabilities where inputs to the valuation methodology are
unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

As of December 31, 2024, the Organization had no assets or liabilities valued using Level 2 or
Level 3 inputs.

The fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level
of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

7-
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 1 — Continued
Leases

The Organization reports leases under ASC 842, which requires the Organization recognize
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a lease term of more than twelve
months. As of December 31, 2024, the Organization did not have a lease in effect with a term
greater than twelve months and has therefore not recorded a right-of-use asset or lease liability
related to any lease.

Contributed Services

The Organization, at times, may receive services donated in carrying out the Organization’s
purpose and these services could be substantial. No amounts have been reflected in the financial
statements for those services since they do not meet the criteria for recognition.

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair
values at the date of the donation.

Compensated Absences

-

Employees of the Organization may be entitled to paid vacation, personal, and sick days off. It
is impraciical to estimate the amount of compensation for future absences, and accordingly, ne
liability has been reported in the accompanying financial statements. The Organization’s
policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when paid to employees.

Income Tax Status

The Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Internal Revenue Code
Section 501(c)(3) and Tennessee Code Annotated Sec. 67-4-2007, respectively.

Note 2 — Management’s Review of Subsequent Events

The Organization’s management has performed a review of subsequent events through the date of
the review report, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3 — Liquidity and Availability

The Organization has financial assets of $2,026,825 available within one year of the balance sheet
date to meet cash needs for general expenditures. The amount consists of cash and cash equivalents
of $2,024,518 and marketable securities of $2,332. None of the financial assets are subject to donor
restrictions or other contractual restrictions that would make them unavailable for general
expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date.
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 4 — Concentration of Credit Risk
The Organization maintains cash and cash equivalent balances that may, at times, exceed federally

insured limits. At December 31, 2024, the Organization’s cash and cash equivalents exceeded
insured limits by $1,847,800.

Note 5 — Investments: Marketable Securities

The following are the major categories of security investments measured at fair value at December
31, 2024 based on Level 1 valuation inputs.

Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Loss
Common stocks 3 9.869 $233 S (1.537)

Note 6 — Land Held for Future Development and Use

The Organization holds a parcel of land intended for future development and use in the
Organization’s mission of providing adults with mild developmental disabilities a mix of
independent and communal living. As of December 31, 2024, the total carrying value of the land,
including capitalized costs, was $760,003. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Organization capitalized architectural fees of $52,260 to the land cost. Land is considered a non-
depreciable asset.

Management evaluates the land for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. As of December 31, 2024, management has not identified
any indicators that would necessitate evaluating the land for impairment.

Note 7 — Grant
On September 17, 2024, the Organization received a $1,491,605 grant from the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville through the Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission. The grant is

intended to reimburse certain costs related to developing housing units with specific affordability
requirements.

As of December 31, 2024, the Organization has not incurred any costs that would qualify for

reimbursement by the grant and has therefore not recognized any contribution revenue related to
the grant for the year ended December 31, 2024,

Note 8 — Lease

The Organization leases office space from an unrelated party on a month-to-month basis. Total
rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2024, amounted to $5,400.

-9-
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SPRINGBOARD LANDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 9 — Transactions with Board Members

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Organization received contributions totaling $56,456
from board members and related parties.

-10-
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-TCC
BETWEEN
THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,
TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH

THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
TRINITY COMMUNITY COMMONS

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as “Metro”, and Trinity Community Commons, hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 22 Barnes Fund affordable housing
units located at 204 E. Trinity Lane, hereinafter referred to as the “Project’. The Recipient's
grant budget is incorporated herein by reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic

organization.
A. SCOPE OF PROGRAM:
A1.  Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a

A2

A3.

A4

AS.

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain affordability
requirements to encumber the Property and run with the land over a 40-year term
(“Affordability Period"). Terms defined in the Declaration shall have the same meanings
when used in this Agreement.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $2,178,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council's authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for
such purposes.

During the term of the Contract and the Affordability Period, Recipient or another qualified
nonprofit must maintain 51% ownership in the Project or in the general partner of the
Project.

{N0281585 1) 1

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

A.B.

AT.

Requirements for Rental Projects:

a.

Tenants must be income-eligible at the time of initial occupancy, and Recipient must
certify all incomes annually and maintain a certified rent roll. In the event a tenant's
income increases above the income-requirement for the unit, the tenant is not
disqualified from remaining in the unit. However, the tenant’s rent shall be adjusted
to the corresponding AMI level for the next lease term.

The Recipient will provide Metro with a management plan program oversight which
includes certification of the rents, utility allowances, and tenant incomes. The
Recipient shall also provide Metro an annual certification that Barnes rental
requirements are being met throughout the Affordability Period.

The Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and project for compliance with Barnes program
requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing tenant income calculations,
rent determinations, and utility allowances.

The Affordability Period applicable to both tenant income and maximum rents shall
commence on the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final
building within the project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the Affordability
Period will begin on the date of recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

Recipient shall not increase rents during the lease term. Such prohibition shall not
apply to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by
another federal, state, or iocal program with respect to the tenant or units benefiiting
from the grant funds.

During the Affordability Period, Recipient shall submit to Metro no later than July 15
of each year, an eviction report than includes the number of people evicted and the
reason for the eviction for the prior fiscal year (July 1-June 30).

Recipient shall post information on Fair Housing rights in the leasing office and make
information on Fair Housing rights available to tenants at least annually. Recipients
should endeavor to make information available to persons with Limited English
Proficiency.

At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient’s grant
application.

Property Standards

All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient’s
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient's grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

{NO281585.1) 2
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B.1.

B.2,

B.3.

CA1.

C.2

C.3.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered
by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan
Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete its obligations
under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution, Metro is authorized
to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated funds from the
organization,

Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has
paid the final invoice.

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed Two Milllon One Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand Dollars
($2,178,000) “Grant Award”. The Grant Budget, attached and incorporated herein as
part of Attachment B, details the project budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute
the maximum amount to be provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's
obligations hereunder. The Grant Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all
applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be
incurred by the Recipient.

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule
e  Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.
e Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the

Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of

{N0281585.1} 3
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C4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

c.8.

c.e.

the Project.
2) Construction Grant Draw Process
» Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according tothe
directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported
by appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

+ Allinvoices shall be sent BFPayments@nashville.gov.

i, YO AU R, R 1]
e dld payirierit snai

 Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council.- Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. It

should detail the cutcomes of the activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro’s
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will promptly review,

{N0281585.1} 4
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C.10.

C.11.

D.2.

D.3.

D.4.

D.5.

and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to
payment.

Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project.

Recognition. Any sighage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Barnes Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O’Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default” (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following written
notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which cannot
reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within such 30-
day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter does not within
a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of
such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient
violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have the right to immediately
terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to Metro any and all grant
monies for services or projects under the grant not performed as of the termination date.
The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds expended for purposes
contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of
any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining
the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors,
the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be responsible for all
work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount shall
be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation,

{N0281585,1) 5
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D.6.

D.7.

D.8.

or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or
consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work contemplated or performed
relative to this Grant Contract.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below may
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant
assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom they
have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

Covered Persons inciude immediate famiiy members of any empioyee or board member
of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through the Metro
Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties include (whether
by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including stepparent), child (including
a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a
Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person
shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment
practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of applicable laws. The
Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscfimination and shall post in
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of
nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any

designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any subcontractor
of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government for inspection and
copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government. Furthermore, said
documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan Government, to any
state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority may review, inspect and
copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to, all drawings, plans,
specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos
or other writings or things which document the grant project, its design and its construction.
Said records expressly include those documents reflecting the cost of construction,
including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant contract.
The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds
provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years
from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of Recipient,
insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be subject to
audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its duly appointed
representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the standards outlined
in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient's activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this
Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro's duly
appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the affordability
period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial records, notes, and
{N0281585 1} 6
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D.9.

D.10.

D.11.

D.12,

D.13.

D.14.

other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the Metropolitan Office of
Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro's representatives, upon request, during
normal working hours.

Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred during
the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form provided by
Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report
as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the activities funded under this
Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant,
condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be held to be
waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the appropriate parties
as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other party
contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a.  Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract,
and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any
failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or
independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
labor laws and minimum wage laws.

b.  Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient from
any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that
the Recipient may provide.

c.  Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure to
fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

{N0281585.1) 7
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D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

o]
[\
[\¥]

D.23.

D.24.

d.  Recipient's duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event Metro
prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro's attorney fees
and costs at ail stages of the iitigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding
between the parties refating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the
terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and
all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the
parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be construed
as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain all
permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and
its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the benefit
of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties
hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this
contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall be assigned or
transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of Metro. Any such
assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice
of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent
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D.25.

D.26.

to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard,
rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other
particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or
to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any
payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor
under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person
associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach
of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of
ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or
suspension from participation in Metropolitan Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro!

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient;

Zach Lykins

204 E. Trinity Lane Nashville, TN 37207
901-356-0297
Zach@trinitycommunitycommons.org

D.27. Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or madification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
{NG281588.1) 9
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any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cocperative
agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

c. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date.-This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan

Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.

{NO281585.1} 10
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ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work
Contract Number: 2025-R15-TCC

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Trinity Community Commons
Project Location: 204 E. Trinity Lane, Nashville
Project Type: Rental New Construction

Grant Award: $2,178,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units in Development: 22

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by income Target:

< 30% AMI 31-60% AMI 61-80% AMI Total
6 16 0 22

Deeply Affordable Housing: Recipient's commitment to make 6 units available to households with
incomes < 30% AMI is not contingent upon the award of project-based vouchers.

Permanent Support Housing: Recipient will designate all 22 units for Permanent Support Housing (PSH)
and agrees to accept referrals from the Coordinated Entry System (CES) and to utilize the Housing First
approach as defined by the Office of Homeless Services. Recipient's commitment to PSH is not contingent
upon the award of project-based vouchers or upon the award of funding for supportive services. Recipient
will provide supportive services substantially in the form and manner as described in its Round 15
application.

Project Summary: This project will create 22 units of newly constructed affordable housing dedicated to
families transitioning from homelessness, coupled with on-site supportive services to ensure long-term
housing stability. Safe Haven Family Shelter (SHFS) will provide comprehensive wraparound services
tailored to each family, supporting pathways to stability, self-sufficiency, and growth. In addition to
residential units, the development will include the renovation of the historic church sanctuary, transforming
it into a flexible multipurpose space for community programs, events, and supportive programming. The
site will also feature thoughtfully designed outdoor areas for gathering, community gardening, and play—
fostering a welcoming and restorative environment for children and families. This initiative embodies a
holistic, family- centered approach to addressing homelessness and promoting long-term well-being.
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ATTACHMENT B
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Grant Budget
Sources of Funds Amount Percentage of Total Status
(Secured/Pending)
Barnes Housing Trust Fund 2,178,000 17%
Developer Equity / Deferred 1,222,831 8%
Developer Fee Secured
Private Lender 2,189,923 17% Secured
Low-Income Housing Tax 3,553,386 27%
Credits investor Secured
(LIHTC)/etc.
Federal Home Loan Bank/etc. 1,500,000 11% Pending
Other Local/State Grants 900,000 7% Secured
Owner Land Contribution 1,500,000 11% Secured
Tota! Sources 13,044,140 100%
Uses of Funds Amount Percent of Total
Barnes Award Barnes Funding

Funding Amount
Acquisition Costs 1,530,000 0% -
Construction Costs
Site Work 0% -
Vertical Construction 7,431,324 100% 2,178,000
Contingency 616,000 0% -
Soft Costs
Architecture & Engineering 479,000 0% -
Legal and Permitting 329,000 0% .
Total Developer Fee 1,906,436 0% -
Third Party Reports 28,000 0% -
Financing 209,309 0% -
HFA Fees 118,682 0% -
Other Soft Costs 214,000 0% -
Reserves 182,388 0%
(Operating/Replacement) J
Total Uses 13,044,140 100% 2,178,000
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages are based on the Bames Fund grant award.
Draw# % of Grant Milestone
1 30% Reimbursement of acquisition costs
2 15% Documented pre-development costs
3* 15% Rough grading, footings and foundation complete
4* 15% Framing and roofing complete
5* 12.6% Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in,
inspected, and passed by Metro Codes
6* 12.5% Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro Codes

*Note: Draw requests 3-6 must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspeclor contracted with
Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid on a
reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents
The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1. Acopy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

2. A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,

3. A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan government;

4. The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Attachment A);

5. The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropalitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

6. A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described In Metro Code stibsection 5.04.070(E).

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

CHARTER
OF
TRINITY COMMUNITY COMMONS

A Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation

ARTICLEI. NAME
1.1 The name of the corporation is Trinity Community Commons (the
“Corporation”).
ARTICLE ll. PURPOSES

2.1 The Corporation is a nonprofit corporation under the Tennessee Nonprofit
Corporation Act. The Corporation is a public benefit corporation under Tenn. Code Ann.
§ 48-52-102(a)(2).

2.2 The Corporation is organized and operated exclusively for exempt
purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

as now in effect or as it may be amended in the future (the “Code”). The specific
purposes for which the Corporation is formed are:

(a) Educational purposes, including providing literacy and other educational services to
the public;

(b) Charitable purposes, including assisting underserved populations, promoting an
atmosphere of inclusion, and creating opportunities for people to gather and grow in the

Trinity Lane neighborhood of Nashville, Tennessee; and

(c) Any other lawful purpose(s) consistent with the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE lll. MEMBERS

3.1 The Corporation shall not have members.
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ARTICLE IV. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

4.1 The Corporation is prohibited from directly or indirectly participating or
intervening in a political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to a political candidate.
The Corporation shall not, as a substantial part of its activities, carry on propaganda or

otherwise attempt to influence legisiation.

ARTICLE V. USE AND DISPOSITION OF ASSETS

5.1 The property of the Corporation is irrevocably dedicated to exempt
purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, and no part of the net income or assets
of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any director, officer, or other private
person. Upon the winding up or dissolution of the Corporation, its residual assets after
the satisfaction of the Corporation’s debts and liabilities shall be distributed to a nonprofit
fund, foundation, or corporation that is organized and operated exclusively for exempt
purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

ARTICLE VI. REGISTERED AGENT
6.1 The Corporation’s initial registered agent is Nate Paulk and the address of
the initial registered office is 508 Des Moines Drive, Hermitage, TN 37076. The office is
located in Davidson County.
ARTICLE VII. INITIAL PRINCIPAL OFFICE
7.1 The Corporation’s initial principal office is located at 204 East Trinity

Lane, Nashville TN 37207.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have signed these Articles of Incorporation and acknowledge
the same fo be my act.

Signed: /(—c,—ﬁ-/\/" Date: 9/4/18

Nate Paulk, fncwﬁbraror
508 Des Moines Drive
Hermitage, TN 37076
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BYLAWS
OF
TRINITY COMMUNITY COMMONS

A Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation

ARTICLEI
NAME

The name of the corporation is Trinity Community Commons (the “Corporation™).
ARTICLE I
PURPOSES

The Corporation is organized and operated exclusively for exempt purposes within the meaning of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or as it may be amended in the

future. Its specific purposes are:

(a) Educational purposes, including providing literacy and other educational services to the public;

(b) Charitable purposes, including assisting underserved populations, promoting an atmosphere of
inclusion, and creating opportunities for people to gather and grow in the Trinity Lane neighborhood of
Nashville, Tennessee; and

(c) Any other lawful purpose(s) consistent with the provisions of this Article.

The Corporation is a public benefit corporation under Tennessee law

ARTICLE 111
OFFICES

The principal office of the Corporation shall be located in Tennessee. The Corporation may also have
offices at such other places as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate or as the purposes
of the Corporation may require.

Bylaws - Trinity Community Commons
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ARTICLE IV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers

The Board of Directors (the “Board™) shall direct the affairs of the Corporation and may exercise all

powers of a corporation as provided by applicable law, the Charter, and these Bylaws.

Section 2. Number and Term

The number of Directors of the Corporation shall be between 3 and 12. The exact number may be
determined by the Board. Directors shall serve a term of 2 year(s) and until successors are elected and
qualify. Directors may serve unlimited consecutive terms, contingent upon completion of annual
discernment process and review.

Section 3. Election

The Directors of the Corporation shall elect their successors by a plurality vote.
Section 4. Removal

A Director may be removed with or without cause by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of ali Directors
then serving.

Section 5. Resignation

A Director may resign at any time by providing written notice to the Board. Resignation shall be effective
upon the delivery of notice unless the notice provides that it will be effective at a later time or upon the
occurrence of an event.

Section 6. Vacancies

The Directors may fill any vacancy on the Board, including a vacancy caused by an increase in the
number of Directors.

Section 7. Action of the Board

The Board may act at a meeting in accordance with Article V. If the Directors unanimously agree to act
without a meeting, the Board may act if (a) the number of Directors that would be required to authorize
the action at a meeting (b) deliver their signed consent to the Corporation, describing the specific action,
and (c) the consents are filed with the minutes of the Corporation.

Bylaws - Trinity Community Commons
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Section 8. Compensation

Directors will not receive compensation for their service as Directors, but may receive reasonable
compensation for services rendered in other capacities. Directors may receive reimbursement for expenses
actually and reasonably incurred (a) on behalf of the Corporation or (b) in the course of performing
Director duties.

ARTICLE V
BOARD MEETINGS

ection 1. Regular Meetings

The Board may hold regular meetings at times determined by the Board or scheduled by the President.
Section 2. Special Meetings
The President or any two (2) Directors may call a special meeting of the Board.

tion 3. Meeting Location Rem articipation
The Board may hold its regular and special meetings at any designated location. Any or all Directors may
participate in a meeting by telephone or any other means of communication that allow all participating
Directors to simultaneously hear each other. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in

person at a meeting.

Section 4. Notice

Regular meetings may be held without notice. Notice of the date, time, location, and means of remote
communication for special meetings shall be delivered to each Director at least seven (7) days in advance
of the meeting. Notice need not specify the purpose of or business to be transacted at the meeting, except
where a purpose of the meeting is: (a) to remove a director; (b) to amend the Charter or Bylaws, in which
case the notice must indicate this and provide a summary or text of the proposed amendment; or © to vote
on indemnification, distributions, merger or conversion, sale of assets other than in the ordinary course of
business, or dissolution of the Corporation.

Notice must be in writing unless oral notice is reasonable under the circumstances and not prohibited by
law or these Bylaws. Notice may be delivered by any reasonable method, except that the Director must
affirmatively consent to receive notice by electronic transmission. Directors may revoke their consent to
electronic notice at any time, and consent shall be deemed revoked if the Corporation becomes aware that
it has been unable to deliver two consecutive electronic notices.
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Section 5. Waiver of Notice

A Director may waive notice of a meeting by delivering, before or after the meeting, a written and signed
waiver that is filed with the records of the Corporation.

A Director’s participation in a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice, unless the Director (a)
promptly objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting, and (b) does not

subsequently vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.

Section 6. Quorum

The presence of a majority of the Directors then serving shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at a meeting.

Section 7. Voting

Each Director shall have one vote. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the vote of a majority
(more than 50%) of Directors participating in a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action

of the Board.

A Director is deemed to consent to action taken at a meeting unless (a) the Director promptly objects to
the holding or transacting business at the meeting; (b) the Director’s dissent or abstention is entered into
the minutes of the meeting; or (c) the Director delivers notice of dissent or abstention to the presiding
officer before adjournment or to the Corporation immediately after the meeting.

ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS OF THE BOARD
Section 1. Gener:

The officers of the Board shall consist of a President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officer(s) as
the Board may deem advisable.

Section 2. Election
The officers shall be elected from among the Directors by a plurality vote. The same person may hold
more than one office, except that a single person may not simultaneously serve as both President and

Secretary. Officers holding two positions shall not execute, acknowledge, or verify any instrument in
more than one capacity.

Section 3. Term

Bylaws - Trinity Community Commons

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

An officer shall serve for a term of two year, and until a successor is elected and qualifies.

Section 4. President

The President shall preside at and conduct all meetings of the Board. Unless and until an executive
director of the Corporation is appointed and hired, the President shall have all powers and duties of an
executive director and shall be responsible for the daily management of the Corporation’s activities. The
President shall have authority to sign and execute, in the name of the Corporation, all deeds, mortgages,
bonds, contracts, and other instruments to be executed on the Corporation’s behalf.

Section cretar

The Secretary shall (a) keep accurate records and minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and actions of the
Board and Board Committees; (b) make available minutes of the previous Board meeting and distribute
them in advance of each Board meeting; (c) deliver all notices of meetings to those persons entitled to
vote at such meetings; (d) maintain the minutes and a current listing, with contact information, of the
Directors at the principal office of the Corporation; and (e) authenticate records of the Corporation. The
Secretary shall generally perform all duties incident to the office of secretary and such other duties as may
be assigned by the President or the Board.

Section 6. Treasurer

The Treasurer shall ensure there is timely and adequate management of financial resources and reporting
to enable the Board to monitor the Corporation’s finance resources. The Treasurer shall perform, or
ensure proper procedures for the performance of, the following duties: (a) keep and maintain full and
accurate books and records of account of the Corporation; (b) provide an account of all transactions and
financial statements to the Board upon request; (c) receive and give receipts for monies due to the
Corporation; (d) deposit all monies and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in
such banks or other depositories as may be designated by the Board; () disburse the Corporation’s funds
as the Board may request; (f) advise the Board of any significant financial matters that require action by
the Board; and (g) generally perform all duties incident to the office of treasurer and such other duties as
may be assigned by the President or the Board.

If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of the duties of his or
her office in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board shall determine, the cost of which

shall be borne by the Corporation.

Section 7. Other Officers

Other officers may be appointed by the Board and shall perform such duties as may be specified in
writing by the Board or by the officers given authority over them.

Section 8. Compensation
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Officers may receive reasonable compensation, as determined by the Board, for their services as Officers.
Officers may receive reimbursement for expenses actually and reasonably incurred (a) on behalf of the
Corporation or (b) in the course of performing officer duties.

Section 9. Removal

The Board may remove any officer with or without cause. The Board may authorize any officer to remove
subordinate officers. Removal shall not prejudice the contract rights of any officer.

Section 10. Resignation
An officer may resign at any time by providing written notice to the Board. Resignation shall be effective
upon the delivery of notice unless the notice provides that it will be effective at a later time or upon the

occurrence of an event.

Section | 1. Vacancies

The Board may fill a vacancy in any office, including a vacancy caused by the creation of a new office.

Pat B nI ¥4

ARTICLE Vil
COMMITTEES

Section 1. Board Committees

The Board may by resolution create and appoint members to one or more Board Committees to perform
such duties as the Board may determine. Board Committees shall consist exclusively of one or more
Directors. The Board may delegate any of its powers to Board Committees except the powers to (a)
authorize distributions; (b) approve a merger or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of
the Corporation’s assets; (c) elect or remove Directors or fill vacancies on the Board or Board
Committees; or (d) adopt, amend, or repeal the Charter or Bylaws.

Section 2. Advisory Committees

The Board may by resolution create and appoint members to one or more Advisory Committees to advise
the Board on any matters relating to the purposes of the Corporation. Members of Advisory Committees
need not be Directors.

Section 3. Term of Committee Members

Each committee member shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed by the Board at any
time with or without cause.
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Section 4. Rules

Committees shall operate in accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 7 and Article V
pertaining to meetings, notice, quorum, and voting, except that the Board shall have discretion to establish
alternative rules for any or all Advisory Committees.

Section 5. Committee Dissolution

The Board may dissolve any committee with or without cause. A Board Committee may only be
dissolved by a majority vote of all Directors then serving.

ARTICLE VIII
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND STAFF

Section 1. Executive Director

The Board may appoint an executive director. The Board may delegate duties and customary authorities
to the executive director, including the appointment of other staff. The executive director shall be subject
to hire and termination by the Board. Other staff appointed by the executive director shall be subject to
hire and termination by the executive director.

Section 2. Ex Officio Status

The executive director shall be an ex officio Director and officer of the Corporation. The executive
director shall have the right to attend all Board meetings but may not vote on Board matters in his or her
capacity as executive director. As an ex officio officer of the Corporation, the executive director is bound
by the same fiduciary obligations under Tennessee law and these Bylaws as officers of the Board.

ARTICLE IX
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

The Board shall adopt a conflict of interest policy that covers Directors, officers, and staff. The conflict of
interest policy should identify the types of conduct or transactions that raise conflicts of interest concerns,
set forth procedures for disclosure of actual or potential conflicts of interest, and provide for review of
individual transactions by the disinterested Directors. A quorum for the Board’s approval of a conflicted
interest transaction must consist of at least two (2) disinterested Directors.

ARTICLE X
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
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Section 1. Indemnification Generally

Except as otherwise provided by law or this Article X, indemnification under this Article shall cover
judgments, penalties, fines, settlements, and reasonable expenses, including attorney’s fees, actually
incurred by a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation in connection with a proceeding to

which the individual was made a party due to his or her service as a Director, officer, employee, or agent
of the Corporation.

Section 2. Mandatory Indemnification

The Corporation shall indemnify any Director who (a) has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, or
(b) is immune from suit under applicable law.

Section 3. Permissible Indemnification

The Corporation may indemnify any Director, officer, employee, or agent, so long as the indemnified
party acted in good faith and reasonably believed (a) in the case of conduct in the individual’s official
capacity, that the conduct was in the Corporation’s best interest, and (b) in all other cases, that the
conduct was not opposed to the Corporation’s best interest.

The Corporation may not indemnify any Director (a) who is found liable to the Corporation, (b) who 1s
found liable for receiving an improper personal benefit; (c) for any breach of the Director’s duty of
loyalty; (d) for an unlawful distribution; or () for conduct in bad faith, intentional misconduct, or a
knowing violation of law.

Section 4. Advances

The Corporation may advance reasonable expenses to an indemnified party if (a) the individual provides a
written statement of good faith belief that the required standard of conduct for indemnification is met, or
that the individual is immune from suit; (b) the individual provides an executed promise to repay any
advance if it is ultimately determined that the individual is not entitled to indemnification; and (c) the
Corporation determines that the known facts do not prevent indemnification.

Section 5. Authorization

The Board must authorize any indemnification under this section by (a) a majority vote of a quorum
(whether or not the Directors comprising the quorum are parties to the proceeding), (b) if a quorum
cannot be obtained, by a designated committee consisting solely of two (2) or more Directors who are not
parties to the proceeding, or (c) any other method permitted by applicable law.

Section 6. Insurance
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The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any current and former Director,
officer, employee, or agent against liability asserted against the individual due to his or her position with
the Corporation.

ARTICLE XI
CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND GIFTS

Section 1. Contracts

The Board may authorize any officer(s) or agent(s) of the Corporation to enter into any contract or
execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation. Such authority may
be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks

The Board may designate by resolution the officer(s) and/or agent(s) authorized to sign checks, drafts,
orders for the payment of money, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the

Corporation.
Section 3. Deposits

All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited to the credit of the Corporation in such banks or other
depositories as the Board may select.

Section 4. Gifts

The Board or its designee may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or
devise for the charitable purposes of the Corporation. The Board shall use and distribute all such
contributions according to the specific purposes and conditions that were agreed to by the donor when the
contribution was received, except where the express written permission of the donor or the donor’s heirs
or assigns has been obtained to do otherwise.

ARTICLE XII
RECORDS, REPORTS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

Section 1. Books and Records

The Corporation shall keep the following records at its principal office: (a) correct and complete books of
the Corporation’s accounts and transactions; (b) meeting minutes and resolutions of the Board and Board
Committees; (c) all versions of and amendments to the Charter and Bylaws; (d) the names and home
addresses of all current Directors and officers; and (e) the most recent annual report filed with the

Bylaws - Trinity Community Commons

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB3952AC

Secretary of State. A Director may inspect and copy the books and records of the Corporation at any
reasonable time.

Section 2. Financial Reporting

The Corporation shall produce and distribute the financial and other reports required by a nonprofit

corporation under Tennessee law and an exempt organization under the Internal Revenue Code.
Section 3. Electronic Communications

Except as otherwise specified by applicable law or these Bylaws, any written document may be provided
by electronic transmission. Electronic transmission means any form of communication, not directly
involving the physical transmission of paper, that creates a record that (a) is suitable for the retention,
retrieval, and reproduction of information, and (b) may be retrieved in paper form by the document’s
recipient through an automated process.

ARTICLE XINII
FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on January 1 of each year and conclude on December 31 of
the same year.

ARTICLE XIV
AMENDMENTS TO GOVERNING DOCUMENTS

Section 1. Amendments to Charter

The Charter may be altered, amended, or restated and new Charter may be adopted by a majority vote of
all Directors then serving.

Section 2. Amendments to Bylaws

These Bylaws may be altered or amended, and new Bylaws adopted, by a majority vote of all Directors
then serving.
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The undersigned, as Secretary of the Corporation, does hereby certify that the foregoing are the Bylaws of
the Corporation as approved and amended by vote of the Board on October 2, 2018.

Yt T et 1

Bylaws - Trinity Community Commons

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATTI, OH 45201

NOV 3 0 20]8 Employer Identification Number:

Date: 83-2164043
DLN:
26053713002348
TRINITY COMMUNITY COMMONS Contact Person:
204 EAST TRINITY LANE CUSTOMER SERVICE ID# 31954
NASHVILLE, TN 37207-0¢CC0C Contact Telephone Number:

(877) 829-5500
Accounting Period Ending:
December 31
Public Charity Status:
170 (b} (1) {(A) {vi)
Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required:
Yes
Effective Date of Exemption:
September 26, 2018
Contribution Deductibility:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c) (3). Donors can deduct
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under

Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve guestions on your
exempt status. Please keep it for your records.

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c) (3) are further classified as
either public charities or private foundations. We determined you're a public
charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form
990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 930-N,
the e-Postcard). If you don't file a reguired return or notice for three
consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar

to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public Charities,
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements.

Letter 947
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TRINITY COMMUNITY COMMONS

Sincerely,

AP a. mIATH

Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 947
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Trinity Community Commons Mission Statement

Our mission is to show radical hospitality to all people, restoring connections between
neighbors and a sense of belonging within our community._

We welcome & affirm the worth and potential of all neighbors, especially those who are
typically excluded from community life.
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Trinity Community Commons
Audited Financial Statements
For the period ended December 31, 2024
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Trinity Community Commons
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February 26, 2025

Trinity Community Commons
204 E Trinity Lane
Nashville, TN 37207

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Trinity Community Commons, which comprise the Statement
of Financial Position as of December 31, 2024, and the related Statement of Activities, changes in Net
Assets, and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Trinity Community Commons. as of December 31, 2024, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
Trinity Community Commons, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Trinity Community Commons ability
to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
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therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
made on the basis of these financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
o Use professional judgment and exercise professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Trinity Community Commons.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.'

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the financial staternents.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Trinity Community Commons’
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and internal
control related matters identified during our audit.

§ i

! In circumstances in which the auditor also has a responsibility to express an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control in conjunction with the audit of the financial statements, omit the following: “but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Trinity Community Commons’ internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.”
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Trinity Community Commons

Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2024

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
New Account *9408 (9408) 113,813.45
Reserve Money Market X1639 427,998.32
Savings 9,750.00
Total Bank Accounts $551,561.77
Total Current Assets $551,561.77
TOTAL ASSETS $551,561.77
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Credit Cards
The Plum Card® (1000) - 4 - 1 451.94
Total Credit Cards $451.94
Total Current Liabilities $451.94
Total Liabilities $451.94
Equity
Opening Balance Equity 19,562.79
Retained Earnings 486,723.43
Net Revenue 44.823.61
Total Equity $551,109.83
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $551,561.77
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Trinity Community Commons

Statement of Activity
January - December 2024

TOTAL
Revenue o
Donations Received 114,149.74
Grants 36,150.00
TN UMC Conf - NCD 47,917.04
Total Revenue $198,216.78
GROSS $198,216.78
Expenditures
Advertising & Marketing 211.89
Bank Charges & Fees 252.09
Charitable Contributions 11,012.09
Contractors 32,500.00
Insurance 1,250.00
Legal & Professional Services 10,161.19
Office Supplies & Software 3,361.85
Payroll Tax Expense 3,989.61
Postage 256.00
Repairs & Maintenance 3,911.49
Salaries and Wages 85,134.48
Suppiies 3,232.32
Taxes & Licenses 90.46
Utilities 6,028.02
Total Expenditures $161,391.49
NET OPERATING REVENUE $36,825.29
Other Revenue
interest Income 7,998.32
Total Other Revenue $7,998.32
NET OTHER REVENUE $7,998.32
NET REVENUE $44,823.61

Exhibit D



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

Trinity Community Commons

Statement of Cash Flows
January - December 2024

TOTAL
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Revenue 44.823.61
Adjustments to reconcile Net Revenue to Net Cash provided by operations:
Lowe’s -8,392.83
The Plum Card® (1000) 4,793.30
The Plum Card® (1000) - 4 - 1 451.94
Payroll Taxes Payable -2,512.89
Total Adjustments to reconclle Net Revenue to Net Cash provided by operations: -5,660.48
Net cash provided by operating activities $39,163.13
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Opening Balance Equity -1,067.14
Net cash provided by financing activities $-1,067.14
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $38,095.99
Cash at beginning of period : 513,465.78
CASH AT END OF PERIOD $6551,561.77
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TRINITY COMMUNITY COMMONS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

Trinity Community Commons (the “Orgamzatlon”) received its tax-exempt status in November
2018 and operates in Nashville, TN, in the United States. The Organization is a neighborhood
nonprofit that provides community meals, classes and activities to restore connections between
neighbors and a sense of belonging within the community.

Basis of Accounting

The Urgamzauon is a Nonprofit Corporation for federal and Tennessee income tax putposes. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the Accrual Basis of Accounting, which
is the basis of the accounting used to prepare the Organization’s federal and state information
returns.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments
for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be exempt from
federa! income tax under section 501{c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the
financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes.

NOTE 2 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no subsequent events requiring disclosures as of February 26, 2025, the date
management evaluated such events.
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-WCO/Belmont
BETWEEN

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,

TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as “Metro”, and Woodbine Community Organization, hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 79 Barnes Fund affordable housing
units located at 1429 12 Ave. South, hereinafter referred to as the "Project. The Recipient's
grant budget is incorporated herein by reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic

organization.
A SCOPE OF PROGRAM:
A.1.  Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a Declaration

A2

A3,

A4,

AS.

of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain affordability requirements to
encumber the Property and run with the land over a 40-year term (“Affordability Period”).
Terms defined in the Declaration shall have the same meanings when used in this

Agreement.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms and
conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Although some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approval of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $3,000,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council’s authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for
such purposes.

During the term of the Contract and the Affordability Period, Recipient or another qualified
nonprofit must maintain 51% ownership in the Project or in the general partner of the
Project.
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A6. Requirements for Rental Projects:

a. Tenants must be income-eligible at the time of initial occupancy, and Recipient must
certify all incomes annually and maintain a certified rent roll. In the event a tenant's
income increases above the income-requirement for the unit, the tenant is not
disqualified from remaining in the unit. However, the tenant's rent shall be adjusted
to the corresponding AMI level for the next lease term.

b. The Recipient will provide Metro with a management plan program oversight which
includes certification of the rents, utility allowances, and tenant incomes. The
Recipient shall aiso provide Metro an annuai certification that Barnes rentai
requirements are being met throughout the Affordability Period.

¢. The Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and project for compliance with Barnes program
requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing tenant income calculations,
rent determinations, and utility allowances.

d. The Affordability Period applicable to both tenant income and maximum rents shall
commence on the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final
building within the project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the Affordability
Period will begin on the date of recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

e. Recipient shall not increase rents during the lease term. Such prohibition shall not
apply to any renewal of the lease, nor shaii it affect the portion of rent paid by
another federal, state, or local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting
from the grant funds.

f. During the Affordability Period, Recipient shall submit to Metro no later than July 15
of each year, an eviction report than includes the number of people evicted and the
reason for the eviction for the prior fiscal year (July 1-June 30).

g. Recipient shall post information on Fair Housing rights in the leasing office and make
information on Fair Housing rights available to tenants at least annually. Recipients
should endeavor to make information available to persons with Limited English
Proficiency.

ar

At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing
stability efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant
application.

A.7. Property Standards

a. All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

b. Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient's
grant application, which are incorporated herein.

¢. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient's grant application, which are
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B.2.

B.3.

c.2

C.3.

incorporated herein.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered
by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan
Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete its obligations
under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution, Metro is authorized
to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated funds from the
organization.

Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barnes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commission and the Metro Council.

Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has
paid the final invoice.

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed Three Miltion Dollars ($3,000,000) "Grant Award". The Grant
Budget, attached and incorporated herein as part of Attachment B, details the project
budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute the maximum amount to be provided to
the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient’s obligations hereunder. The Grant
Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead,
and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient.

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. GrantDraws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule

» Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.

« Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the
Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of
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the Project.
2) Construction Grant Draw Process

» Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported
by appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

o Allinvoices shall be sent to BFPayments@nashville.qov.
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¢ Finalinvoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council. Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

C.4. Close-out iture and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certifled
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. it
shouid detaii the ouicomes of ihe aciivities funded under this Grant Coniract.

C.5. Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall hot prejudice Metro's
right to object ta the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

C.6. Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject ta reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs,

C.7. Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and paysble to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

C.8. Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

C.9. Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will promptly review,
and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
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estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to
payment.

C.10. Public Meetings. At the reasanable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and other events regarding this Project.

C.11. Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affordable Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Bames Affordable Housihg Trust Fund of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O'Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

D.1. Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

D.2. Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

D.3.  Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default” (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following written
notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which cannot
reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within such 30-
day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter does not within
a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of
such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient
violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have the right to immediately
terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to Metro any and all grant
monies for services or projects under the grant not performed as of the termination date.
The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds expended for purposes
contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of
any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

D.4. Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining
the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors,
the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be responsible for all
work performed.

D.5.  Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount shall
be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation,
or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or
consuitant to the Recipient in connection with any work contemplated or performed

(Noz81585.1) 5

Exhibit E



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

D.6.

D.7.

D.8.

relative to this Grant Contract.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below may
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant
assisted activity, or have aninterest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom they
have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board member
of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through the Metro
Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties include (whether
by blood, martiage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including stepparent), child (including
a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a
Covered Person.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person
shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment
practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of applicable laws. The
Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall post in
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of
nondiscrimination.

Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any subcantractor
of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government for inspection and
copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government. Furthermore, said
documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan Government, to any
state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority may review, inspect and
copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to, all drawings, plans,
specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos
or other writings or things which document the grant project, its design and its construction.
Said records expressly include those documents reflecting the cost of construction,
including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant contract.
The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds
provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years
from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of Recipient,
insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be subject to
audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its duly appointed
representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the standards outlined
in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activittes conducted and records maintained pursuant to this
Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro’s duly
appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the affordability
period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial records, notes, and
other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the Metropolitan Office of
Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro’s representatives, upon request, during
normal working hours.

{N0281585 1} 6

Exhibit E



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

D.9. Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred during
the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form provided by
Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report
as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the activities funded under this

Grant Contract.

D.10. Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant,
condition, or provision. No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be held to be
waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the appropriate parties
as indicated on the sighature page of this Grant.

D.11. Insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

D.12. Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

D.13. Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other party
contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

D.14. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a. Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract,
and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any
failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or
independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
labor laws and minimum wage laws.

b. Metro will nhot indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Regipient from
any claims, regardless of any anguage In any attachment or other document that
the Recipient may provide.

¢. Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure to
fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

d. Recipient's duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.
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D.15.

D.16.

D.17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care inciuding, but not iimited to, acts of God, riots, wars, sfrikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the iaws of the State of Tennessee, The venue for iegai
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event Metro
prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro’s attorney fees
and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding
between the parties reiating to the subject matter contained herein, inciuding ali the
terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and
all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the
parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be construed
as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain all
permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and
its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the benefit
of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties
hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this
contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall be assigned or
transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of Metro. Any such
assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice
of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent
to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

{NO281585.1} 8

Exhibit E



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

D.25.

D.26.

D.27.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a
gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendation, preparations of any part of a program requirement or a
purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard,
rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy in any
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy or other
particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or subcontract or
to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any
payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor
under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person
associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach
of the provisions of this paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of
ethical standards which may result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or
suspension from participation in Metropolitan Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient;

Tony Woodham
643 Spence Lane
Nashville, TN 37217
615-833-9580

twoodham@woodbinecommunity.orq
Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement,
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D.28.

b. if any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

¢. The Recipient shall require that the l[anguage of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan

Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been
so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written above.
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPROVED AS TO PROGRAM SCOPE:

etropolitan Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF

il ININCe.
Signed by:

Joamen KLLA,/WE,W

6237TA2ABTA2460. -
JSINIST MOoU, WilCelul

Department of Finance

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

DocuSigned by:
@M»{ flmss
122c5a000E0440A. opolitan Attorney

APPROVED AS TO RISK AND
INSURANCF:

DocuSigned by:
(b e

TSRINMBEIZRDT G, Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

RECIPIENT:
Woodbine Community Organization

Title: {z vt uT)ive A‘M_QJ‘U /

Sworn to and subscribed to beigc::e me a

Notary Public, this Zlzday of BUS('
2025,

[Notary Public seal]

Notary Public - =

\@,@@A&W«,QM

Metropolitan Clerk

My Commission expires M\B
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Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work

Contract Number: 2025-R15-WCO/Belmont

Funding Round Number: 15
Organization Name: Woodbine Community Organization

Project Location: 1429 12" Ave. South, Nashville

Project Type: Rental New Construction

Grant Award: $3,000,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units in Development: 79

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

ATTACHMENT A

S 30% AMI

31-60% AMI

61-80% AMI

Total

0

79

N/A

79

Project Summary: This shovel-ready project will deliver 79 high-quality, transit-accessible affordable
housing units in Nashville’s Edge Hill neighborhood, addressing a critical shortage of family-sized rental
housing. Designed with families in mind, 20% of the units will be three-bedroom apartments, providing
essential space for larger households. The development will also include a playground and a dedicated
community room which will foster a strong sense of neighbarhood connection and support. Located in a
transit-accessible area, the project will enhance mobility and access to opportunity for low- to moderate-
income families while contributing to the long-term stability and growth of the Bordeaux community.
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ATTACHMENT B

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Grant Budget

Unit Address 1429 12th Ave S

Development Type Muiti-Family

Accessible Bus Line Routes

Number of 1 Bedrooms 26

Number of 2+ Bedrooms 32

Number of 3+ Bedrooms 21

Square Feet 96,376

Number of Stories 5

P o e | (0 [ B

Acquisition Costs
Vacant Land 1,562,040 0.00 1,662,040 ]0.00 0.00
Sub-Total 1,562,040 0.00 1,562,040 0.00 0.00

— |rotaL  |comstiPermicitc_ [LPEquity |BamesFund |WCO

Soft Development Costs
LIHTC Closing/Financing Costs |742,964 0.00 742,964 0.00 0.00
Legal 294,000 0.00 294,000 0.00 0.00
Third Party Reports 88,000 0.00 88,000 0.00 0.00
Architect/Engineering 607,630 0.00 607,630 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total 1,732,594 0.00 1,732,584 |0.00 0.00

k. )1 el _ : Y : :::-___.-

Hard Construction Costs 19,667,276 |9,675,056 6,992,220 3,000,000 0.00
Sub-Total 19,667,276 |9,675,056 6,992,220 |3,000,000 0.00

T [tomL [ConstiPermiGITC |LPEquiy |BamesFund [WCO
Construction Contingency 983,364 0.00 319,591 0.00 663,773
Operating Reserve 422,607 . 422607 0.00 0.00

Dev Fee Payable 1,816,822 1,816,822 [0.00 0.00
TOTAL PROJECT COST 26,184,703 |9,675,056 12,845,874 |3,000,000 663,773
Percentage of Total Project Cost |1.00 0.37 0.49 0.11 0.03
Status Secured/Pending Secured Secured Pending Secured
Total Cost/Unit $331,451.94

Total Cost/Bedroom $171,142
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.
Draw# % of Grant Milestone
1 12.5%  Upon receipt of the building permit, proof of builder's risk insurance
with Metro Nashville listed as a lien holder.
2 25% Documented predevelopment costs,
3 20% Footing, framing, and foundation complete.
4 20% Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in, inspected, and
° passed by Metro Codes; roofing complete.
5 10% Doors, cabinets, countertops, drywall, trim installed.
6* 12.5% Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro Codes.

*Note: Draw requests 3-6 must be inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted with Metro
prior to the release of funds, All draw requests require documentation and are paid on a reimbursable
basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents
The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1. Acopy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization,

2. A copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

3. A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan govemment;

4. The proposed use af the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Aftachment A);

§. The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

6. A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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e

By-Laws of the Woodbine Community Organization, Inc.

Article | Identification

Section A - Name
- The name of the organization shall be Woodbine Community
- Organization, Inc. The organization name will be abbreviated as WCO.

Section B - Purpose
. The purposes for which the corporation is organized are:

1. To improve the lifestyles of the people in our service area by
working together to preserve our neighborhoods:

2. To help provide residents of our service area access to decision-
making processes of state, local, and federal governments:

3. To improve living conditions of residents in our service area,
especially low and moderate income families;

4. To improve communications and cooperation of area residents,
from all racial, ethnic and religious groups and of all ages;

5. To recruit any federal, state, or local funds that are available to
the area for the purpose of maintaining and improving the
residential neighborhoods. _

6. To solicit and raise funds from public and private sources for the
development and maintenance of such projects and activities that
the corporation might develop in the furtherance of its goals.

7. To operate exclusively for charitable and educational purposes.
8. To help provide decent and affordable housing to low and
moderate income persons.

9. To engage in other activities which are not inconsistent with a
non-profit corporation and the purposes stated above.

Article Il Steering Committee

Section A - Authority

The activities, affairs, business, and property of the corporation shall be
controlled, governed, managed, and supervised by the Steering
Committee. The Steering Committee shall determine the policies of the
corporation and shall actively prosecute the corporate purposes and
goals. The Steering Committee shall meet at least quarterly. The

- Executive Committee of the 4 officers shall have the power to act on any

- business situations between quarterly Steering Committee meetings.
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Section B - Elections

7 Steering Committee members shall be elected by the existing Steering
Committee. A sub-committee of at least three members of the current
Steering Committee shall identify and interview candidates for Steering
Committee membership and make a nomination to the full Steering
Committee. Additional nominations shall be allowed upon duly seconded
motion at a Steering Committee meeting. The Steering Committee shall
not be less than seven (7) members nor shall the Steering Committee
exceed fifteen (15) members, including 4 officers and the chairpersons of
three (3) standing committees, the Fund Raising Committee, the
Personnel Committee and the Real Property Oversight Committee. The
Steering Committee shall maintain at least one-third of its membership for
residents of low-income neighborhoods, other low-income community
residents, or elected representatives of low-income neighborhood
organizations. The Steering Committee shall not be composed of more
than one-third of its membership by State or local government
representatives including employees of the Participating Jurisdiction or
State recipients and these representatives may not appoint more than
one-third of the organization’'s governing body. The Steering Committee
appointed by the State or local government may not, in turn, appoint the
remaining two-thirds of the committee membership. The election of

prece'ding the beginning of the Steering Committee term.

Section C - Qualifications for Steering Committee Membership
Steering Committee membership is open to all adult citizens of the United
State of America and other adults who are legal residents.

Section D - Term of Office
The term of office for Steering Committee members begins on January 1.
. The four (4) officers, Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary, and
Treasurer, plus the chairperson of the three (3) standing committees,
Fund Raising Committee, Personnel Committee and Real Property
Oversight Committee, will be filled by Steering Committee members who
have had at least 2 prior years on the Steering Committee. For the first
election of Steering Committee members after adoption of these by-laws,
four (4) Steering Committee members will serve a term of one (1) year
and four (4) Steering Committee members will serve a term of the (2)
“years. The remaining Steering Committee members will serve a term of
three (3) years. In all succeeding years, Steering Committee members will

be elected to terms of three (3) years.
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Section E - Vacancies

o Any vacancy on the Steering Committee shall be filled by the Steering
Committee. The newly elected Steering Committee member will serve for

* the unexpired remaining term of the vacant Steering Committee position.

Section F - Removal
If a Steering Committee member misses four (4) consecutive Steering
Committee meetings without providing prior notice to the Steering
Committee, the members may be removed at the discretion of the
Steering Committee. Any Steering Committee members may be removed
by a majority vote of the Steering Committee whenever it is, in the
judgment of the Steering Committee, in the best interest of the
corporation. Such removal shall be undertaken only in the most extreme
situations.

Section G - Quorum
A majority of the current Steering Committee members gathered for the
purpose of a meeting shall constitute a quorum. A quorum can be
established via physical presence or by real-time electronic participation,
including, but not limited to, telephone, teleconference, video conference,
and on-line chat communications in which all substantive discussions are
available to all participants.

Article Ill Officers
The officers of the corporation shall be as follows:
O Chairperson
O Vice Chairperson
O Secretary
O Treasurer

Section A - Chairperson
The Chairperson shall preside over the affairs of the corporation, shall
preside at all meetings of the corporation, and shall be chairperson of the
Steering Committee.

Section B - Vice Chairperson
The Vice Chairperson shall preside in the absence of the Chairperson and
oversee the supervision of the corporation as conducted by the operating
staff.

Section C - Secretary
The Secretary, or the secretary’s designee, shall keep the minutes of the
Steering Committee meetings in books provided for that purpose. The
£ Secretary shall be custodian of the corporate records and perform all
duties accrued by the office and other duties so designated.
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Section D - Treasurer
= The Treasurer shali have charge and custody and be responsibie for alii
funds of the corporation, receive and give receipts for monies due and
payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit ali
monies in the name of the corporation. In general, the Treasurer shall
perform all duties accrued by this office and other duties so designated.

Article [V Committees
There shall be three (3) Standing Committees.

Section A - Personnel Committee
The Personnel Committee shall be responsible for developing job
descriptions for the Executive Director. The personnel committee shall
locate candidates for Executive Director job openings and. recommend
these to the Steering Committee for approval. The Personnel Committee
will be responsible for an annual review and approval of the personnel
handbook.

Section B - Finance Committee
The Finance Committee works with the Executive Director to develop a
workable budget for WCO which shall be presented to the full Steering
7 Committee no later than October 31 of the year prior to be budget year.
Additionally, the Finance Committee plans the fund raising activities.

Section C - Real Property Oversight Committee

The Real Property Oversight Committee meets with the Executive Director
to receive assurance that all real property is identified within the corporate
accounting system, that taxes and insurance premiums are being
monitored, that property maintenance is current and adequate, and that
adequate funds are being set aside to cover larger expenditures that do
not occur each year.

Article V Staff
Job descriptions for all staff positions shall be developed by the Executive
Director. The Steering committee may establish other personnel policies as
needed.

Article VI Books, Records and Contracts
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Section A - Books and Records
X The corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of the Steering
Committee meetings. The books are to be audited, annually, by a firm
appointed by the Steering Committee. The audit firm will present the audit
report and audit findings to the Steering Committee.

Section B -Contracts |
All contracts, other than contract for budgeted, recurring operations, must
be presented to the Steering Committee for approval prior to entering into

the contract.

Article VIl Fiscal Year
The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January and end
on the last day of December of each year.

Article VIl Amendments
These By-laws may be amended as deemed necessary by a two-thirds (2/3) vote
of a properly constituted quorum at a Steering Committee meeting.

N

Article IX Effective Date
These Amended By-laws shall be effective upon approval by the Steering
Committee.

Article X Rules for Order of Business
In general, Robert's Rules of order shall be used for the order of business at all
meetings.

Certificate |
| certify that the members of the Steering Committee, by two-thirds (2/3) vote of a
properly constituted quorum at a duly called meeting did approve the above By-
lawsgf the Corporation, as amended, on //:22 o , 2010.

J (A T 5%_

Ofthie Dodd
Executive Director
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CHARTER OF

T WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCO), INC.

Z 5UThe undersigned natural persons, having capacity to contract
and acting as the incorporators of a corporaticn under the

‘Tennessee General corperation Act, adopt the following charter

for such corporatian:

1. The name of the corporaticn is the Woodbhine Community
Organization (WC0), Inc. ’

2, The duration of the corporation is perpetual.

3. The address of the principal office of the corporation shall
be 2403 Winford Avenue, Nashville, TN 37211, until such time
ac another address is designated py the organization.

4. The corporation is not for profit.

5. The purposes for which- the corporation is orgvaized are:

a. To improve the lifestyles of people in our area by working
together to preserve our neighborhood;

k. To help provide residente in our area access to decision-
making processes of city, state, and faderal governments;

c. To improve living conditions of residents in the area,
especiallv low and moderate income families;

d. To improve communication and cooperation of area residents,
black and white, young and old;

e. To recruit any federal, state, or local funds that are
available to the area for the purpose of maintaining and
improving the residential neighborhood; 5

£. To solicit and raise funds from public and private sources
for the development and maintenance of such projects and
activities that the corporation might develop in the

. furtherance of its goals; :

3. To operate exclusively for charitahle and cducational

pUrposes.

6. No patt of the earnings of this corporation may inure to the
penefit of any private shareholder, member, or individual.

7. This corporation is not organized to aLtempt to influence
leg:slation by carrying on propaganda and shall not
participate or incervene in any political campaign on behall
of any candidate for public office.

8. Upon the termination or dissolution of the corporation in any
manner or for any reason, its assets (if any) remaining after
payment of all liabilities, shall be distribuced to, and only
to, one or more organizations described in Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. .

9. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these rticles, this
corporation shall not carry on any other activities not
perwdtted to be carried on by:

a. A corporation exempt from Federal income tax under section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 or the
corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revehue Law, or

b. A corporation, contributions to which are deductible under
section 170{c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Codes of 1954 or
any other corresponding provision of any future Dnited
States Internal Revenue Law.

10. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, the
purposes for which the corporation is organized are
exclusively charitable and educational within the meaning of
snction 501(c)(3) of the In.ermal Revenue Code.

patep: {2/4 1985.
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Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

District Director

S ey :
(03 ~12L¥0 00

Em_ploycr Identifieatlon Number:

Daée: ] ¥ L
DEC 8 ]986 ' : Applied for
: . sc:nunténz Fegiid Endlng:
ecember

Four;datlun Status Clasalflcation:

509(a) (2)
: Advance Ruling Perlod-Endx: Begin: 12/17/
Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Imnc. and Ending: 12/31/87
313 Peachtree Street - Person to Cantact
Nashville, TN 37210 ' Ann Baker/nds .

Contact Telophone Numbar:
(404) 331-4516
FFN: 580072760

Dear Applicant: g
Based on information supplied, and_assuming your opurétiaus will be as stated
in your application for recognition of exsaption, we have determined you are exsmpt
from Federal income tax under ssation 501(a1[5] of the Internal Revenue ‘Codse.
Becauss you ars a nEwly created organization, we are not nov making a rinal
determination of your foundation status upder'ascpicn 509 (a) of the Cods. However,
ve have determined that you can reasonably be expected to be & publicly supported

organization described in sectian 509(a) (2).

Accordingly, you will be treated as a publicly' supparted organization, and not
&5 & private foundatioen,. during an advance ruling period. This advancs ruling period

begins oo .the date of your Iinception and ends om the date shown above.

Within 90 days arfter the end "of your -advance ruling period, you must submit to
us information needed to detsrminpe whether you have met the requirements of the
applicable support test during the advance ruling period. If you establish that vou
have been a publicly supported organization, you will be. classified as a section
509(a) (1) or 509(a) (2) organization as long as you continus to meet the rsquiremsncs
of the.applicable suppert test. If you da not méet the public support requirements
during the adv-nce ruling peried, you will be classified a$ a private foundation
for juture periods. Alsc, ir you are classirfied as ‘A private, foundatlion, you will
be treated as a private foundation from the date of your inception for purposes of
Sections ‘507 (d) and 4940. ' :

‘Grantors and donors may rely on the determination that You are not a private
foundation until 90 days after the end of your advance ruling period. If you submit
the required information vithin the 50 days, grantors and donors may continue to
rely on the advancs detarminatib% until the Service makes a final determination .of
Your roundatlon status. However, 1if motice that ydu will nao longer be treated as &
section 509(a)(2) organization is publ#ghad in the Internasl Ravenus )
Bulletin, grantors and donors way not re;y on this‘determination after the date of
such publication. Also, 8 grantor-or donér DAy not.rely on this determination if hs
or she vas in part responsible for, or was aware of, the act or failure to act that

resulted in your loss of saction 509(a) (2) . status, or acquired knowledge
that the Internal Revenue Service had glven notice that you would be removed from
classirication as a sectlon 509(a)(2) organization,

{over)

. .

; Letter 1045(DO) (Rev. 10-83)
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[’ your sources 'H suanort. ar vour pur:acse- : a*act=r.- or method of oper
-“a ge p15gse let us krnow sSo we can consider the effect of tﬁe change2 on your
2xXe=pl STatus anc foundation Status. Alsa, you should lnforw 'us of all changes in
Your name or address.

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable tdr taxes under the Federal .Insurance
Tantributions Act (socinl sacurity taxsd) 4o remunaration of 3100 or more you pay
ta each of your smployees during a calendar year., You are oot 1':'~le for the tax
{oposed under the Yederal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).

i
Organizations that ares not private foundations ars not subject to the excise

E=Esl tndelE ERagtsy 42 ola 'the [C5dE HoEsvemy, jod STs] o't Sugomshically Bxegiplt Fhes

othar Federal sxciss taxs3. I you havg any gquaaticns about gxciss, employmsnt, or
othar Fedesral taxss, please let us know.

Donors may deduct contributicens to you as provided im saction 170 of the Codo
Baquests, legaciss, devises, tranﬁfar:, or gifts to you or fgr your use ars
deductible rfor Fsderal estats and gift tax purposas 1f they mest ths appllicables
provisions o secticos 2085, 2108, and 2522 of the Gods.

You are requirsd to file Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Incoms
Tax, oaly if your gross rsceipts each year ars ncrmally marse  than $25,000. If a
Teturn 13 requirsd, it must ba_filld by the 15th day of the f£ifth month after the
end of your acnual accounting period. Tbe law imposes a penpalty of 310 a day, up to
a mEximim of $5,000, when a returzm is filed late, unlass thers 13 rsasomabls cause
faor the delzy.
. . H
You ars not rsquifad ta rils Fedaral ingcoms tax returna'uniuss you are subject
to the tax on unreslated business lncome under segtion 511 of thes Code. If you ars
subjact to this tax, you must file an ipcoms tax return sz Form 990-T, Exempt
,~0Orgenization Business ILocome Tax Return. In this letter, wa ars not destermining
rhather any of your presant osr propasad activities ares unralate'! trade or business
85 derinsd in seotion 313 of the Code.

You neecd an sop’ +~ identification oumber even 1f you bhave na employees. If
an employer idsptir >0 pumber: was not eatersd en your application, a number
wvill be essigned s and you will be advised of -it. Pleass uss that oumber on

21l returns you file .1 in all correspondence with the Internsl! Revenne Service.

Bacausa this lstier could help resolve angy questlons abgut our eIempt status
and roundation statuas, ycd should ¥eep it i your permanent rec- - 'ls.

If you have any questiocns, pléahu gontact the person whose name and telasphone
aumber are shown 1o the heading of this letter.

Simml:’:i’__('

District Director

Letter 1045(D0) (Rev. 10-83)
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- _DISTRICT DIRECTOR il
401 W. PEACHTREE S8T."NN
ATLANTAs GA ,.30345 fo i oD

A Emp'layer Identification Number:

~ Date: NOV€1-5-199‘3 S 62-1280004

Case Number:

:DEPARTHENT OF THE TREASURY

523223048
HOODEINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION Contact Person:
WCOs INC. . VICKY BAKER
222 ORIEL AVENUE Contact Telephone Number:
NASHVILLEs TN 37210-4910 (404) 331-0930

Date of Exemption:
" December 21 1984
Internal Revenue Cude
Section.501(c) ()

Dear Applicant:

made it a part of your flle.

: Thank you fersgubmiting the. Infermation chaun on the enelssure. Mo nsos
=

The changes indicated do not adverssly affect your exempt status and the
exemption letter issued to you contdinues in effect.

Flease lét us know about any future change in the character, purpuses
method of operations name or address of your organization. This is a
requirement for retaining your exempt status.

~~ Thank you for your couperation.
pcerely yours, 7
\ .,,J-r-—-"‘-—_—__
Paul Williams
District Directar
N '

" | Lebter 974-(00/C0)
£ v e S e Echibie
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DESIBNATION, REVOCATION OR CHANGE
o
REGISTERED AGENT
of

MHE - ROGODIRE CORMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCO), INC.

Tw e Rotretary ol Slate of e 830 of Tennagsin

Puyreuant th the prmesews of Sexiion A8 1201 of the Tenmessee Genaral Corgoration Al the
vwnlstrigien] foreign or gornestie torparatian or Whe incorpordior or incacparators of a damnshic
reenpr e DesAg odBandciel ungér the AL ubmit the lollowing slatement tor the pirpese o
NBBENALINK, tMVRIAG O ZRanEnE 4% The Cate may e the regislared azonl lor the Serpnratine A the
date ul Taanpswea-

) Ihe Rans 0f the Corbrabion 1 THE WQODDINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION "‘-‘GQ)

. ) . 2403 Winford Avenuo
The acedre v od Ine creporabion i
' T RERIRVITLe, TN 3TII0 ree

Ha fareign coparation, $late or country of incorporation

2 Tho nanma and siree! aadress ol its repistered agent in the State of Tennessee shall be

Virginia Morgan

2403 Winford Avenue

Nashville, TN 37211

Dec. 12 85
Dated .19

THE WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (wco) ,

Name of Corporation

By

(Title)

(Incorporator

ar incorporatcrs,
il corparation is
being arganized)

, INC %
-
INC.
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

i

[N
1
0

SECRETARY OF STATE

THIS REPORT IS DUE ON OR BEFORE _ April 1, 1987

READ NGVICE AND INSTRUCTIONS ON OTHER SIDE BEFORE MAKING ENTRIES

(1) (a) CORPORATMON CONTROL NUMBER: 0165649

(2) ENTER CHANGE ,OF ADDRESS OF CORPORATION'S

THIS REPORT WILL NOT BE FILED WITHOUT THIS NUMBER

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN.THE STATE OF INCORPORATION. .

{1) (b) NAME AND ADDRESS OF CORPORATION:

2403 Winford Avenue
Nashville, Tn. 37211

12/17/85 D Not for Prbﬁit

IF THE ABOVE ADDRESS IS INCORRECT IN ANY WAY. PLEASE CORRECT

Woodbind Commmity Organization (WCO), Inc.

STREET ADDRESS

‘IP.0. BOX NUMBER

ciTY

STATE 2P GODE

NTER
WILL NDT BE OF RECORD. SEE INSTRUCTIONS.

(3) FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
(FEIN)

IN BLOCK 2

_I[4)y’PRINCIPAL OFFICE OR PLACE OF BUSINESS iN TENNESSEE IF A
_STREET ADDRESS

FOREIGN CORPORATION:
CITY, STATE, ZIF CODE

{5} NAMES AND STREET AND MAILIN'T ADDRESS.ES OF EACH OFFICER MUST BE COMPLETFD: (ATTACH SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY.)

TITLE NAME STREET AND MAILUNG ADDRESS CITY, STATE. ZIP CODE
PRESIDENT
VICE PRESIDENT (y/4)
SECRETARY
TREASURER

/\“[ {6) NAMES AND STREET AND MAILING ADDRESSES OF BOARD OF

DIRECTORS MUST BE COMPLETED: (ATTACH SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY.)

}_ iy NAME STREET AND MAIUNG ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
: . 0
—i-a
- R < (/4 o
: R

ik ;'.'Z' —

[

3 2

_[[7YNAME AND Ag;nn@s OF REGISTERED AGENT:

Virginia Morgan
2403 Winford Avenue .
Nashville, Tn. 37211

(8) CURRENT REGISTERED AGENT, IF DFFFERENT FROM BLOCK 7 OR NOT ON
RECORD:

NAVE Paula Pegae

STREET ADDRESS

‘Ci'ﬂ' STATE, 2P CODE

ig St.

N

'[NASHVILLE, TENN. 37219

(8) THE NATLRE AND CHARACTER OF THE BUSINESS IN WHICH THE CORPORATION IS ENGAEED IS: l ‘ l é -

Feighborhood Inprovement; Benefit to low and moderate income people

REMIT TEN DOLLARS

SECRETARY OF STATE. /CHECKE OR MONEY NRDERS ARE PREFERRED)

MAIL F.ITTANCE AND CUMPLETED FORM TO: %9

TENNESSEE SECRETARY OF STATE
JAMES K. POLK BUILDING. SUITE 500 /\ \

{10) UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, | DECLARE THAT | HAVE
EXAMINED THIS REPORT, AND TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE
AND BELIEF, IT I$ TRUE, CORRECT, AND COMr < E.

Codle S aatn

mme__ Chairperson palE \\-3-87

SIBNATURE

S$S-4444

ANY INCOMPLETE, UNSIGNED OR I' LEGIBLE REPORT WIiLL BE RETURNED TO YOU
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Internal Revenue Service Departmert of the Treasury

Bisinichbirecicn

Da’ée: gE C 8 i g g 8 Employer Identification Mumbar:

Applied for
Accounting Period Ending:
,Dac@mbur 31

o foundation Status Glassification:

(404) 331-4516
FFN: 580072760

. 509(a) (2}

i N Advanes Ruling Feriad-Endse Begin: 12/17/85
: Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc. and Ending: 12/31/87

| 313 Peachtree Streef ' Earson o Senlach

! Nashville, TH 37210 Ann Baker/nds

i Contact Teiephone Numbar:

|

}

Dear Applicant:

3ased on informatior supplisd, =and assuming your operations will be &8 stated
in your application for recognition of exemption, we have determined you are exeipl
from Federal iacoms tagx vpnder ssciion 501{c) (3) of the Intermal Reveaue Code.

Because you 8ra a newly ¢reated orgonization, we are not now making 8 final
dstormination of vour feundatlen 5tatus undaer section 5C9(s) of the Code. However,
wa Have deturmined that ven can vressonably be oxpected to he a publicly supportad
4 pa§§”atian described im seetion  50%(a)(2).

i ﬁﬁ “RBeeordingly, vok will be trsated as a publioly supperted crganization, and not
ay amrivate foundation, during an advaue- Toling peried. This advance ruling pericd

- Eeglue o the fate of your inception and smds on the date shown ahnva.,
i

WS*hin 890 du.s ofter the emd of your advance ruling period, you must submit to
! us 4n£a“mation neoced Lo datermine whether you have me% the requirements of the

| mg;:gghla suppart test during the advaencse rmling period. If you establisb vhat you
naﬁa EZLﬂ a publicly supporisd organization, you will be clasgsifisd &s a section

509 .)(1) or 306{a) (2) organization as long as you comtinue to meet the requirements
of the applicable suppert test. 1L you do nst meet the public support requirements

I Quring the adv~nce ruling period, you will bs classified a3 & private foundation

for futurs periods. Alsc, if you ara clagsified as a private foundation, you will

be treated as a private foundaticn frowm the date of your inceptica for purpeses of

! segctions 507(d} and 4%=0.

Grentors and donars msy rely onm the determipation that you are not a private
foundation until 90 dayvs after the end of your advance rmling period. If vou submit
the required infermstion within the 38 days, grantors asnd domors may continue to
roly on the advancs determination until the Servirce makes a final determinaticn of
vour foundation status. However, 1f metice that you will ne longer be treated as a
i seetion 509(a)(2) srganizaiinrn 18 publishied in the Internal Revenue
B.llewin, grantors and doners may net rely oo this dstermination after the date of
suel peblizatien, Als5o, & granter or doner may not relv on this determination if he
e she ¥sS in pari responsible for, or was aware of, ths act or failure to act that

é resulted in vour loss of sectioan  509(a)(2) status, or acgulred know.edge

i that the Internal Ravenue Service had given no*tice that vou would be receved from

‘ clagsification as a section 506(a){2) erganization.

i (ovw -}

' P- 0. Box 1255, Atlenta, 8A 30370 Letter 1045(DO) (Rev. 10-83)
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@ 3

If your sourees af suppart, or vous surpesas, character, or @ethod of operation
change, please let us know So we tan consicder the effect of the change an your
axempt status ané foundation status. Al3e, vou should Infarm us eof all c“anges in
your name 9r addrass,

As of Jariuary 1, 1984, you are 11ab1e for taxes under che Federal ,Insurancn
Contributions Act {goclal security taxes) on Temuneraticn of 2100 of more ¥ou pay
to each of vour emploveas during a calendar year. You are not linble ror tha . tax
imposed. under tho Fedaral Unsmployment Tax Act (MA).

Orsanizatioﬂs tha: are not private zoundatiens aro not subject ts the excise
taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. However, you are net automatically exempt fram
ather Faderal exdise temes. If you have any quaztions about excise, unplamnﬁ, er
other Federal taxes, please let us know, i

Donors mey deduct contributions to you as provided in section-170-of the Cedo.
Bequests, legacles, devises, tremsfers, or gifts to yeu or £o6F your use are
deductible for Federsi sstate and gift tax purposes if they meet the applicable
provisions of sections 2055, 2108, apd 25922 of the Code.

¥our ars requived to fils Porm 230, Return of Orgarization Exampt fram Incoms
Tax, only if your gress receiptz emch year are noraznlly mors then £25,000. If &
return is required, it must be £ilsd by the 1Sth day of the £ifih menth after the
end of pour apnugl accousting paried. The law imposes a pemelty of $10 & day, up to
¢ maximum cof $5,000, whea 2 return lg filed lats, wniezs thers is *aasanehlsm.zgg
for the delay. .

- =3
Tou ers net required to file Pederal incoms tax returns unless you are ;'%)j r,“ ]
to the ¢ax on uarslated business imcome under section 511 of the Code. If JOR3 ;.L_’
subieot to this tax, you must f£ile an ifneceme tax return on Form 990.7, Exempt ": 2l
Organization Business Income Tax Returm. Ia this letler, we ars not dotomium =g
whsther goy of Your pregent dr proposed activities nrs unrelated trade aor buag_..nass
as defined io section E13 of the Cade. -
Py B
Yaou nasd an emplover 1dentiﬁcatian, pamber avenr 1f you have no employees. Ir
an ompiloyer idsntification smumber wes fiot sntared on your applicaticn, 2 namber
7ill he assigned to you and yvou will bo advised of it. Flease ngs that number on
21l returng you file and in all correspondsncs with the Internal Reveaue Service.

Because this lotter could 2¢lp resclve any quesiiong about your exzeupt staf.n..
and foundation status, you shoald kuep it in your perzansat resords.

If you have sany questions, piesss contavt the person whose nome and telophons
mmber are showa 1u the headiag ¢r this letter.

District Divector

Letter 1045(D0) (Rev. 10-33)
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.

()

bepartsgnt of The Treagury

Houdbine Coxxunity Organizatioﬂ
HCO Inc
222 Oriel Avenu

[y - s
hl!hii!!:l b

€
37214

Dear Sir or Hadaa!

Internsl Revenve Service
t8 crovp 7104 . )
Guite 116%e Stop 520

401 Hest Peschivee S,
Atlantzr GA  §034%

Persan Yo Contact!
Kin Artis

Telephane Husberd
{404)331-198¢

Refer Reply Tal
E037405%4H

EINT §2-12804006

pate; JUL 2171982

He have received and revicued the aanended organizing docuaeats
that you submitted on behslf of yaup organiyations im uhich
the organizing docusents were appraved and/or 3dopted on

02701492,

Thic intarastion has been

sade 3 parl of your

c“{e ]
Eér arganization shall cantinve bo be recognized as exeipt

vnder Section S0I(L)1{43) ¢f the Internal Revenve Cades cffec~

tive as of 12/84.

You way cantinue fo rely ob this exeapiian

ontil it is modifiede terajnsted or revoked by ihe Internal

Reveaue Service.

Please cuntinve to Lét vs kaow of any changes in the purposer

-characterr nethod af operaticns mniae

er a#ddress of your

organization. This is 3 requirenent for cetaiaing your exespl

-status..

A copy af thi§ letter should remala in ysus persaneat recordss
3s It say help resolve any question sbout your exeapt status,

Thsak you for yout cacperations

(1

Sincepdlyr

-

ral@nizdtions
Caordinstar
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IRTERNAL REVENUE SERVIGE

DIGTRICT.DIRECTOR

(' “fl

401. M. -PEACHTREE 8T. N
ATLANTA) GA,.SOS&G

' Datet NOV J: 5 1993

HOODBINE CQHMUNITY ORGANIZATION
Wca» INC.

222 ORYEL AVENUE

NASHVILLE: TR 372104710

Owar Applicant:

madza (¢ a part of your flle,

DEPARYMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Idenfificatiou Nunber:
§2-1280004&
Case Number:
583223048
Contact Persons
YICKY BAKER
Caentact Telephone Numbers:
(404) 331-0930 :
Date of Exemptlonz
Oecember 81 1984
Internal Revente Code

Section 501(c) (2 —

Thank you for submitting the (nforpatfon shown on the enclosurs.

He have

The changes Endlcated do not adversely affect your exeapt status and “the
exepption letter !ssued to you continees in effect.

FPlease let ug kaow about any febure change in the charauterf PUrposes

nethod. of operation: name or address of yeur organivatlon.

This is a

requiresent for retaining your exempt status.

ipcerely yo::j:’#‘.ﬂ_ﬂd—‘*hég:’f
O;}-pwh} .

Thank' you for your cooperation.

pPaul Hillians
bistrict Oirector

Letter

§76 (00/CG)
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Mission Statement
Woodbine Community Organization

The Woodbine Community Organization is a mission-driven community development
organization dedicated to working with others to create places of opportunity where people of
diverse incomes and backgrounds access housing that is affordable, benefit from education and
economic opportunities, and fully participate in the civic life of their community. We work at the
intersection of housing, human services, and community engagement, always centering the
voices and needs of residents.

WCO fulfills this mission

through a range of integrated services and strategic partnerships:

Affordable Housing Development and Preservation

We develop, acquire, and preserve affordable rental housing for low- and moderate-
income individuals and families, including seniors, immigrants, single parents, and
people with disabilities. Our developments meet high-quality standards while remaining
deeply affordable.

Resident Support and Stability Services

Through housing counseling and access to basic needs, we provide a safety net for
residents facing economic and personal hardship. We help tenants maintain stable
housing.

Community Empowerment

WCO invests in the leadership and resilience of our residents by offering financial
literacy workshops, resident support, and other empowerment-based programs that foster
long-term self-sufficiency.

Responsive, Accountable, and Data-Driven

Our work is grounded in community voice, informed by data, and accountable to
measurable impact. We engage directly with residents and stakeholders to ensure that our
work reflects the lived realities and aspirations of those we serve.

A Legacy of Service, A Vision for the Future

As WCO looks to the future, we remain steadfast in our commitment to affordable housing as a
human right and a foundation for community wellness. With every home we build, every family
we support, and every voice we uplift, we continue our journey toward a more just and thriving
Nashville.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (W CO), INC.
And Its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

Audited Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon)
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCO), INC.
And Its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
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8118A SAWYER BROWN ROAD
H o L = W NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37221
(615) 673-1120

(615) 673-0989 (F)

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and

Tony Woodham, Executive Director
Woodbine Community Organization, Inc.
643 Spence Lane

Nashville, TN 37217

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Woodbine Community
Organization, Inc (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial

position as of December 31, 2024, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Woodbine Community Organization, Inc as of December 31, 2024,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Woodbine Community Organization, Inc. and its wholly and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Woodbine Community
Organization, Inc's ability to continue as a going concermn within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
iikelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by 2
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

m
w
wy
g
5
w)
Iy
M
<

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain prof

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Woodbine Community Organization, Inc's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Woodbine Community Organization, Inc's ability to continue
as a geing concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Consolidating Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The schedule of consolidation is provided in a separate report.

Lo haVor 2 |Jratle gy

Nashville, TN
May 15, 2025

Exhibit E



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

CURRENT ASSETS

WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts Receivable- Tenants/Grants
Prepaid Expenses

Inventory - Houses/Land

Note receivable - current

Total Current Assets

FIXED ASSETS
Land

Rental property (houses and apartments)
Furniture and Fixtures

Equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Total Fixed assets-net

OTHER ASSETS

Reserve Replacement

Escrow deposits

Operating reserves

Rental properties under construction
Tenants security deposits
Investments (Note B)

Loan to affiliate (Note C)

Note receivable - long term

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.

3

$ 26,663,295
5,974,406
145,849
1,754,071
1,266,608

35,804,229

14,702,681
112,531,172
762,749
1,741,135

129,737,737
(26,236,221)

103,501,516

522,332
290,720
53,936
192,503
536,755
10,713,411
843,314

13,152,971

$ 152,458,716
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2024

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable- programs
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable-management fees
Accrued mortgage interest
Accrued property taxes
Accrued payroll liabilities
Prepaid rent
Other current liabilities
Current portion - long-term notes payable (Note D)
Deferred revenues
Tenants security deposits

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term notes payable (Note D)
Debt issuance cost (Note F)
Miscellaneous long-term liabilities (Note E)

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions (Note I)

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
4

$ 104,061
13

28,664

197,550
101,085

54,592

508,666
632,173

93,782

1,720,586

70,245,215
(1,103,199)
1,072,567

70,214,583

71,935,169

76,218,002
4,305,545

80,523,547

$ 152,458,716
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Combined Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Support and Revenue

Program fees $ 31,256
Development income 1,864,778
Contract revenues 3,397,017
Rental income 14,719,093
Portfolio income 1,240,740
NSP/Section 1602 Amortization 1,579,199
Gain on sale of property 416,536
Other income 183,632
Total Support and Revenue 23,432,251
EXPENSES
Administrative 2,429,956
Utilities 1,080,900
Operating and Maintenance 1,622,437
Taxes and Insurance 1,604,299
Financial 5,093,806
Depreciation and amortization 3,537,362
Total Expenses 15,368,760
TOTAL INCREASE IN NET ASSETS $ 8,063,491

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
5
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NET ASSETS Without Donor Restrictions, January 1, 2024 $ 68,389,601
Increase in net assets without restrictions 8,063,491

Change in investments

Transfer to net assets without donor restrictions (235,090)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, December 31, 2024 $ 76,218,002
NET ASSETS With Donor Restrictions, January 1, 2024 $ 3,792,910
Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 1,404,000
Grant Amortization relase from restrictions (891,365)
TOTAL NET ASSETS With Donor Restrictions, December 31, 2024 $ 4,305,545
NET ASSETS, January 1, 2024 $ 72,182,511
Increase in net assets 9,467,491
Grant Amortization relase from restrictions (1,126,455)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, December 31, 2024 $ 80,523,547

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
6
WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ 8,063,491

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash
Provided by operating activities

Depreciation 3,480,481
Amortization of loan costs 56,881
Gain on sale of assets/investments (416,536)
Section 1602 Grant Amortization (891,365)
NSP Grant Amortization (687,834)
(Increase) / decrease in:
Accounts receivables-tenants (598,438)
Prepaid expenses 109,341
Tenant security deposits (27,570)
Increase / (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (77,084)
Cash overdraft 1
Accounts payable - management fee 8,492
Accrued mortgage interest (1,227)
Accrued property taxes (60,760)
Accrued payroll liabilities (2,426)
Prepaid rent 15,031
Accrued expenses (147,432)
Deferred revenues =
Tenant security deposits held 3,287
Cash provided operating activities 8,826,333

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Procees from sale of assets/investments 416,536
Purchase of property and equipment (11,988,530)
Funding of reserves for replacement 358,374
Releases from escrow deposits (89,764)
Funding of operating reserves (8,310)

Cash used by investing activities (8,066,527)

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
7
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net borrowing of notes payables (6,721,427)
Loans to related party (2,801,429)
Cash provided by financing activities (9,522,856)
NET INCREASE IN CASH (8,763,050)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 35,426,345
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 26,663,295

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 5,095,033

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
8
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A ~-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc. was organized in December 1985. The organization is
a nonprofit organization, dedicated to meeting the needs of low-income residents, through HUD and
NeighborWorks certified assistance for pre-purchase home buying, reverse mortgage, foreclosure
prevention, rental readiness, financial literacy and volunteer income tax preparation. The organization
has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be exempt from federal income tax under
section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as an organization described in
section 501(c)(3) to accept funding and provide job training, affordable housing, after school tutoring
and other programs. The organization is funded by donations, public and private, along with
fundraising sponsored by its members, and revenues generated by activities in performance of the
organizations exempt purpose.

Since the mid-1990s the Organization has also developed a particular expertise in the development of
both single and multi-family rental housing units for low to moderate income families. “OGA", "OMA”",
"EHF", "MKA", "WCM", “EVA", "AMA", and "CPA" all operate multi-family apartments which provide low
to moderate income families with affordable housing. "WEF” and “40™" are in the construction phase
and will also operate affordable houing, multi-family apartments.

In April 2015, the organization expanded its activities to include providing shared housing to an
unrelated company providing intermediate care for persons with intellectual and developmental
disabilities. These activities are operated in "WCO AL DP” (See Note J).

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reflect all material receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Principles of Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include transactions and accounts of Woodbine Community

Organization (WCO), Inc., and its’ wholly owned subsidiaries: WCO AL DP, LLC ("AL DP"), Woodbine
Oaks of Gallatin, LLC ("OGA"), WCO Oakwood Manor, LLC (“OMA"), WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC (“EHF"),
WCO Elysian Flats, LLC ("WEF"), WCO 40" Avenue Apts, LLC ("40™"), WCO Kareday, LLC (“MKA"),
Woodbine Cumberiand Meadows, LP ("WCM?"), Ellington View LP (EVA), Trinity-TN, LP ("AMA"),
Cumberland Place CCA, LP ("CPA"), and which are wholly-owned non-profit single-member limited
liability companies. All significant accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates
of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value
because of the short maturities of those instruments.

9
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in
substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are
recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction

expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or
grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as
follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not
subject to donor restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or
other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where
the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Property and Equipment

Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $4,000 are capitalized. Property and equipment
are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is
computed using primarily the straight-line method.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions and grants received are recorded as unrestricted or temporarily restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restriction. As restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends, or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restriction. Development fees are earned on the development of low-income housing, as construction
progress metrics are met.

Rental Revenue
Rental revenue is recognized as rentals become due. Rental payments received in advance are recorded

as prepaid revenue.

10
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributed Services

The Organization receives a substantial number of services donated by its friends and families in
carrying out the Organization’s mission. No amounts have been reflected in financial statements for
those services since they do not meet the criteria for recognition under SFAS No. 116, Accounting for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

Functional Classification of Expenses
The following programs and supporting services are included in the financial statements:

Community activities include job education, job placement services, literacy education classes,
English as a second language classes, and various other community services.

Housing Programs include the development and management of both single and multi-family
affordable housing, education classes for prospective homeowners, and counseling for housing
preservation and foreclosure prevention.

Resource persons assist the community by providing resources, such as housing, food, and
technical assistance.

Supporting services include functions necessary to ensure an adequate working environment
and cost not identifiable with a single program, including costs associated with providing
coordination and articulation of the Organization’s program strategy, business management,
general record keeping, budgeting and related purposes, and fundraising cost.

Income Taxes
The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from federal and state income taxes

under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Management
has evaluated its tax positions taken and believes that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits is
not material to the financial statements as a whole. Therefore, no tax liability has been recorded.
Additionally, the Organization files a Federal Form 990 informational tax returns. The Organization is
currently open to examinations by the relevant taxing authorities for a period of three years from the
date the return was filed or its due date (including approved extensions).

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Advertising Costs
Costs related to advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $14,886 in 2023,

NOTE B - INVESTMENTS

Ty T PRy -y Y

The Organizauun owns interest in sole purpose CUIpUIauun: and Limi
the general partners of the following limited partnerships with a minor

s . .
ility Companies which are

wnership in Limited Liability

Ol‘_‘_

Companies. These sole purpose entities are recorded at cost.

NAME Ownership % Investment

Crockett Manor, LP 0.01% 11,109
Woodbine Cumberland Meadows, LP 0.01% 1,000
Ellington View Apartments, LP 0.01 % 380,864
Hamilton Creek Apartments, LP 0.02 % 1,000
Townhomes at Nashbero Village, LP 0.01% 1,000
The Parks at Leigh Springs, LP 0.01 % 1,000
Hallmark Selma, LP (Alabama) 0.01% 1,000
Woodbine Meadows, LLC (Virginia) 0.01 % 7,449
Woodbine Willow Oaks, LLC. (Virginia) 0.01% 33,834
Woodbine Oaks of Gallatin, LLC 100.00 % 97,700
Woodbine Magnolia Gardens GP, Inc. 100.00 % 16,132
WCO Oakwood Manor, LLC 100.00 % 108,068’
WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC 100.00 % 2,866,844
WCO Algood Manor, LLC 100.00 % 328,676
WCO Cumberland Place, LLC 100.00 % 650,550'
WCO Kareday, LLC 100.00 % 12,000’
WCO AL DP, LLC 100.00 % 100"
WCO Village Green Apartments, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO Cumberland Manor, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO River City North, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO Spence Lane, LLC 100.00 % 100
Woodbine Crocket Manor GP, Inc. 100.00 % 100
WCO Hermitage Flats GP, Inc. 100.00 % 100
WCO Patterson Flats GP, Inc. 100.00 % 100

Total 4,519,026

Less, consolidating elimination of wholly owned ' (3,982,271)

Net Investments $__ 537,755
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE C - LOANS TO AFFILIATES

The Organization loaned $82,922 to one of its affiliates, a multi-family low-income apartment complex,
Future minimum payments cannot be determined at this time. The note bears interest at 0%.

The Organization has loaned affiliates a total of $24,982,156 2023 in Sponsor Loans in accordance with
Grant agreements. At December 31, 2024 total amount outstanding to affiliates was $24,982,156 of
which $14,268,745 is eliminated upon consolidation. Future minimum payments cannot be determined
at this time. The note bears interest at 0%.

As part of the Grant Contracts between the Organization and the Metropolitan Housing Trust Barnes
Fund, the Organization has entered into a promissory note to lend $10,406,329 to affiliates. The
affiliates utilized the funds to build low-income apartments. At December 31, 2023, the outstanding
amount was $10,406,329. Future minimum payments are not required at this time. The stated interest
rate of the loans is 0%.

Total loans to affiliates as shown on the statement of position is $10,406,329.
NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE
As of December 31, 2023, long-term debt and notes payable consist of the following:
Borrowings of the Organization's subsidiaries are:
WCO AL DP, LLC
0% subordinated promissory note payable, dated April 1,
2015, amended July 1, 2017. Principal and unpaid interest

due on maturity date of April 27, 2030. 1,914,896

$9.3 million Series 2016A tax-exempt bond payable dated
monthly payments of $43,616, plus interest at
7.95%. Matures April 20, 1933. (Note I). 3,325,965

$8.9 million Series 2022A tax-exempt bond payable dated

May 12, 2022, with principal plus interest at 7.99%.

Matures April, 2051. (See Note I) 8,615,738
$8.9 million Series 2022B tax-exempt bond payable dated

May 12, 2022, with principal plus interest at 7.99%.

Matures April, 2051. (See Note ) . 17,518,687
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

$20.3 million Series 2022C tax-exempt bond payable dated
May 12, 2022, with principal plus interest at 7.99%.

Matures April, 2053. (See Note I) 20,028,226
Subtotal of notes payable-WCO AL DP, LLC $ 51,765,013

WCO EIlm Hill Flats, LLC

Note payable with Pinnacle Bank with principal payments of

$13,000 monthly. The note bears interest at prime minus 4.0%

Collateral is the buildings of WCO EIlm Hill Flats, LLC. 4,303,000

Subtotal of long term debt-WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC $ 4,303,000

Oaks of Gallatin, LLC

Note payable to Pinnacle Bank with principal payments of
$4,500 monthly. The note bears interest at prime minus 4.0%.
Collateral is land, buildings, and equipment of Woodbine

Oaks of Gallatin, LLC., Gallatin, TN. 581,944
Subtotal of notes payable-Oaks of Gallatin, LLC $¢ 581,944

Woodbine Cumberland Meadows, L.P.

Note payable with payments of $3,385.97 monthly. Interest

at 3.000%. Collateral includes the real property of Woodbine

Cumberland Meadows, L.P. 578,584

Subtotal of notes payable-Woodbine Cumberland Meadows $ 580,215

Oakwood Manor, LLC

Note payable in monthly installments of $1,814 including

interest at a rate of 3.5% per annum for 10 years. Matures

September 29, 2027. Collateral includes the land, buildings, and

equipment of Woodbine Oakwood Manor, LLC., Milan, TN. 58,362

Note payable in monthly installments of $1,111 including
interest at a rate of prime minus 4.0% per annum. A
The loan matures August 8, 2029. 84,874

Subtotal of notes payable-Oakwood Manor, LLC $ 144,736
14
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Trinity-TN, LP

Mortgage including interest of 3.2% per annum, over a
thirty-five (35) year amortization. Monthly installments

of principal and interest are $7,325 until August 1, 2048.
Collateral is the real property of Algood Manor Apartments

located in Algood, TN. 1,457,613
Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Algood Manor $1,457,613

Cumberland Place CCA, CP

Mortgage including interest of 3.2% per annum, over a

thirty-five (35) year amortization. Monthly installments

of principal and interest are $6,261 until August 1, 2048.

Collateral is the real property of Cumberland Place

Apartments in Winchester, TN. 1,210,124

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Cumberland Place $1,210,124

WCO Kareday, LLC

Mortgage including interest of 3.75% per annum, amortized

over thirty-five (35) years. Monthly payments are $5,380

until August 1, 2048. Collateral is the real property

located in Oak Ridge, TN. 973,134

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Kareday LLC $ 973,134

WCO Magnolia Gardens, LLC
On demand note payable. Note bears interest of 0%. 337,548

Note payable

Mortgage including interest of prime minus 4.0% per annum.

Monthly payments are $2,017 until April 1, 2030.

Collateral is real property located in Chattanooga, TN. 168,354

Subtotal of notes payable - WCO Magnolia Gardens, LLC $ 505,902
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
WCO Elysian Fields, LLC

Mortgage payments including interest of prime minus 4.0% per annum.
Collateral for this note is property at Elysian Fields, matures
April 1, 2037. $7.880,500

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Elysian Fields,LLC $ 7,880,550

WCO 40%" Avenue Apts, LLC

Construction loan, interest only at prime minus 4%.

Available balance $1,482,000. Collateral for this note

is property at 40" Ave, matures January 26, 2025 $8,462,273

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO 40" Ave Apts,LLC $ 8,462,273

Ellington View, L.P.
Mortgage payable, monthly payments of $6,237. Interest

at 4.876%. Collateralized by the property of Ellington View, LP $ 381,148
Subtotal of notes payable-Ellington View, LP $ 381,148

Total Notes Payable $ 77,942,544

Less: current portion (2,190,076)

Long-term portion $ 75,752,468

The payoff on these notes are as follows:

2025 $ 2,190,076

2026 2,386,310

2027 1,950,756

2028 2,027,363

2029 1,964,268
Thereafter 67423771
Total Notes Payable $.77,942,544
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE E - MISCELLANEOUS LONG-TERM LIABITIES

The Organization, through its wholly owned entities, has loan agreements funded with tax credit
exchange (TCE) funds from Tennessee Housing Development Agency (THDA) pursuant to Section 1602
of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Section 1602). Under Section 1602, state
housing agencies can exchange allocations of low-income housing tax credits (LIHTC) which have been
allocated to their state under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code (Section 42) for cash at a
prescribed rate of up to $.85 for each dollar of LIHTC. In turn, the state housing agencies can use
Section 1602 funds to make forgivable loans to properties that qualify for LIHTC.

Loan proceeds funded with Section 1602 program funds are intended to assist with the payment of
development costs of LIHTC properties. In exchange for the funds received, the entities have agreed to
operate low-income properties in accordance with Section 42. Portions of the loan which have been
amortized are not subject to recapture and are considered government assistance related to assets.

The non-interest-bearing notes mature in fifteen (15) years, with repayment due only upon certain
events of default as noted in the Loan Agreement. Under the Loan Agreement, loan principal is reduced
annually at the rate of 6.67% over the fifteen (15) year tax credit compliance period. Recapture of the
unamortized balance is subject to the subsidiaries maintaining compliance with Section 42. The notes
are secured by a Deed of Trust, which represents a second lien on certain real property.

As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding balance of the Section 1602 loans was $1,416,402. The
reduction in recapture risk on the loans for 2024 was $687,834. No principal payments are required to
be paid during the loan term. Amounts by entity are as follows:

1602 Loan Balance

(Subject to Recapture)

WCO Algood Manor GP, LLC $ 321,856
WCO Cumberland Place GP, LLC 244,065
WCO Kareday, LLC 169,098

Total $.1,072,567

NOTE F - DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS

Deferred mortgage costs incurred in obtaining mortgages are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the life of the mortgages. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require that the effective yield method be used to amortize financing costs; however, the effect of using
the straight-line method is not materially different from results obtained under the effective yield
method. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 was approximately $53,881.

17

Exhibit E



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE F - DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS (continued)

Estimated amortization expense related to financing fees for each of the ensuing years through
December 31, 2037 and thereafter is as follows:

2025 $ 53,881
2026 53,881
2027 53,881
2028 53,881
2029 53,881
Thereafter 833,794

TOTAL $_ 1,103,199

NOTE G - DEPRECIATION

Depreciation for the year ended December 31, 2024 is $3,483,481. The building, furniture & fixtures,
and equipment are depreciated with lives-as follows: -~~~ —-

Buildings 27 V2 - 40 years
Furniture & fixtures 5 -7 years
Equipment 5 years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets —Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable.
Recoverability is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount to the future net undiscounted cash
flow expected to be generated and any estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition. If the long-
lived assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured at the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value as determined by an appraisal, discounted cash
flows analysis or other valuation technique. No impairment losses are recognized in 2024.

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

The Organization has received monies from the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency
(MDHA) to enable it to buy, or build, and rehabilitate houses, land or apartment complexes. The
monies have restrictions that the Organization must meet for 15 to 20 years to enable the monies to
become a grant. The monies are amortized over the 15 to 20-year period. The remaining amount may
be payable with interest if the restrictions are not met.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued(

Currently the Organization has a Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP1) agreement to rehab the
12" Avenue property to be used to house low-income tenants. The amount of this agreement is
$900,000. The Organization also has a NSP2 agreement in the amount of $10,949,133 to buy houses,
land, and apartment complexes to rehab or construct. At December 31, 2024, the Organization
purchased such items using $10,949,133. Amortization of the NSP1 agreement in the amount of
$45,000 has been released to unrestricted net assets during 2024. Amortization of the NSP2 agreement
in the amount of $811,265 has been released to unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2024.

In 2024 The Organization received a Community Home Loan in the amount of $1,404,000 for construct
multi-family housing at 701-709 40th Avenue in Nashville, TN. The Organization completed
construction on the multi-family housing in 2024. Amortization of the loan in the amount of $35,100
was released to unrestricted net assets during 2024.

Total funds released from restriction in 2024 were $891,365.
NOTE | - SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION

The Organization purchased real property and equipment of an unrelated party for $11,514,298. The
purchase was made through entering two loan agreements. $9,599,403 was borrowed from Facilities
Funding Group, LLC and $1,914,895 in a seller/tenant financed loan with Open Arms Care Corporation
(See Note D). In conjunction with the purchase, the Organization entered into thirty-six (36) lease
agreements to leaseback the property and equipment to the seller. The leases are for terms of 15 years
and can be extended at the option of the tenant for two additional years.

The Organization also completed construction on nine (9) new homes in 2017 in Chattanooga, Knoxville
and Greeneville. The Organization entered into nine (9) lease agreements to lease the facilities to Open
Arms Care Corporation.

During 2020, the Organization completed construction and financing on ten (10) replacement homes in
Memphis. The Organization entered into ten (10) lease agreements to lease the facilities to Open Arms
Care Corporation.

During 2023, the Organization completed construction and financing on ten (10) replacement homes in
Knoxville. The Organization entered into ten (10) lease agreements to lease the facilities to Open Arms

Care Corporation. All of the referenced leases are for terms of 15 years from the date of occupancy and
be extended at the option of the tenant for an additional five (5) years.

Rent income under these leases totaled approximately $6,775,992 in 2024.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE | - SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION (continued)

A summary of future minimum lease payments under the leases as of December 31, 2024, is as follows:

2025 $ 5,406,887
2026 4,625,478
2027 5,259,014
2028 5,128,988
2029 4,998,963
Thereafter 81,624,432

Total $107,043,762

As of December 31, 2024, the tenant owed approximately $5,613,5378 of accrued rent. These amounts
will be paid in 2024 subsequent to the tenant filing its annual cost report filing. The lease agreements
allow for remedies for changes to the allowed rental reimbursement in the annual cost report.

During 2017, the Organization amended its existing loan agreements with Facilities Funding Group and
entered into a tax-exempt financing bond (Series 2016A) with the Health "and” Educational Facilities
Board of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. The Board sold
the bonds to Facilities Funding Group, LLC and the payment terms effectively remained the same. The
interest rate decreased to 7.5%.

Proceeds from the loan were used as follows: $800,000 to establish a debt service fund, $375,000 for
loan closing costs, and $9,202,086 for land and building construction. There was a cost overrun of
$345,000 and Facilities Funding Group agreed to amend the loan agreement to include this amount in
2018. The total loan balance as of December 31, 2024 was $3,325,965.

In 2017, the Organization also entered a second tax-exempt financing bond (Series 2016B) for
$10,400,000 for the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of nine (9) new facilities to
provide immediate care services for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID). During 2022, the
Organization refinanced its Bond with a new tax-exempt financing bond (Serries 2022A). The loan
balance was $8,615,738 at December 31, 2024.

During 2022, the Organization amended its existing loan agreements with Facilities Funding Group and
entered into a tax-exempt financing bond (Series 2022B) with the Health and Educational Facilities
Board of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. The Board sold
the bonds to Facilities Funding Group, LLC and the payment terms effectively remained the same. The
interest rate is 7.99%. The total loan balance as of December 31, 2024 was $17,518,687.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE J - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization engages in certain . transactions with related parties from time to time. The
Organization has entered into a loan agreement to loan $3,500,000 to ECG Hermitage, LP, a limited
partnership to assist with the development of Hermitage Flats Apartments (“the Project”). The general
partner of ECG Hermitage, LP is WCO Hermitage Flats, GP, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Organization. The loan agreement is funded from monies obtained from the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission. The terms of the loan specify annual payments from net cash flows of the
Project, as defined by the LP Agreement. The term of the loan is thirty (30) years, payable beginning on
the first (1%) anniversary of the Completion Date as defined in the LP Agreement. Interest thereon will
be computed at the annual rate of zero percent (0.0%). The entire unpaid principal and all other charges
shall be due and payable on December 31, 2047. Management anticipates the loan to be repaid in full
within 15 years. As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding loan balance was $3,500,000.

During 2019, the Organization received a grant from the Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission
in the amount of $1,400,000. The Organization invested these funds in its wholly owned subsidiary,
WCO EIm Hill Flats, LLC (“"EHF") which used the funds to purchase property located at 825 Elm Hill Pike
in Nashville, TN. EHF will build a 71-unit apartment building and offer affordable housing. As outlined in
Note L, the cost of the apartment building was approximately $5,100,000 and is financed by EHF with a
loan of $4,680,000, with the Organization guaranteeing the debt. The loan balance at December 31,
2024 was $4,303,000.

NOTE K - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may exceed federally
insured limits. Management has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash or cash equivalents. At December 31, 2024,
$18,856,531 was uninsured.

The Organizations operations are concentrated in the low-income, multi-family real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulation of federal, state, and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to HUD. Such administrative directives, rules, and
regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress, or an administrative change mandated by
HUD. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including an administrative burden to comply with a change.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its support from the government. A reduction in the

The Organization conducts numerous activities as a developer of multi-family affordable housing. The
Organization materially participates in each project in which it has an interest. Most of the activities are
conducted through single-purpose entities controlled by the Organization. As part of its role as the
developer or sponsor of these facilities, the Organization is required to meet certain performance and
fiscal obligations, such as construction completion, rental agreements, debt service, and fraud and
misconduct by entities controlled by the Organization. It is not possible to quantify the potential
liabilities with respect to these obligations.

NOTE M - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis
‘that is consistently applied. The-expenses-that are-allocated include occupancy, depreciation, and
amortization, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages,
benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology, interest,
insurance, and other costs, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort

NOTE N - FAIR VALUE

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, provides a framework for measuring fair value. The framework provides
a three-tier fair value hierarchy of pricing inputs used to report assets and liabilities that are adjusted to
fair value. Level 1 includes inputs such as quoted prices which are available in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities as of the report date. Level 2 includes inputs other than quoted prices in
active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the report
date. Level 3 includes unobservable pricing inputs that are not corroborated by market data or other
objective sources. The Organizations investments would all be real estate related and would be
classified as Level 3 inputs.

The Organization utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability. The Organization's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and
their placement within the fair value hierarchy. At the end of 2024, the fair value of the Organizations’
other financial instruments approximates their carrying amounts, either because the expected collection
or repayment period is relatively short or because the terms are similar to market terms.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE O - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Company regularly monitors liquidity to meet its operating needs and other commitments. A
substantial portion of financial assets represent housing assistance payments received or receivable for
the purpose of providing low-income housing. The Company manages liquidity by ensuring financial
assets are available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations become due. Financial
assets available for general expenditures within one year of the statement of position date are:

Cash and cash equivalents $26,663,295
Other receivables, currently due 5,974,406
Prepaid expenses 145,849
Available to meet current liabilities $32,783,550
Less: Liabilities currently due (1,626,791)

Tenant security deposits (93,782

Financial assets available to meet cash needs
For general expenditures within one year $37.986,399

As part of our liquidity management, it invests cash in excess of daily requirements in an interest
bearing, short-term money market investment account, which is a cash equivalent.

NOTE Q - RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARD

In 2022, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases, which
requires lessees to recognize leases on the statement of financial position and disclose key information
about leasing arrangements. All leases are short-term. Therefore, no disclosure is required as of
December 31, 2024. Additionally, management elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or
existing contracts to determine whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of any
existing leases, or (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. As a result of implementing ASU No. 2016-
02, the adoption did not result in an effect on amounts reported in the statement of financial position
sheet for the year ended December 31, 2024.

NOTE R — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events as of May 15, 2025, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any significant events that occurred
subsequent to the statement of financial position date but prior to the filing of this report that would
have a material impact on the financial statements.
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8118A SAWYER BROWN ROAD
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37221
(615) 673-1120

(615) 673-0989 (F)

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 1l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc., which comprise the statement
of financial position as of December 31, 2024, and the related statements of activities, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 15, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting - -~ —— -~ -

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Woodbine
Community Organization (WCO), Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Woodbine Community Organization (WCO),
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Woodbine Community Organization
(WCO), Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Lot~ KoVer € Joallengo—

Nashville, Tennessee
May 15, 2025
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GRANT CONTRACT 2025-R15-WCO/BV
BETWEEN

THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY,

TENNESSEE
BY AND THROUGH
THE METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST FUND COMMISSION
AND
WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION

This Grant Contract issued and entered into by and between the Metropolitan Government of
Nashville and Davidson County, a municipal corporation of the State of Tennessee hereinafter
referred to as “Metro”, and Woodbine Community Organization, hereinafter referred to as the
“Recipient,” is for the provision of the construction of affordable housing as further defined in the
"SCOPE OF PROGRAM." Recipient will be developing 60 Barnes Fund affordable housing
units located at 2122 Buena Vista Plke, hereinafter referred to as the "Project’. The Recipient’s
grant budget is incorporated herein by reference. The Recipient is a nonprofit charitable or civic
organization.

A.

A1

A2.

A3.

A4,

SCOPE OF PROGRAM:

Each Property to which these grant funds are provided for shall be subject to a
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (“Declaration”) imposing certain
affordability requirements to encumber the Property and run with the land over
a 40-year term (“Affordability Period”). Terms defined in the Deciaration shali
have the same meanings when used in this Agreement.

The Recipient shall use the funds under this grant in accordance with the affordable
housing project described in the Scope of Work, which is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Attachment A, and any of its amendments and subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

The Recipient, under this Grant Contract, will spend funds solely for the purposes set
forth in the work scope outlined in Attachment A. These funds shall be expended
consistent with the Grant Budget, included in Attachment B. Aithough some variation in
line-item amounts for the Grant is consistent with the Grant Budget, any change greater
than 20% of a draw category shall require the prior written approvai of the Metro Housing
Director. However, in no event will the total amount of the Grant funds provided to
Recipient go above the Grant Award amount of $2,000,000.

This Grant Contract by and through the Housing Trust Fund Commission and the
Recipient is expressly limited to the Grant award and for the purposes described herein.
Prior to the use of any funds, the property must be properly zoned, and it is the sole
responsibility of the Recipient to pursue any necessary rezoning or other land use
change. This Grant Contract in no way serves to supersede the authority of the Metro
Nashville Planning Commission or the Metropolitan Council's authority to approve or
deny zoning or land use changes on the proposed property and shall not be used for
such purposes.

(NO281585 1) l
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AS.

A.6.

A7,

During the term of the Contract and the Affordability Period, Recipient or another qualified
nonprofit must maintain 51% ownership in the Project or in the general partner of the
Project.

Requirements for Rental Projects:

a.

Tenants must be income-eligible at the time of initial occupancy, and Recipient must
certify all incomes annually and maintain a certified rent roll. In the event a tenant's
income increases above the income-requirement for the unit, the tenant is not
disqualified from remaining in the unit. However, the tenant’s rent shall be adjusted
to the corresponding AMI level for the next lease term.

The Recipient will provide Metro with a management plan program oversight which
includes certification of the rents, utility allowances, and tenant incomes. The
Recipient shall also provide Metro an annual certification that Barnes rental
requirements are being met throughout the Affordability Period.

The Recipient will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site
inspections of the Recipient and project for compliance with Barnes program
requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing tenant income calculations,
rent determinations, and utility allowances.

The Affordability Period applicable to both tenant income and maximum rents shall
commence on the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final
building within the project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the Affordability
Period will begin on the date of recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

Recipient shall not increase rents during the lease term. Such prohibition shall not
apply to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by
another federal, state, or local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting
from the grant funds.

During the Affordability Period, Recipient shall submit to Metro no later than July 15
of each year, an eviction report than includes the number of people evicted and the
reason for the eviction for the prior fiscal year (July 1-June 30).

Recipient shall post information on Fair Housing rights in the leasing office and make
information on Fair Housing rights available to tenants at least annually. Recipients
should endeavor to make information available to persons with Limited English
Proficiency.

At a minimum, Recipient shall undertake marketing and outreach and housing stability
efforts and implement application criteria as specified in Recipient's grant application.

Property Standards

a.

All projects must meet all applicable state and local codes, rehabilitation standards
(if applicable), ordinances and zoning requirements and mitigate disaster impact, as
applicable, per state and local codes, ordinances, etc.

b. Recipient must incorporate all Universal Design elements specified in Recipient's

grant application, which are incorporated herein.
{N0281585,1} 2
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c. Recipient must incorporate, at a minimum, all energy efficiency, and sustainability
practices and standards specified in Recipient's grant application, which are
incorporated herein.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

s3]

B.1. Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant
agreement until Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the
execution of the grant agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered
by the Recipient which are not performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan
Code of Laws § 2.149.040 (G), in the event the recipient fails to complete its obligations
under this grant contract within twenty-four months from execution, Metro is authorized
to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated funds from the
organization.

B.2. Contract Extensions. Recipient must notify Barmes Fund staff at least ninety (90) days
prior to contract expiration of its request to extend the contract term. Each additional
contract term cannot exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions must be
approved by the Metropolitan Trust Fund Commissicn and the Metro Council.

B.3.. __Contract Completion: The Contract Completion date is the date in which Metro has paid the
final invoice.

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

C.A. Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant
Contract exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) “Grant Award”. The Grant
Budget, attached and incorporated herein as part of Attachment B, details the project
budget, and the Grant Award shall constitute the maximum amount to be provided to
the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient’s obligations hereunder. The Grant
Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead,
and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient.

C.2. Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any
reason. The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is
not subject to escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended.

C.3. Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based
upon the Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.
Upon execution of the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the
Recipient may be eligible to receive reimbursement for milestones as completed based
upon the Grant Budget.

a. Grant Draws
1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule

+ Recipient shall submit draw requests in accordance with the Draw Schedule
provided in Attachment C. Changes to the Draw Schedule shall require an
amendment to the Grant Contract.

o Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the

{N0281585.1} 3
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C4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

c.s.

c.o.

Project by Metro or an approved designee unless otherwise specified in
the Draw Schedule. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of
the Project.

2) Construction Grant Draw Process
» Recipient must submit draw requests in the form and according to the
directions provided by Metro. All draw requests must be supported
by appropriate documentation as specified in the Draw Schedules.

* Allinvoices shall be sent BFPayments@nashville.qov.

* Said payment shall not exceed the maximum liability of this Grant Contract.

* Finalinvoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment
Services by 24 months from the execution of the grant agreement unless a
contract extension has been approved by the Metro Council, Any invoice
not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant
Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report, to be received by the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund within 45 days of project
completion in conjunction with the submission of the final draw on the award. Said report
shall be in form and substance acceptable to Metro and shall be prepared by a Certified
Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the Recipient Organization. It
should detail the outcomes of the activities funded under this Grant Contract.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro shall not prejudice Metro’s
right to object to the invoice or any matter in relation thereto. Such payment by Metro
shall neither be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor
as an approval of any of the costs included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts
included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on
the basis of audits or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant
Contract, to constitute unallowable costs.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or shall become
due and payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any
amounts which are or shall become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under
this or any Contract.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient
shall complete and sign Metro's form authorizing electronic payments to the Recipient.
Recipients who have not already submitted the form to Metro will have thirty (30) days to
complete, sign, and return the form, Thereafter, all payments to the Recipient, under this
or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made electronically.

Procurement. Recipient agrees and understands that procurement of goods and services
for the grant project must comply with state and local law and regulations, including the
Metropolitan Procurement Code. Recipient will provide Metro with all plans and
specifications needed for these procurement purposes. Recipient will promptly review,
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and either approve or disapprove, in good faith and with reasonable grounds all
estimates, amendments to scope of work, and all work performed by a contractor prior to
payment.

C.10. Public Meetings. At the reasonable request of Metro, Recipient agrees to attend public
meetings, neighborhood meetings, and offier events regarding this Project.

C.11. Recognition. Any signage, printed materials, or online publications erected at the
applicable Project site or elsewhere regarding the Project shall include the following
language or language acceptable by Metro acknowledging that the Project is partially
funded with a grant from the Barnes Fund for Affardahle Housing of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County:

This project is funded in part by the Barmes Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville & Davidson County.

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission

Freddie O'Connell, Mayor

Metropolitan Council of Nashville and Davidson County

D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

D.1. Required Approvais. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
o * appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant. . . _

D.2. Modificaiion_and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by
appropriate legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

D.3. Default and Termination for Cause. Any failure by Owner to perform any term or
provision of this Grant Contract shall constitute a "Default” (1) if such failure is curable
within 30 days and Recipient does not cure such failure within 30 days following written
notice of default from Metro, or (2) if such failure is not of a nature which cannot
reasonably be cured within such 30-day period and Recipient does not within such 30-
day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure or thereafter does not within
a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of
such failure. Should the Recipient Default under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient
violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro shall have the right to immediately
terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient shall return to Metro any and all grant
monies for services or projects under the grant not performed as of the termination date.
The Recipient shall also return to Metro any and all funds expended for purposes
contrary to the terms of the Grant. Such termination shall not relieve the Recipient of
any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

D.4.  Subcontracting. The Recipient shall not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a
subcontract for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining
the prior written approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors,
the Recipient shall be considered the prime Recipient and shall be responsible for all
work performed.

D.5. Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount shall
be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation,
or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or
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consultant to the Recipient in connection with any work contemplated or performed
relative to this Grant Contract.

The Recipient also recognizes that no person identified as a Covered Person below may
obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Metro Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant
assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those whom they
have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereatter.

Covered Persons include immediate family members of any employee or board member
of the Recipient. Covered Persons are ineligible to receive benefits through the Metro
Housing Trust Fund Competitive Grant program. Immediate family ties include (whether
by blood, marriage or adoption) a spouse, parent (including stepparent), child (including
a stepbrother or stepsister), sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a
Covered Person.

D.6.  Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person
shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment
practices of the Recipient on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification which is in violation of applicable laws. The
Recipient shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall postin
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of
nondiscrimination.

D.7.  Records. All documents relating in any manner whatsoever to the grant project, or any
designated portion thereof, which are in the possession of Recipient, or any subcontractor
of Recipient shall be made available to the Metropolitan Government for inspection and
copying upon written request by the Metropolitan Government. Furthermore, said
documents shall be made available, upon request by the Metropolitan Government, to any
state, federal or other regulatory authority and any such authority may review, inspect and
copy such records. Said records include, but are not limited to, all drawings, plans,
specifications, submittals, correspondence, minutes, memoranda, tape recordings, videos
or other writings or things which document the grant project, its design and its construction.
Said records expressly include those documents reflecting the cost of construction,
including all subcontracts and payroll records of Recipient.

Recipient shall maintain documentation for all funds provided under this grant contract.
The books, records, and documents of Recipient, insofar as they relate to funds
provided under this grant contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years
from the date of the final payment. The books, records, and documents of Recipient,
insofar as they relate to funds provided under this grant contract, shall be subject to
audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro or its duly appointed
representatives. Records shall be maintained in accordance with the standards outlined
in the Metro Grants Manual. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

D.8.  Monitoring. The Recipient's activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this
Grant Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by Metro or Metro's duly
appointed representatives during the term of the contract and throughout the affordability
period. The Recipient shall make all audit, accounting, or financial records, notes, and
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D.10.

D.11.

D.12.

D.13.

D.14.

other documents pertinent to this grant available for review by the Metropolitan Office of
Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro's representatives, upon request, during
normal working hours.

Reporting. Recipient will be required to provide annual progress reports no later than
July 15 of each year. The progress report should summarize activity that occurred during
the previous fiscal year (July 1 — June 30). Said report shall be in a form provided by
Metro. In addition, Recipient shall submit a Close-out Expenditure and Narrative Report
as provided in section C.4 above detailing the outcome of the activities funded under this
Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant,
condition, or provision, No term or condition of this Grant Contract shall be held to be
waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment by the appropriate parties
as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

insurance. The Recipient shall maintain adequate public liability and other appropriate
forms of insurance, including other appropriate forms of insurance on the Recipient's
employees, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant
Contract.

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall in any way be construed or intended to
create a partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the
relationship of principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The
Recipient shall not hold itself out in @ manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph.
Metro shall not become liable for any representation, act, or omission of any other party
contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

a. Recipient shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for
injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its
sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract,
and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any
failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or
independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to,
labor laws and minimum wage laws.

b. Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient from
any claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that
the Recipient may provide.

¢.  Recipient shall pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure to
fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.
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D.15.

D.16.

D.17.

D.18.

D.19.

D.20.

D.21.

D.22.

D.23.

D.24.

d.  Recipient’s duties under this section shall survive the termination or expiration of
the grant.

Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Grant Contract are subject to
prevention by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the
exercise of due care including, but not limited to, acts of God, riots, wars, strikes,
epidemics or any other similar cause.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract
and any and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal
action concerning this Grant Contract shall be in the courts of Davidson County,
Tennessee.

Attorney Fees. Recipient agrees that, in the event either party deems it necessary to
take legal action to enforce any provision of the Grant Contract, and in the event Metro
prevails, Recipient shall pay all expenses of such action including Metro’s attorney fees
and costs at all stages of the litigation.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding
between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the
terms and conditions of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and
all prior understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the
parties relating hereto, whether written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and shall not be construed
as part of this Grant Contract.

Licensure. The Recipient and its employees and all sub-grantees shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses. Recipient will obtain all
permits, licenses, and permissions necessary for the grant project.

Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this contract shall affect the right of any party
thereafter to enforce such provision or to exercise any right or remedy available to it in
the event of any other default.

Inspection. The Recipient agrees to permit inspection of the project and/or
services provided for herein, without any charge, by members of the Grantor and
its representatives.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract shall inure to the benefit
of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties
hereto. Except for the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this
contract nor any of the rights and obligations of Recipient hereunder shall be assigned or
transferred in whole or in part without the prior written consent of Metro. Any such
assignment or transfer shall not release Recipient from its obligations hereunder. Notice
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D.25.

D.26.

D.27.

of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient under this Contract must be sent
to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to
offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or
former employee to solicit, demand, accept ar agree to accept from another person,
a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval,
disapproval, recommendaticn, preparations of any part of a program requirement or
a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement
standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity
in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, ciaim or
controversy in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim
or contraversy of other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement ofa
contract or subcontract or to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It shall be a
breach of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be
made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or
higher tier subcontractor or a person associated therewith, as an inducement for the
award of a subcontract or order. Breach of the provisions of this paragraph is, in
addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may result in
civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from participation in
Metropolitan Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract
shall be in writing and shall be made by facsimile transmission, email, or by first class
mail, addressed to the respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address
as set forth below or to such other party, facsimile number, or address as may be
hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro:

Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission / Barnes Housing Trust Fund
Planning Department — Housing Division

PO Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219

BarnesFund@nashville.gov

Recipient:

Tony Woodham
643 Spence Lane
Nashville, TN 37217
615-833-9580

twoodham@woodbinecommunity.orq
Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, 8 Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
and entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,

(NO281585.1) 9

Exhibit F



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

¢. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors of federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

D.28. Effective Date. This contract shall not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed
first by the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan
Government and has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has
been so signed and filed, this contract shall be effective as of the date first written

above.
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

APPROVED AS TO PROGRAM SCOPE:

Al AT

r Westerholm, Chair
etropolitan Trust Fund Commission

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF

=N,

EJU;J;:M Fed fmw

BG23TTAZABTAZAG0. .
JENNEeEn meeaq, uvireclor

Department of Finance

A Sieds A8 TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

[ Mw1 fAwes
122C5ADADED4 DA

Assistant vietropolitan Attorney

APPROVED AS TO RISKAND

MDY IDANIMC,
(—Dacuslﬂnad by:

Balagur Coll

GEE0ABF12FDTAIC. .
wirecror or Kisk Management Services

APPROVED BY METROPOLITAN
GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND
DAVIDSON COUNTY:

RECIPIENT:

Woodbine Community Organization

By: /%/',Cék__ _—
Tité:/ A LAUTIVE b ; (‘4,&‘4'@/

Sworn to and subs%ribed to befﬁre me a
Notary Public, this £lzday of 143( LT
2025.

[Notary Public seal] '
\‘“‘“ 'D'é "f:,’”
...-lu-. /@ ,f

-
<
sSooS
‘\

"owo...lo q‘..
LLTTY aa® -

"’f; Co U Nﬁ‘\“‘

LT

otary Public '
m NAQ .

Metropolitan Clerk

My Commission expires _(Q_LQ‘_-}_QQQ X

{N0281595.1) 12
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ATTACHMENT A

Barnes Housing Trust Fund Scope of Work

Contract Number: 2025-R15-WCO/BV

Funding Round Number: 15

Organization Name: Woodbine Community Organization
Project Location: 2122 Buena Vista Pike, Nashville
Project Type: Rental New Construction

Grant Award: $2,000,000

Metro Property Award: N/A

Total Number of Units in Development: 60

Total Number of Barnes Fund Units by Income Target:

S 30% AW 31-60% AMI 51-807% AN Tota!

0 60 N/A 60

Project Summary: This shovel-ready project will deliver 60 high-quality, transit-accessible affordable
housing units in Nashville's Bordeaux neighborhood, addressing a critical shortage of family-sized rental
housing. Designed with families in mind, 20% of the units will be three-bedroom apartments, providing
essential space for larger households. The development will also include a playground, a community
garden, and a dedicated community room to support on-site programs, services, and resident events—
fostering a strong sense of neighborhood connection and support. Located in a transit-accessible area, the
project will enhance mobility and access to opportunity for low- to moderate-income families while
contributing to the long-term stability and growth of the Bordeaux community.
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ATTACHMENT B
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Grant Budget
Sources and Uses
Sources of Funds Amount Percentage of Total Status
Sources (Secured/Pending)

Barnes Housing Trust [2,000,000 9% N
Fund

Developer Equity/ 473,832 2%

Deferred Fee Secured
[Private Lender 4,833,396 21% Secured
Low-Income Housing (15,816,119 68%

Tax Credits Secured
(LIHTC)/etc.
Total Sources 23,123,347 100%

Uses of Funds Amount Percent of Total Barnes Funding
Barnes Award Amount
Funding

Acquisition Costs 1,605,000 0% -

Construction Costs

Site Work 2,316,638 25% 500,000

Vertical Construction 13,127,616 75% 1,500,000
Contingency 1,147,500 0% "

Soft Costs

Architecture & [568,000 0%

Engineering -

Legal and Permitting 210,000 0% -

Total Developer Fee  [2,670,307 0%

(including deferred fee)

Third Party Reports 28,000 0% 2

[Financing I661,181 0% .

HFA Fees 150,552 0% -

Other Soft Costs 290,000 0% -

Reserves (Operating/ 348,552 0%

Replacement) -

Total Uses 23,123,347 100% 2,000,000
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ATTACHMENT C
Barnes Housing Trust Fund Draw Schedule
The following percentages are based on the Barnes Fund grant award.
Draw # % of Grant Milestone
1 12.5% Upon receipt of the building permit, proof of builder's risk insurance
with Metro Nashville listed as a lien holder.
2 25% Documented predevelopment costs.
* 20% Footing, framing, and foundation complete.
4 20% Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical roughed-in, inspected, and
’ passed by Metro Codes; roofing complete.
5* 10% Doors, cabinets, countertops, drywall, trim installed.
6* 12.5% Receipt of Final Use & Occupancy letter from Metro Codes.

*Note: Draw requests 3-6 must be Inspected by Metro or a third-party inspector contracted with
Metro prior to the release of funds. All draw requests require documentation and are paid on a
reimbursable basis.
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ATTACHMENT D

Required Documents
The following are required items pursuant to Metropolitan Code 5.04.070:

1. A copy of the nonprofit's corporate charter or other articles, constitution,
bylaws, or instruments of organization;

2. Acopy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing the fact
that the organization is a nonprofit, tax-exempt organization under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,;

3. A statement of the nature and extent of the organization's program that
serves the residents of the metropolitan government;

4. The proposed use of the funds to be provided by the metropolitan
government (Provided in Attachment A);

5. The proposed budget of the organization, indicating all sources of funds
and a line-item identification of the proposed expenditure of metropolitan
government funds (Provided in Attachment B);

6. A copy of the nonprofit's annual audit or other required financial
documentation described in Metro Code subsection 5.04.070(E).
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SN

By-Laws of the Woodbine Community Organization, Inc.

Article | Identification

Section A - Name
The name of the organization shall be Woodbine Community
Organization, Inc. The organization name will be abbreviated as WCO.

Section B - Purpose
The purposes for which the corporation is organized are:

1. To improve the lifestyles of the people in our service area by
working together to preserve our neighborhoods;
2. To help provide residents of our service area access to decision-
making processes of state, local, and federal governments;
3. To improve living conditions of residents in our service area,
especially low and moderate income families;
4. To improve communications and cooperation of area residents,
from all racial, ethnic and religious groups and of all ages;
5. To recruit any federal, state, or local funds that are available to
the area for the purpose of maintaining and improving the
residential neighborhoods. _
6. To solicit and raise funds from public and private sources for the
development and maintenance of such projects and activities that
the corporation might develop in the furtherance of its geals.
7. To operate exclusively for charitable and educational purposes.
8. To help provide decent and affordable housing to low and
modeéerate income persons.
9. To engage in other activities which are not inconsistent with a
non-profit corporation and the purposes stated above.

Article 1l Steering Committee

Section A - Authority

The activities, affairs, business, and property of the corporation shall be
controlled, governed, managed, and supervised by the Steering
Committee. The Steering Committee shall determine the policies of the

. corporation and shall actively prosecute the corporate purposes and
goals. The Steering Committee shall meet at least quarterly. The
Executive Committee of the 4 officers shall have the power to act on any
business situations between quarterly Steering Committee meetings.
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Section B - Elections
S Steering Committeée members shall be elected by the existing Steering

Committee. A sub-committee of at least three members of the current
Steering Committee shall identify and interview candidates for Steering
Committee membership and make a nomination to the full Steering
Committee. Additional nominations shall be allowed upon duly seconded
motion at a Steering Committee meeting. The Steering Committee shall
not be less than seven (7) members nor shall the Steering Committee
exceed fifteen (15) members, including 4 officers and the chairpersons of
three (3) standing committees, the Fund Raising Committee, the
Personnel Committee and the Real Property Oversight Committee. The
Steering Committee shall maintain at least one-third of its membership for
residents of low-income neighborhoods, other low-income community
residents, or elected representatives of low-income neighborhood
organizations. The Steering Committee shall not be composed of more
than-one-third of its membership by State or local government
representatives including employees of the Participating Jurisdiction or
State recipients and these representatives may not appoint more than
one-third of the organization’s governing body. The Steering Committee

. appointed by the State or local government may not, in turn, appoint the
remaining two-thirds of the committee membership. The election of
Steering Committee members is to occur no later than October in the year
preceding the beginning of the Steering Committee term.

Section C - Qualifications for Steering Committee Membership
Steering Committee membership is open to all adult citizens of the United
State of America and other adults who are legal residents.

Section D - Term of Office

The term of office for Steering Committee members begins on January 1.

- The four (4) officers, Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary, and
Treasurer, plus the chairperson of the three (3) standing committees,
Fund Raising Committee, Personnel Committee and Real Property
Oversight Committee, will be filled by Steering Committee members who
have had at least 2 prior years on the Steering Committee. For the first
election of Steering Committee members after adoption of these by-laws,
four (4) Steering Committee members will serve a term of one (1) year
and four (4) Steering Committee members will serve a term of the (2)
years. The remaining Steering Committee members will serve a term of
three (3) years. In all succeeding years, Steering Committee members will
be elected to terms of three (3) years.
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Section E - Vacancies
N Any vacancy on the Steering Committee shail be filied by the Steering
Committee. The newly elected Steering Committee member will serve for
the unexpired remaining term of the vacant Steering Committee position.

Section F - Removal
If a Steering Committee member misses four (4) consecutive Steering
Committee meetings without providing prior notice to the Steering
Committee, the members may be removed at the discretion of the
Steering Committee. Any Steering Committee members may be removed
by a majority vote of the Steering Committee whenever it is, in the
judgment of the Steering Commiittee, in the best interest of the
corporation. Such removal shall be undertaken only in the most extreme
situations.

Section G - Quorum
A maijority of the current Steering Committee members gathered for the
purpose of a meeting shall constitute a quorum. A quorum can be
established via physical presence or by real-time electronic participation,
including, but not limited to, telephone, teleconference, video conference,
and on-line chat communications in which all substantive discussions are
available to all participants.

Article Ill Officers
The officers of the corporation shall be as follows:
O Chairperson
O Vice Chairperson
O Secretary
O Treasurer

Section A - Chairperson
The Chairperson shall preside over the affairs of the corporation, shall
preside at all meetings of the corporation, and shall be chairperson of the
Steering Committee.

Section B - Vice Chairperson
The Vice Chairperson shall preside in the absence of the Chairperson and
oversee the supervision of the corporation as conducted by the operating
staff. '

Section C - Secretary
The Secretary, or the secretary’s designee, shall keep the minutes of the
Steering Committee meetings in books provided for that purpose. The
2 Secretary shall be custodian of the corporate records and perform all
duties accrued by the office and other duties so designated.
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Section D - Treasurer
= = The Treasurer shall have charge and custody and be responsible for all
funds of the corporation, receive and give receipts for monies due and
payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all
monies in the name of the corporation. In general, the Treasurer shall
perform all duties accrued by this office and other duties so designated.

Article IV Committees
There shall be three (3) Standing Committees.

Section A - Personnel Committee
The Personnel Committee shall be responsible for developing job
descriptions for the Executive Director. The personnel committee shall
locate candidates for Executive Director job openings and recommend
these to the Steering Committee for approval. The Personnel Committee
will be responsible for an annual review and approval of the personnel
handbook.

Section B - Finance Committee
The Finance Committee works with the Executive Director to develop a
workable budget for WCO which shall be presented to the full Steering
=5 Committee no later than October 31 of the year prior to be budget year.
Additionally, the Finance Committee plans the fund raising activities.

Section C - Real Property Oversight Committee

The Real Property Oversight Committee meets with the Executive Director
to receive assurance that all real property is identified within the corporate
accounting system, that taxes and insurance premiums are being
monitored, that property maintenance is current and adequate, and that
adequate funds are being set aside to cover larger expenditures that do
not occur each year.

Article V Staff
Job descriptions for all staff positions shall be developed by the Executive
Director. The Steering committee may establish other personnel policies as
needed.

Article VI Books, Records and Contracts
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Section A - Books and Records
R The corporation shaii keep correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of the Steering
Committee meetings. The books are to be audited, annually, by a firm
appointed by the Steering Committee. The audit firm will present the audit
report and audit findings to the Steering Committee.

Section B -Coniracts
All contracts, other than contract for budgeted, recurring operations, must
be presented to the Steering Committee for approval prior to entering into

the contract.

Article VIl Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January and end
on the last day of December of each year.

Article VIIl Amendments

These By-laws may be amended as deemed necessary by a two-thirds (2/3) vote
of a properly constituted quorum at a Steering Committee meeting.

TN
Article IX Effective Date
These Amended By-laws shall be effective upon approval by the Steering
Committee.
Article X Rules for Order of Business
In general, Robert's Rules of order shall be used for the order of business at all
meetings.
Certificate
| certify that the members of the Steering Committee, by two-thirds (2/3) vote of a
properly constituted quorum at a duly called meeting did approve the above By-
Gf the Corporation, as amended, on /-2 , 2010.
athie Dodd o
Executive Director
N
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CHARTER OF

THE WQODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCO), INC.

% S0he undersigned natural persons, having capacity to contract
and acting as the incorporators of a corporstion under the

‘Tennessee General corporation Act, adopt the following charter

for such corporaticn:

1. The name of the corporaticn is the Woodbine Community
Ocganization (WQD), Inc. ’

2, The duration of the corporation is perpetual.

3. The address of the principal office of the corporation shall
be 2403 Winford Avenue, Nashville, TN 37211, until such time
as another address is designated oy the organizaticn.

4, The corporation is not for profit.

5. The purposes for which- the corporation is orge.aized are:

a, To improve the lifestyles of paople in our area by working
together to preserve our neighborhood;

BE. To help provide residente in our area access to decision-
making processes of city, state, and federal qovernments;

c. To improve living conditions of residents in the area,
especiallv low and moderate income families;

d. To .improve communication and cooperation of area residents,
black and white, young and old;

e. To recruit any federal, state, or local funds that are
available to the area for the purpose of maintaining and
improving the residential neighborhood; s

f. To solicit and raise funds from public and private sources
for the development and maintenance of such projects and
activities that the corporation might develop in the

. furtherance of its goals; -

3. o operate exclusively for charitahle and ccucational

purposes.

6. No part of the earnings of this corporation may inure to the
benefit of any private shareholder, member, or individual.

7. This corporation is not organized to attempt to influence
leg:islation by carrying on propaganda and shall not
participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of any candidate for public office.

8. Upan the termination or dissolution of the corporation in any
manner or for any reason, lts assets (if any) remaining after
payment of all liabilitles, shall be distributed to, and only
to, one or more organizations described in Section 501(c) (3}
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. :

9. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these rticles, this
corporation shall not carry on any other activities not
r=ruitted to be carried on by:

a. A corporation exempt from Federal income tax under section
§01(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 or the
corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revenhue Law, or

b. A corporation, contributions to which are deductible under
section 170{c)(2) of the Intermal Revenue Codes of 1954 or
any other corresponding provision of any future Dnited
States Internal Revenue Law.

10. Notwithstanding any other . provisions of these articles, the
purposes for which the corporation is organized are
exclusively charitable and educational within the meaning of
srction 501(c)(3) of the In.ernal Revenue Code. ‘

parep: 12/ / 1985.
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Employer |dentlfleatlon Number:

Dafe: DEC 8 1988 .I . ) i

Accounting Period Endlng:
~December 31 .
Foundastion Status Classiflcation:
509(a) {2y
: Advancs Rullng Perlad-Endx: Begin: 12/17/
Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc. and Ending: 12/31/87
313 Peachtree Street : Parsan to Contact

Nashville, TN 37210 Ann Baker/nds
Contact Telephone Number:

(404) 331-4516
FFN: 580072760

Dear Applicant:

Based on informatiom supplied, and assuming your opergtions will be as stated
in your applicaticn for recognition of exsmptionm, we have detsrminsd you are exsmptl
from Federal income tax under sSeatlon 301l (e) (3) ef the Intsrnmal Revenus Cods.

Because you are a nevwly creatsad ocrganization, we are not now making a final
determination of your,fbundationfstatusfmndar'sectibn—acg(a),or the Cede. However,
ve have dstermined that you can reascnably be expectsd to be a publicly suppnarted

N organization described in section 509(a) (2).

Accordingly, you will be treated as a publicly supported eorganization, and not
a2s a private foundatdon, during anm advance ruling period. This sdvance ruling period
begins on the date of your inception and ends on the date shown above.

Within 90 days arfter the end "¢f your -advamce ruling period, you must submit to
us information needed to determine whether you have met the requirements of the
applicable support test during the advance ruling periocd. If you establish that you
have been a publicly supported organization, you will ‘be. classified as & sectlon
509(a) (1) or 509(s)(2) organization as long as you continue tc mest the requiremsnts
of the applicébla'suppoft test. If you da unot méet\;he public support requirements
during the adv-=nce ruling period, You will be classifled as a-private foundation
for future periods. Also, if you are classified as a private. foundation, you will
be treated as a privete foundastlion from the dats of'your incepticn far purposes or
sections ‘507 (d) and 4940.

]

‘Grantors and donors- may rely on the Qetermination that You ars not a private
foundation until 90 days after - -the end of Yyour advance ruling period. If you submit
the required information within the 30 davys, grantors and donors may continue to
rely on ths advancs daterminatib% until the éervice maksg 8 final determination of
your foundation status. However, if natice that ydu will no longer be treated as a
section 509(a)(2) organization 13 published in the Internal Reveque
Bulletin, grantors and donors may not rely on this determination after the date of
such publication. Also, 8 grantor-or donér may npot.rely on this determination if he
or she was in part responsible faor, or was aware of, the act or failure to act that

TN . . . .
resulted in your loss of section 509(a)(2) : status, or acquired knowledge
that the Internal Revenus Service had given notice that you would be removed from
classirication as a saction 509(a)(2) organization,

(ovar)

Letter 1045(DO} (Rev. 10-83)

7. 0. Box 1085, Atant, GA 30370
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- I’ yuu:- sources o sunnart or vour pur:ose i na acr. 1-. or ::er.'nod al voer
a.ge plezase let us know So we can consider 'He effect of the changes on your
2xXespt status and foundation Status Alse, you should inform us aof all changes in

Your name or address.

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable r&r taxes under thHe Federal .Insurance
Comtributions Act (soclal security taxss) én Temune¥ation of 3100 or more you pay
Lo each of your employess during & calendar year. You are mat 1' “le for the tax
{zposed under the Federzl Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).

Organizations that are not privats foundations a;a not subject te the excise
taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. Howsver, you ars not autgmatically esxesmpt rrom
other Federal excise taxss. If you have any questions about excisas, employment, or
other Federal taxes, pleass let us kmow.

Donors may deduct contributioens to you as provided in ssctiom 170 of the Codo
Baguests, lagacies, devisges, tran:rar:. or gifts to you or far your uss &ara
deductible ror Federal sstate and gift tax purposes 1irf thsy maet the applicabls
provisions of secticas 2055, 2108, and 2522 of the Code.

. You are required to file Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt rrom Incoms
Ta;, only 1f your gross recaipts each year ars ﬁhrmally.mora,than $25,0QO. If a
Teturn is required, it must be riled by the 15tk day of ths rifth month artsr tha
end of your arnual accounting poriod The lav imposes a penalty of $10 a day, up to
8 zmexizum of $5,000, when a return is filed late, unless thers is roasonabls cause
for the dalay.

. 5 = 1
Tou are mot required to file Federal incoms tax rsturns unless you ars subject
to the tax on unrelated business income under seagtion 511 of the Coda. If you ars
subject to this taxr, you must rfile an incoms tax return on Form 990-T, Fxempt
/—RXOrgan4zation Busipess Iocome Tax Return. Ino this luttar ve ars not determining
rhether anoy of your prosent or proposed activities are unrslate:! trade or business
a3 delined in seation 513 of the Code.

Tou need an sop’ -~ {dsntification mumber even 1f you have no employwea. If
an employer idsmtir’ >z onumber: was not eatsred an your appllcation, a number
will be assigned tc and you will be advised orf-it. Plsase uss that number on

21l returns you file ..a io all cgrra:pundenct with the Internal Revenne Servics.
Bacausas this lettiar could help resclve amy questlons abgut sur exempt Status
aind foundation status, ycu should kaop it in your permanent rac- 3.

If you bhave any questioas, plaasa gogtact the persan whose name and telsphane
aumber are zhown in 1hu heading orf this letter.

Sincerely yours, s

: 2 el

District Director

Letter 1045(D0) (Rev. 10-83)
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DISTRICT DIRECTOR iGEGiH
401 W. PEACHTREE 8T. NN &

ATLANTAs GA. 30365 NIRRT
" Emp loyer Identification Number:

Date: NDV 1-5-1993 62-1230004

Case Numbers

“DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

583228048
WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION Contact Ferson:
WCOs INC. . VICKY BAKER
222 ORIEL AVENUE Cuontact Telgphaone Number:
NASHVILLE, TN 37210-4910 (404) 331=-0930

Date of Exemption:
" December 81 1934
Internal Revenue Cuode
Section . 501(c) ()

Dear Applicant:

; Thank you forseuballiting the. lafeornarion choun on the earlssurc, Mo nows
C

made it a part of your flle.

The changes indlcated do not adversely affect your exempt status and the
exemption letter issued to you continues in effect.

Flease 1ét us know about any future change in the character, purpose,
method of cperations name or address of your organizatisn. This is a
requirement for retaining your exempt status.

Py Thank you for your couperation.
Fpcerely yours, =
\L)"""‘-——'_——-
Paul Hilliams
District Directar
N

Ny" *ﬁ“fﬁm?ﬁ
lLetter 9/6 (DU/CG}
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% URCRTG!
DESIINATION, REVOCATION OR CHANGE
-OF
REGCISTERED AGENY
oF
THE HWOGUDIRE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCD), INC,
Ta o Betretary of Bate of the SLita of Tennassse
Purcuant tn the primisews of Sacnen 43 1200 of the Tenmasise Genaral Corgaraling As| the
umlettigne loreign & dormesiit v shian o e incorporator or Incorparalory ! 3 darmesiic
CRRRrAtIDN DR algandiell untdr the ALt tubavit Ibe following slatemint for the pirpase of
NRSENALING, MvORIAG O TRangng. A5 IR0 Case may De the registared azen! lor (hi Corbrratiam - the
state vl Tohnestes
1 The name of the coraration i THE WOODBIKE COMMI™NITY ORGANTZATION UCO), INC 'L
The aidre +5 od Ine crtporaton 1t 2403 Winford Avenuo ] ‘ E“
~ R Y TWIIRVIIle, TN 37T — “§

o toreizn eoperanon, stale or counliy of Incorporation

2 The nama and stree! sadress ol its registered agent n the State of Tennessee shal! be

Virginia Morgan

2403 Wanford Avenue

Nashville, TN 37211

Dec. 12 85
Dated .19

THE WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCO), INC,
Name of Corparanon

By

(Title)

(Incarporator

or incorporatcrs,
it corparation is

being organized)
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
< SECRETARY OF STATE '

—~ T * THIS REPORT IS DUE ON OR BeFoRE _April 1. 1987
| READ NGViCE AND lNSTFlUCTlONS ON OTHER SIDE BEFORE MAKING ENTRIES

{1} {a) CORPORATION CONTROL NUMBER: N16564¢2 ) (2) ENTER' CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF CORPORATION'S

THIS REPORT WILL NOT ‘BE FILED WTTHE)UT THIS-NUMBER PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN.THE STATE OF INCORPCRATION.
(1) {b) NAME AND ADDRESS OF CORPORATION: ‘ STREET ADDRESS

Woodbind Commmity Organization (WCO), Inc.

‘|P.O. BOX NUMBER

2403 Winford Avenue : ary

NaanlJ..Lel Tile 372-11 STATE 7 COCE
: ADDRESS RE I

12/17/85 D Not for Profit - WILL NGT BE OF RECORD. SEE INSTRUCTIONS.

{3) FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

{CEIMN
[g=1ar]

IF THE ABOVE ADDRESS IS INCORRECT IN ANY WAY. PLEASE CORRECT IN BLOCK 2
) (4) PRINCIPAL OFFICE OR PLACE OF BUSINESS iN TENNESSEE IF A FOREIGN CORPORATION:

_STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

(5) NAMES AND STREET AND MAILINTG ADDRES!.ES OF EAGH OFFICER MUST BE COMPLETFD: (ATTACH SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY.)

TITLE NAME STREET AND MAILUNG ADDRESS il CITY, STATE. ZIP CODE
PRESIDENT

VICE PRESIDENT

(N/4)

SECRETARY

TREASURER

/-\" {6) NAMES AND STREET AND MAILING ADDRESSES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MUST BE COMPLETED: (ATTACH SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY.)

L = NAME STREET AND MAILING ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
{ . m

A SO P

E-— L i [i/4)

! '.'f;_':','.'. &

i r_ﬂ -

| [[7YNAME AND A;DRES OF REGISIERED AGENT:

® gEugam‘i‘ REGISTERED AGENT, IF DIFFERENT FROM BLOCK 7 OR NOT ON

Virginia Morgan NAME
2403 Winford Avenue .
Nashville, Tn. 37211

Paula Pegae

STREET ADDRESS

329 Valerio St.
|cm'. STATE, 2P CODE

; : F’
(9) THE NATURE AND CHARACTER OF THE BUSINESS IN WHICH THE CORPORATION IS ENGA'aED is: -
Neighborhood Inmprovement; Beneftit to low and moderate income people

L

REMIT TEf 00), MADE PAYABLE TO TENNESSEE {10) UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, | DECLARE THAT | HAVE
SECRETARY OF STATE. fiJJECKS OR MONEY ORDERS ARE PREFERRED) EXAMINED THIS-REPORT, AND TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE
MAIL F._ITTANCE AND CUMPLETED FORM TO: AND BELIEF, T IS TRUE, CORRECT, AND COMr:7E.
TENNESSEE SECRETARY OF STATE \_‘(—9%9\" A ), S
JAMES K. POLK BUILDING, SUITE 500 \ : .

7" NASHVILLE, TENN. 37219 : e CatzparEon pae M\ -9-87
554444 ANY INCOMPLETE, UNSIGNED OR I' LEGIBLE REPORT WILL BE RETURNED TO YOU
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= 1

i

N « . PRt

? Infernal Revenue Service Departmert cf the Treasury
: District Director

Date: BEE 8 1 ggﬁ Employer Identification Numbar

Applied for
Accounting Perlod Ending:
December 31

Foundstion Status Glessification:

. 509(a) (2)
i = Advancs Ruling Feriad Enew: Begin: 12/17/85
. Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Ine. and Ending: 12/31/87
313 Peachtree Street ' Parzon to Contact
! Nashville, IN 37210 Anu Bakey /nds
l Contact Telephone Mumbar:

(404) 331-4516
FEN: 580072760

Dear Applicant:

3assd on informatior supplisd, and assuming your operations will be &5 stated .
in your appllcation for recognition of azemption, we have detsrmined you are exeipt
from Federal incoms tax under ssctiom 501{c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Because you 8r@ a nowly ¢reated crgonization, we are not now making s final
dsterpination of vour foundatien status under section 50%{u) of the Code. However,
ws have deturmined that yeu can ressonably be axpected ta he a publicly supported
argagization described in soction  50%(a)(2).

] 1% “Rccordingly, you will be trsated gs a vublicly supportad organization, and not
aw amprivate foundation, during an advaue~ ruling perioed. This aedvamce ruling pericd
[heaius o vhe Aats of your incepiliom aud snds on the date shown abave.,

i I

: = ﬁwzhiﬁ 90 du, s pfter the emd of waur advance ruling period, you must subm!t to
i ug: 4n£é“mation neaded Lo datermine whether you have met ths requirements of the

| ’ipx¢ﬁﬁble Suppart test during the advancs rmling peried. If you establisi that vou
nave ﬁ%bn a publicly supporiod organization, you will be clazsified &5 a Section

508 )(1) or 309{a) {2} orgenization as long as you continue to meet the requiremen=s
of the applicabla support test., If you do not meot the public Support requiremsnts
during the advonce ruling period, you will be cliassifisd a3 a private foundation
for futurs periods. Alse, 1if you are clagsified ag a private foundaiion, vou will

be ireated as a private foundatien from the date of your inceptlen for purposes of
sections 507(Qd) and 4920.

Grantoers and doners may raly om the dstermimation that you are nhoet a private
foundation until 9¢ days after the end of your advance ruling perisd. If vou submit
the required informstion within the 90 days, grantors awnd donors may continmue to
roly o¢n the edvance detsrmination until the Service wakes a finzl determinatien of
your foundation status. Hewever, 1f zmastice that you will no longer be treated as a
segtion 509(a)(2) orgemizaiinn 18 publishied in the Internal Revenus
B.lletin, grantors and donors may net rely on this dstermination after the dats of
syeh puebliczation. Also, & grantor or doner may not rely on this determination if hs
¢r she wss In pari responsible for, or was aware of, the act or failure {9 aet that

| resulted in vour loss of sectisn  S0%/2) (2} status, or aegulired knowcadge

! that the Internal Revenue Sorvice had given no+tice that you would be renoved from

! clagsification as a section 508(a)(2) organization.,

; {ove .}

i F. 0. Box 1053, Atlenta, GA 30370 Letter 1045(DO) (Rev. 10-83)
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T

1f vour sources af support, Or yaur gurpeses, character, or methed ¢f oparation
ghange, plemse let us komow so we 2an consider the effect of the change an your
sxempt status and fousdation status. Alse, vou should Inform us af all changes in
your name or address. .

As of Jamuary 1, 1984, you are liahle for taxes under the Fednral Insursnce
Contributions Act {secial security taxes) on rTemuneraticn of 3100 of more you pay
to each ¢f vour émploveas during a calendar year. ¥You ars mot iimbie for the tax

; imposed under the Pedéral Unsmployment Tax Act (FUZA). ' '

Organizations that are not private foundations are not subject ta the excise
taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. However, you are nat automatically axempt from ..
ather Fedsral oxdise texes. If you have any questions about excise, smployment, ar .
sthaer Federal taxes, please let us know: L :

Donors may deduct contributions te you as providaed in section- 170- of the Coda.
Beguasts, legacies, devises, trensfsrs, or gifts to you Or £6r ysur use &re
deductible for Peders: astate ani gift tax purposes if they meet the appllcable
provisions of sesticns 2055, 2108, apd 2522 of the Code. '

You ars requived to fils Form 830, Return of Orgacization Exampt from Income
Taz, omly if your gross receipts asch year are normally mers theo $25,000. If &
return is required, it must be rilsd by the 15th day sf the fifih month after the
end of your anmusl accousting peried. The law imposes a pemelty of $10 & day, up %o
g mazimum of $6,000, when a return is filed lats, unlezs thers is reasonable Zzaugs
for the delay. . . ' .=~ &3

. 8 M

Yor a&re net required te f£ile Federal income tax returns unless you are Subjeat
to the %ax on unrelated business income under Sécilon 511 of the lsds. Ig yo a..-é Sl
subject to thiz tax, yau must file an income tax return on Form 990-T, Ezewpt I
rganizatiocn Business Iscome Tax Rsturn. Ia this lstter, we ars not determinizg a%=
whsthar eny of your pregent 4T propossd activities nre uwnrelated trads ar buiémss:
as dafined io section $13 of the Cades ’ P-\') “

(2
You nesd an smplover ldaniificaticn musber aven 1f you have no employees. If
an employer identification sumber wee Gob sntared on your spplication, a namber
will he mgsigned to you and you will bo advised of it. Pleass nse that number on
211 returng you file and in all corrsspandencs with the Internal Revezue Servige.

Because this letter could help resolve any quesiions mbout your exempt status
and foundation status, you shounld kesp Lt in your perwansnt regords. )

If you hava ooy questions, piesse contaut the parscn whoge nome snd telsphons
aumber are shoem in the heediag ¢T this leiter,

Singersly yours, )

District Dirvestor

Letter 1045(D0) (Rev. 10--83)
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(}
Cepartaent of The Treasuey ‘ Internal Revenve Service
’ Eg Erovp 7404 ®
Suite 110%e Stop 520
401 Hest Peachtree §f.
Atlantar GA 30343

Persan To Contact!

: . . Kim Artis
Houdbine Corrynity COrganization . Telephone Husberi
HCO Inc {§04)331~-1978¢ .
222 Oriel &venve } : Refer Reply Te!
Mashvilles TH 37210 : EDS7H04LAN - "‘

EINY 62-1280006
gate; JUL 211992

Bezr Sir or Hadas!

He have received znd revicued the amended organizing documeais

thzt you subaitted on behilf of youp organizationr in wvhich
the organizing documents were approved and/or ddopted on
02701492y This intoraation has been wade a part of your

. (‘\le.
Your organ:zat1on shall continue to be recognized s exeaptl
ender Section 50I(CI{C3} of the Internal Revenve Codes cffec-
tive as ot 12/88, You szy cantinve to rely on this exesption
entil it is sodifiede terainated or revoked by ihe Internsl

Reveauve Service.

flease cuntinye tg Iei vs kaou of aﬁy changes in the purposer
‘characteérr aethod of operstiens naae or 3ddress of your
orgznization. This is s requirenent for retaiaing your #xeapt

status..

A capy of this letter shayld remain in your petszaent recordss
3s it say help resolve any qugstiun gbout yeor exeapt status,

Thank you for yaur coaperution

Siacepdlyr

-—

ra@nlzdtions
Coordinatar

S
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THTERNAL REVENUE BERVICE
. ~_OISTRICT.DIRECTOR
7401 . -PEACHTREE 8T. MM
(7} ATLANTAs 64, 50865

; Ly :
Datet NGV 151993 -

HOODBINE COMMUNIYY ORGANIZATION
HCOw INC,

222 DRIEL AVENUE

NASHVILLEs TH 37210-4710

Uear applicant:

- "made 1% a part of your flla.

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Enployer Identificatiou Numbers:
421250004

Case Number:
583223048

Contact Percon:
VICKY BAXER

Contact Telephone Number:
{404y TEI-0930

Date of Exemptions
Uecember 8¢ 1984

Internal Revente Code

Section 501(c) (%) —

Thank you for submlttlng the Infor‘uaﬁfon shosn on the erclosurs. He have

The changes ind’lcai:ed do not adversely affect your exempt status am_i"t;he
exempbion letber lssued to you continmues in effect.

Please let ug kaow about any futyre change in the characters purpose:
method. of operatlons name or address of your arganizatlon. This is a
7( ~ requlrement for retaining your exampt status. :

Thask you for your cooperation.

Sipcerely yoH:‘
(},Akiﬁn}

Paul Hillians-
pistrict Birector

Letter 976 (O0/CG)
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Mission Statement
Woodbine Community Organization

The Woodbine Community Organization is a mission-driven community development
organization dedicated to working with others to create places of opportunity where people of
diverse incomes and backgrounds access housing that is affordable, benefit from education and
economic opportunities, and fully participate in the civic life of their community. We work at the
intersection of housing, human services, and community engagement, always centering the
voices and needs of residents.

WCO fulfills this mission through a range of integrated services and strategic partnerships:

e Affordable Housing Development and Preservation
We develop, acquire, and preserve affordable rental housing for low- and moderate-
income individuals and families, including seniors, immigrants, single parents, and
people with disabilities. Our developments meet high-quality standards while remaining
deeply affordable.

¢ Resident Support and Stability Services
Through housing counseling and access to basic needs, we provide a safety net for
residents facing economic and personal hardship. We help tenants maintain stable
housing.

e Community Empowerment
WCO invests in the leadership and resilience of our residents by offering financial
literacy workshops, resident support, and other empowerment-based programs that foster
long-term self-sufficiency.

e Responsive, Accountable, and Data-Driven
Our work is grounded in community voice, informed by data, and accountable to
measurable impact. We engage directly with residents and stakeholders to ensure that our
work reflects the lived realities and aspirations of those we serve.

A Legacy of Service, A Vision for the Future
As WCO looks to the future, we remain steadfast in our commitment to affordable housing as a
human right and a foundation for community wellness. With every home we build, every family

we support, and every voice we uplift, we continue our journey toward a more just and thriving
Nashville.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION (WCO), INC.
And Its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

Audited Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon)
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8118A SAWYER BROWN ROAD
NASHVILLE. TENNESSEE 37221
(615) 673-1120

(615) 673-0989 (F)

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and

Tony Woodham, Executive Director
Woodbine Community Organization, Inc.
643 Spence Lane

Nashville, TN 37217

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Woodbine Community
Organization, Inc (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial

position as of December 31, 2024, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Woodbine Community Organization, Inc as of December 31, 2024,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

__ __ Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Woodbine Community Organization, Inc. and its wholly and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Woodbine Community
Organization, Inc's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Woodbine Community Organization, Inc's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Woodbine Community Organization, Inc's ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Consolidating Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The schedule of consolidation is provided in a separate report.

o) koo € Jrale g

Nashville, TN
May 15, 2025
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CURRENT ASSETS

WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 21, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts Receivable- Tenants/Grants
Prepaid Expenses

Inventory - Houses/Land

Note receivable - current

Total Current Assets

FIXED ASSETS
Land

Rental property (houses and apartments)
Furniture and Fixtures

Equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Total Fixed assets-net

OTHER ASSETS

Reserve Replacement
Escrow deposits

Operating reserves

Rental properties under construction
Tenants security deposits
Investments (Note B)

Loan to affiliate (Note C)

Note receivable - long term

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.

3

$ 26,663,295
5,974,406
145,849
1,754,071
1,266,608

35,804,229

14,702,681
112,531,172
762,749
1,741,135

129,737,737
(26,236,221)

103,501,516

522,332
290,720
53,936
192,503
536,755
10,713,411
843,314

13,152,971

$ 152,458,716
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2024

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable- programs
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable-management fees
Accrued mortgage interest
Accrued property taxes
Accrued payroll liabilities
Prepaid rent
Other current liabilities
Current portion - long-term notes payable (Note D)
Deferred revenues
Tenants security deposits

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term notes payable (Note D)
Debt issuance cost (Note F)
Miscellaneous long-term liabilities (Note E)

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions (Note 1)

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
4

$ 104,061
13

28,664

197,550
101,085

54,592

508,666
632,173

93,782

1,720,586

70,245,215
(1,103,199)
1,072,567

70,214,583

71,935,169

76,218,002
4,305,545

80,523,547

$ 152,458,716
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Combined Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Support and Revenue

Program fees 31,256
Development income 1,864,778
Contract revenues 3,397,017
Rental income 14,719,083
Portfolio income 1,240,740
NSP/Section 1602 Amortization 1,579,199
Gain on sale of property 416,536
Other income 183,632
Total Support and Revenue 23,432,251
EXPENSES
Administrative 2,429,956 -
Utilities 1,080,900
Operating and Maintenance 1,622,437
Taxes and Insurance 1,604,299
Financial 5,093,806
Depreciation and amortization 3,537,362
Total Expenses 15,368,760
TOTAL INCREASE IN NET ASSETS $ 8,063,491

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
5
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NET ASSETS Without Donor Restrictions, January 1, 2024 $ 68,389,601
Increase in net assets without restrictions 8,063,491

Change in investments

Transfer to net assets without donor restrictions {235,090)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, December 31, 2024 $ 76,218,002
NET ASSETS With Donor Restrictions, January 1, 2024 $ 3,792,910
Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 1,404,000
Grant Amortization relase from restrictions (891,365)
TOTAL NET ASSETS With Donor Restrictions, December 31, 2024 $ 4,305,545
NET ASSETS, January 1, 2024 $ 72182511
Increase in net assets 9,467,491
Grant Amortization relase from restrictions (1,126,455)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, December 31, 2024 $ 80,523,547

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
6
WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ 8,063,491

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash
Provided by operating activities

Depreciation 3,480,481
Amortization of loan costs 56,881
Gain on sale of assets/investments (416,536)
Section 1602 Grant Amortization (891,365)
NSP Grant Amortization (687,834)
(Increase) / decrease in:
Accounts receivables-tenants (598,438)
Prepaid expenses 109,341
Tenant security deposits (27,570)
Increase / (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (77,084)
Cash overdraft 1
Accounts payable - management fee 8,492
Accrued mortgage interest (1,227)
Accrued property taxes (60,760)
Accrued payroli liabilities (2,426)
Prepaid rent 15,031
Accrued expenses (147,432)
Deferred revenues -
Tenant security deposits held 3,287
Cash provided operating activities 8,826,333
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Procees from sale of assets/investments 416,536
Purchase of property and equipment (11,988,530)
Funding of reserves for replacement 358,374
Releases from escrow deposits (89,764)
Funding of operating reserves (8,310)
Cash used by investing activities (8,066,527)

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
7
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowing of notes payables
Loans to related party
Cash provided by financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid

See the accompanying accountant's compilation report.
8

(6,721,427)
(2,801,429)

(9,522,856)

(8,763,050)

35,426,345

$

26,663,295

$

5,095,033
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A ~SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), inc. was organized in December 1985. The organization is
a nonprofit organization, dedicated to meeting the needs of low-income residents, through HUD and
NeighborWorks certified assistance for pre-purchase home buying, reverse mortgage, foreclosure
prevention, rental readiness, financial literacy and volunteer income tax preparation. The organization
has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be exempt from federal income tax under
section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as an organization described in
section 501(c)(3) to accept funding and provide job training, affordable housing, after school tutoring
and other programs. The organization is funded by donations, public and private, along with
fundraising sponsored by its members, and revenues generated by activities in performance of the
organizations exempt purpose.

Since the mid-1990s the Organization has also developed a particular expertise in the development of
both single and multi-family rental housing units for low to moderate income families. "OGA”, "OMA",
"EHF", “MKA", "WCM", "EVA", "AMA”, and "CPA” all operate multi-family apartments which provide low

~to -moderate-income families-with-affordable-housing—"WEF“-and-“40™™"_are-in-the construction phase
and will also operate affordable houing, multi-family apartments.

In April 2015, the organization expanded its activities to include providing shared housing to an
unrelated company providing intermediate care for persons with intellectual and developmental
disabilities. These activities are operated in “WCO AL DP” (See Note J).

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and

accordingly reflect all material receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Principles of Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include transactions and accounts of Woodbine Community

Organization (WCO), Inc, and its’ wholly owned subsidiaries: WCO AL DP, LLC (“AL DP"), Woodbine
Oaks of Gallatin, LLC ("OGA"), WCO Oakwood Manor, LLC ("OMA"), WCO EIm Hill Flats, LLC ("EHF"),
WCO Elysian Flats, LLC ("WEF"), WCO 40" Avenue Apts, LLC ("40™), WCO Kareday, LLC ("MKA"),
Woodbine Cumberland Meadows, LP (“WCM"), Ellington View LP (EVA), Trinity-TN, LP ("AMA"),
Cumberland Place CCA, LP ("CPA"), and which are wholly-owned non-profit single-member limited
liability companies. All significant accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates
of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value
because of the short maturities of those instruments.
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Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in
substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are
recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or
grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as
follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not
subject to donor restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or
other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where
the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Property and Equipment

Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $4,000 are capitalized. Property and equipment
are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is
computed using primarily the straight-fine method.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions and grants received are recorded as unrestricted or temporarily restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restriction. As restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends, or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restriction. Development fees are earned on the development of low-income housing, as construction

progress metrics are met.

Rental Revenue
Rental revenue is recognized as rentals become due. Rental payments received in advance are recorded

as prepaid revenue.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributed Services

The Organization receives a substantial number of services donated by its friends and families in
carrying out the Organization's mission. No amounts have been reflected in financial statements for
those services since they do not meet the criteria for recognition under SFAS No. 116, Accounting for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

Functional Classification of Expenses
The following programs and supporting services are included in the financial statements:

Community activities include job education, job placement services, literacy education classes,
English as a second language classes, and various other community services.

Housing Programs include the development and management of both single and multi-family
affordable housing, education classes for prospective homeowners, and counseling for housing
preservation and foreclosure prevention.

Resource persons assist the community by providing resources, such as housing, food, and

technical assistance.

Supporting services include functions necessary to ensure an adequate working environment
and cost not identifiable with a single program, including costs associated with providing
coordination and articulation of the Organization’s program strategy, business management,
general record keeping, budgeting and related purposes, and fundraising cost.

Income Taxes
The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from federal and state income taxes
under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Management
has evaluated its tax positions taken and believes that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits is
not material to the financial statements as a whole. Therefore, no tax liability has been recorded.
Additionally, the Organization files a Federal Form 990 informational tax returns. The Organization is
currently open to examinations by the relevant taxing authorities for a period of three years from the
date the return was filed or its due date (including approved extensions).

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Advertising Costs
Costs related to advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $14,886 in 2023.

NOTE B - INVESTMENTS

The Organization owns interest in sole purpose Corporations and Limited Liability Companies which are
the general partners of the following limited partnerships with a minor ownership in Limited Liability

Companies. These sole purpose entities are recorded at cost.

NAME Ownership % Investment

Crockett Manor, LP 0.01% 11,109
Woodbine Cumberland Meadows, LP 0.01 % 1,000
Ellington View Apartments, LP 0.01% 380,864
Hamilton Creek Apartments, LP 0.02 % 1,000
Townhomes at Nashboro Village, LP 0.01 % 1,000
The Parks at Leigh Springs, LP 0.01 % 1,000
Hallmark Selma, LP (Alabama) 0.01 % 1,000
Woodbine Meadows, LLC (Virginia) 0.01% 7,449
Woodbine Willow Oaks, LLC. (Virginia) 0.01 % 33,834
Woodbine Oaks of Gallatin, LLC 100.00 % 97,700
Woodbine Magnolia Gardens GP, Inc. 100.00 % 16,132"
WCO Oakwood Manor, LLC 100.00 % 108,068’
WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC 100.00 % 2,866,844’
WCO Algood Manor, LLC 100.00 % 328,676
WCO Cumberland Place, LLC 100.00 % 650,550
WCO Kareday, LLC 100.00 % 12,000’
WCO AL DP, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO Village Green Apartments, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO Cumberland Manor, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO River City North, LLC 100.00 % 100
WCO Spence Lane, LLC 100.00 % 100
Woodbine Crocket Manor GP, Inc. 100.00 % 100
WCO Hermitage Flats GP, Inc. 100.00 % 100
WCO Patterson Flats GP, Inc. 100.00 % 100

Total 4,519,026

Less, consolidating elimination of wholly owned ' (3.982,271)

Net Investments $__ 537,755
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE C - LOANS TO AFFILIATES

The Organization loaned $82,922 to one of its affiliates, a multi-family low-income apartment complex,
Future minimum payments cannot be determined at this time. The note bears interest at 0%.

The Organization has loaned affiliates a total of $24,982,156 2023 in Sponsor Loans in accordance with
Grant agreements. At December 31, 2024 total amount outstanding to affiliates was $24,982,156 of
which $14,268,745 is eliminated upon consolidation. Future minimum payments cannot be determined
at this time. The note bears interest at 0%.

As part of the Grant Contracts between the Organization and the Metropolitan Housing Trust Barnes
Fund, the Organization has entered into a promissory note to lend $10,406,329 to affiliates. The
affiliates utilized the funds to build low-income apartments. At December 31, 2023, the outstanding
amount was $10,406,329. Future minimum payments are not required at this time. The stated interest
rate of the loans is 0%.

Total loans to affiliates as shown on the statement of position is $10,406,329.
NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE
As of December 31, 2023, long-term debt and notes payable consist of the following:
Borrowings of the Organization’s subsidiaries are:
WCO AL DP, LLC
0% subordinated promissory note payable, dated April 1,
2015, amended July 1, 2017. Principal and unpaid interest
due on maturity date of April 27, 2030. 1,914,896
$9.3 million Series 2016A tax-exempt bond payable dated
monthly payments of $43,616, plus interest at
7.95%. Matures April 20, 1933. (Note I). 3,325,965
$8.9 million Series 2022A tax-exempt bond payable dated
May 12, 2022, with principal plus interest at 7.99%.
Matures April, 2051. (See Note I) 8,615,738
$8.9 million Series 2022B tax-exempt bond payable dated
May 12, 2022, with principal plus interest at 7.99%.
Matures April, 2051. (See Note l) . 17,518,687
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

$20.3 million Series 2022C tax-exempt bond payable dated

May 12, 2022, with principal plus interest at 7.99%.

Matures April, 2053. (See Note ) 20,028,226

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO AL DP, LLC $ 51,765,013

WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC

Note payable with Pinnacle Bank with principal payments of

$13,000 monthly. The note bears interest at prime minus 4.0%

Collateral is the buildings of WCO EIm Hill Flats, LLC. 4,303,000

Subtotal of long term debt-WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC $ 4,303,000

Oaks of Gallatin, LLC

Note payable to Pinnacle Bank with principal payments of

$4,500 monthly. The note bears interest at prime minus 4.0%.

Collateral is land, buildings, and equipment of Woodbine

Oaks of Gallatin, LLC., Gallatin, TN. 581,944

Subtotal of notes payable-Oaks of Gallatin, LLC $ 581,944

Woodbine Cumberland Meadows, L.P.

Note payable with payments of $3,385.97 monthly. Interest

at 3.000%. Collateral includes the real property of Woodbine

Cumberland Meadows, L.P. 578,584

Subtotal of notes pavable-Woodbine Cumberland Meadows $ 580,215

Oakwood Manor, LLC

Note payable in monthly installments of $1,814 including

interest at a rate of 3.5% per annum for 10 years. Matures

September 29, 2027. Collateral includes the land, buildings, and

equipment of Woodbine Oakwood Manor, LLC., Milan, TN. 58,362

Note payable in monthly installments of $1,111 including
interest at a rate of prime minus 4.0% per annum. A
The loan matures August 8, 2029. 84,874

Subtotal of notes pavable-Oakwood Manor, LLC $ 144,736
14
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Trinity-TN, LP

Mortgage including interest of 3.2% per annum, over a
thirty-five (35) year amortization. Monthly installments

of principal and interest are $7,325 until August 1, 2048.
Collateral is the real property of Algood Manor Apartments

iocated in Ailgood, TN. 457,613

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Algood Manor $ 1,457,613

Cumberland Place CCA, CP

Mortgage including interest of 3.2% per annum, over a

thirty-five (35) year amortization. Monthly installments

of principal and interest are $6,261 until August 1, 2048.

Collateral is the real property of Cumberland Place

Apartments in Winchester, TN. 1,210,124

Subtotal of notes pavable-WCO Cumberland Place $ 1,210,124

WCO Kareday, LLC

Mortgage including interest of 3.75% per annum, amortized

over thirty-five (35) years. Monthly payments are $5,380

until August 1, 2048. Collateral is the real property

located in Oak Ridge, TN. 973,134

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Kareday LLC $ 973,134

WCO Magnolia Gardens, LLC
On demand note payable. Note bears interest of 0%. 337,548

Note payable

Mortgage including interest of prime minus 4.0% per annum.

Monthly payments are $2,017 until April 1, 2030.

Collateral is real property located in Chattanooga, TN. 168,354

Subtotal of notes payable — WCO Magnolia Gardens, LLC $ 505,902
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
WCO Elysian Fields, LLC

Mortgage payments including interest of prime minus 4.0% per annum.
Collateral for this note is property at Elysian Fields, matures

April 1, 2037. $7.880,500

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO Elysian Fields,LLC $ 7,880,550

WCO 40 Avenue Apts, LLC

Construction loan, interest only at prime minus 4%.

Available balance $1,482,000. Collateral for this note

is property at 40™ Ave, matures January 26, 2025 $8.462,273

Subtotal of notes payable-WCO 40" Ave Apts,LLC $ 8,462,273

Ellington View, L.P.
Mortgage payable, monthly payments of $6,237. Interest

at 4.876%. Collateralized by the property of Ellington View, LP $ 381,148
Subtotal of notes payable-Ellington View, LP $ 381,148

Total Notes Payable $ 77,942,544

Less: current portion {_2,190,076)

Long-term portion $ 75,752,468

The payoff on these notes are as follows:

2025 $ 2,190,076

2026 2,386,310

2027 1,950,756

2028 2,027,363

2029 1,964,268
Thereafter 67,423,771
Total Notes Payable $.77,942,544
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE E - MISCELLANEOUS LONG-TERM LIABITIES

The Organization, through its wholly owned entities, has loan agreements funded with tax credit
exchange (TCE) funds from Tennessee Housing Development Agency (THDA) pursuant to Section 1602
of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Section 1602). Under Section 1602, state
housing agencies can exchange allocations of low-income housing tax credits (LIHTC) which have been
allocated to their state under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code (Section 42) for cash at a
prescribed rate of up to $.85 for each dollar of LIHTC. In turn, the state housing agencies can use

Section 1602 funds tc make forgivable loans to properties that qualify for LIHTC.

Loan proceeds funded with Section 1602 program funds are intended to assist with the payment of
development costs of LIHTC properties. In exchange for the funds received, the entities have agreed to
operate low-income properties in accordance with Section 42. Portions of the loan which have been
amortized are not subject to recapture and are considered government assistance related to assets.

The non-interest-bearing notes mature in fifteen (15) years, with repayment due only upon certain
events of default as noted in the Loan Agreement. Under the Loan Agreement, loan principal is reduced
annually at the rate of 6.67% over the fifteen-(15) year-tax-credit-compliance-period:-Recapture-of the—
unamortized balance is subject to the subsidiaries maintaining compliance with Section 42. The notes
are secured by a Deed of Trust, which represents a second lien on certain real property.

As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding balance of the Section 1602 loans was $1,416,402. The
reduction in recapture risk on the loans for 2024 was $687,834. No principal payments are required to
be paid during the loan term. Amounts by entity are as follows:
1602 Loan Balance
(Subject to Recapture)

WCO Algood Manor GP, LLC $ 321,856
WCO Cumberland Place GP, LLC 244,065
WCO Kareday, LLC 169,098

Total $.1,072,567

NOTE F - DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS

Deferred mortgage costs incurred in obtaining mortgages are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the life of the mortgages. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require that the effective yield method be used to amortize financing costs; however, the effect of using
the straight-line method is not materially different from results obtained under the effective yield
method. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 was approximately $53,881.

17

Exhibit F



Docusign Envelope ID: C78E7291-DA4D-41EB-8B2C-B10D7DB952AC

WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE F - DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS (continued)

Estimated amortization expense related to financing fees for each of the ensuing years through
December 31, 2037 and thereafter is as follows:

2025 $ 53,881
2026 53,881
2027 53,881
2028 53,881
2029 53,881
Thereafter 833,794

TOTAL $_ 1,103,199

NOTE G - DEPRECIATION

Depreciation for the year ended December 31, 2024 is $3,483,481. The building, furniture & fixtures,
and equipment are depreciated with lives as follows:

Buildings 27 2 - 40 years
Furniture & fixtures 5 -7 years
Equipment 5 years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets —Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable.
Recoverability is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount to the future net undiscounted cash
flow expected to be generated and any estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition. If the long-
lived assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured at the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value as determined by an appraisal, discounted cash
flows analysis or other valuation technique. No impairment losses are recognized in 2024.

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

The Organization has received monies from the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency
(MDHA) to enable it to buy, or build, and rehabilitate houses, land or apartment complexes. The
monies have restrictions that the Organization must meet for 15 to 20 years to enable the monies to
become a grant. The monies are amortized over the 15 to 20-year period. The remaining amount may
be payable with interest if the restrictions are not met.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
VOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued(

Currently the Organization has a Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP1) agreement to rehab the
12" Avenue property to be used to house low-income tenants. The amount of this agreement is
$900,000. The Organization also has a NSP2 agreement in the amount of $10,949,133 to buy houses,
land, and apartment complexes to rehab or construct. At December 31, 2024, the Organization
purchased such items using $10,949,133. Amortization of the NSP1 agreement in the amount of
$45,000 has been released to unrestricted net assets during 2024. Amortization of the NSP2 agreement
in the amount of $811,265 has been released to unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2024,

In 2024 The Organization received a Community Home Loan in the amount of $1,404,000 for construct
multi-family housing at 701-709 40th Avenue in Nashville, TN. The Organization completed
construction on the multi-family housing in 2024. Amortization of the loan in the amount of $35,100
was released to unrestricted net assets during 2024.

Total funds released from restriction in 2024 were $891,365.
~NOTE | = SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION

The Organization purchased real property and equipment of an unrelated party for $11,514,298. The
purchase was made through entering two loan agreements. $9,599,403 was borrowed from Facilities
Funding Group, LLC and $1,914,895 in a seller/tenant financed loan with Open Arms Care Corporation
(See Note D). In conjunction with the purchase, the Organization entered into thirty-six (36) lease
agreements to leaseback the property and equipment to the seller. The leases are for terms of 15 years
and can be extended at the option of the tenant for two additional years.

The Organization also completed construction on nine (9) new homes in 2017 in Chattanooga, Knoxville
and Greeneville. The Organization entered into nine (9) lease agreements to lease the facilities to Open
Arms Care Corporation.

During 2020, the Organization completed construction and financing on ten (10) replacement homes in
Memphis. The Organization entered into ten (10) lease agreements to lease the facilities to Open Arms
Care Corporation.

During 2023, the Organization completed construction and financing on ten (10) replacement homes in
Knoxville. The Organization entered into ten (10) lease agreements to lease the facilities to Open Arms
Care Corporation. All of the referenced leases are for terms of 15 years from the date of occupancy and
be extended at the option of the tenant for an additional five (5) years.

Rent income under these leases totaled approximately $6,775,992 in 2024.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE | - SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION (continued)

A summary of future minimum lease payments under the leases as of December 31, 2024, is as follows:

2025 $ 5,406,887
2026 4,625,478
2027 5,259,014
2028 5,128,988
2029 4,998,963
Thereafter 81,624,432

Total $107,043,762

As of December 31, 2024, the tenant owed approximately $5,613,5378 of accrued rent. These amounts
will be paid in 2024 subsequent to the tenant filing its annual cost report filing. The lease agreements
allow for remedies for changes to the allowed rental reimbursement in the annual cost report.

During 2017, the Organization amended its existing loan agreements with Facilities Funding Group and
entered into a tax-exempt financing bond (Series 2016A) with the Health and Educational Facilities
Board of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. The Board sold
the bonds to Facilities Funding Group, LLC and the payment terms effectively remained the same. The
interest rate decreased to 7.5%.

Proceeds from the loan were used as follows: $800,000 to establish a debt service fund, $375,000 for
loan closing costs, and $9,202,086 for land and building construction. There was a cost overrun of
$345,000 and Facilities Funding Group agreed to amend the loan agreement to include this amount in
2018. The total loan balance as of December 31, 2024 was $3,325,965.

In 2017, the Organization also entered a second tax-exempt financing bond (Series 2016B) for
$10,400,000 for the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of nine (9) new facilities to
provide immediate care services for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID). During 2022, the
Organization refinanced its Bond with a new tax-exempt financing bond (Serries 2022A). The loan
balance was $8,615,738 at December 31, 2024.

During 2022, the Organization amended its existing loan agreements with Facilities Funding Group and
entered into a tax-exempt financing bond (Series 2022B) with the Health and Educational Facilities
Board of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. The Board sold
the bonds to Facilities Funding Group, LLC and the payment terms effectively remained the same. The
interest rate is 7.99%. The total loan balance as of December 31, 2024 was $17,518,687.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE J - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization engages in certain transactions with related parties from time to time. The
partnership to assist with the development of Hermitage Flats Apartments (“the Project”). The general
partner of ECG Hermitage, LP is WCO Hermitage Flats, GP, Inc,, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Organization. The loan agreement is funded from monies obtained from the Metropolitan Housing
Trust Fund Commission. The terms of the loan specify annual payments from net cash flows of the
Project, as defined by the LP Agreement. The term of the loan is thirty (30) years, payable beginning on
the first (1) anniversary of the Completion Date as defined in the LP Agreement. Interest thereon will
be computed at the annual rate of zero percent (0.0%). The entire unpaid principal and all other charges
shall be due and payable on December 31, 2047. Management anticipates the loan to be repaid in full

within 15 years. As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding loan balance was $3,500,000.

During 2019, the Organization received a grant from the Metropolitan Housing Trust Fund Commission
in the amount of $1,400,000. The Organization invested these funds in its wholly owned subsidiary,
WCO Elm Hill Flats, LLC (“EHF") which used the funds to purchase property located at 825 Elm Hill Pike

——in Nashville, TN EHF wilFbuild-a 71=unit-apartment building-and-offer-affordable-housing-As-outlined-in-
Note L, the cost of the apartment building was approximately $5,100,000 and is financed by EHF with a
loan of $4,680,000, with the Organization guaranteeing the debt. The loan balance at December 31,
2024 was $4,303,000.

NOTE K - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may exceed federally
insured limits. Management has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash or cash equivalents. At December 31, 2024,
$18,856,531 was uninsured.

The Organizations operations are concentrated in the low-income, multi-family real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulation of federal, state, and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to HUD. Such administrative directives, rules, and
regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress, or an administrative change mandated by
HUD. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including an administrative burden to comply with a change.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its support from the government. A reduction in the
level of this support, if it were to occur, may end such programs and activities related to such support.

The Organization conducts numerous activities as a developer of multi-family affordable housing. The
Organization materially participates in each project in which it has an interest. Most of the activities are
conducted through single-purpose entities controlled by the Organization. As part of its role as the
developer or sponsor of these facilities, the Organization is required to meet certain performance and
fiscal obligations, such as construction completion, rental agreements, debt service, and fraud and
misconduct by entities controlled by the Organization. It is not possible to quantify the potential
liabilities with respect to these obligations.

NOTE M - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis
that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, depreciation, and
amortization, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages,
benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology, interest,
insurance, and other costs, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort

NOTE N - FAIR VALUE

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, provides a framework for measuring fair value. The framework provides
a three-tier fair value hierarchy of pricing inputs used to report assets and liabilities that are adjusted to
fair value. Level 1 includes inputs such as quoted prices which are available in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities as of the report date. Level 2 includes inputs other than quoted prices in
active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the report
date. Level 3 includes unobservable pricing inputs that are not corroborated by market data or other
objective sources. The Organizations investments would all be real estate related and would be
classified as Level 3 inputs.

The Organization utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability. The Organization's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and
their placement within the fair value hierarchy. At the end of 2024, the fair value of the Organizations'
other financial instruments approximates their carrying amounts, either because the expected collection
or repayment period is relatively short or because the terms are similar to market terms.
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WOODBINE COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
NOTE O - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Company regularly monitors liquidity to meet its operating needs and other commitments. A
substantial portion of financial assets represent housing assistance payments received or receivable for
the purpose of providing low-income housing. The Company manages liquidity by ensuring financial
assets are available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations become due. Financial
assets available for general expenditures within one year of the statement of position date are:

Cash and cash equivalents $26,663,295
Other receivables, currently due 5,974,406
Prepaid expenses 145,849
Available to meet current liabilities $32,783,550
Less: Liabilities currently due (1,626,791)

Tenant security deposits (93,782

Financial-assetsavailableto- meet-cash-needs
For general expenditures within one year $37,986,399

As part of our liquidity management, it invests cash in excess of daily requirements in an interest
bearing, short-term money market investment account, which is a cash equivalent.

NOTE Q - RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARD

In 2022, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases, which
requires lessees to recognize leases on the statement of financial position and disclose key information
about leasing arrangements. All leases are short-term. Therefore, no disclosure is required as of
December 31, 2024. Additionally, management elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or
existing contracts to determine whether they are or contain a lease, (i) the lease classification of any
existing leases, or (jii) initial direct costs for existing leases. As a result of implementing ASU No. 2016-
02, the adoption did not result in an effect on amounts reported in the statement of financial position
sheet for the year ended December 31, 2024.

NOTE R - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events as of May 15, 2025, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any significant events that occurred
subsequent to the statement of financial position date but prior to the filing of this report that would
have a material impact on the financial statements.
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8118A SAWYER BROWN ROAD
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37221
(615) 673-1120

(615) 673-0989 (F)

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS #

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Woodbine Community Organization (WCQ), Inc., which comprise the statement
of financial position as of December 31, 2024, and the related statements of activities, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 15, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Woodbine
Community Organization (WCO), Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Woodbine Community Organization (WCO),
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Woodbine Community Organization (WCO), Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Woodbine Community Organization
(WCOQ), Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported

under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.
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Nashville, Tennessee
May 15, 2025
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